FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

Best Choice Roofing Franchising, LLC
A Tennessee limited liability company A

105 Hazel Path
Hendersonville, TN 37075 B C I 2
615-637-3341

franchising@bestchoiceroofing.com Best Choice Roofing
. You Chose the Best!
www.bestchoiceroofing.com

As a Best Choice Roofing franchisee, you will operate a business selling residential and
commercial roofing and other property maintenance related services. You will provide these
services to both residential and commercial customers, operating under our Marks and System.

The total initial investment necessary to begin operation of a Best Choice Roofing franchise
for one territory is $113,710 to $196,510. This includes $74,510 to $77,010 that must be paid to
the franchisor or affiliates. The total initial investment necessary to begin operation of two to ten
territories is $150,410 to $488,110. This includes $114,510 to $371,910 that must be paid to the
franchisor or its affiliates.

This disclosure document summarizes certain provisions of your franchise agreement and
other information in plain English. Read this disclosure document and all accompanying
agreements carefully. You must receive this disclosure document at least 14 calendar-days before
you sign a binding agreement with, or make any payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate in
connection with the proposed franchise sale. Note, however, that no governmental agency has
verified the information contained in this document.

You may wish to receive your disclosure document in another format that is more
convenient for you. To discuss the availability of disclosures in different formats, contact Ron
Sudbury, Best Choice Roofing Franchising, LLC at 105 Hazel Path, Hendersonville, TN 37075
and at 615-637-3341.

The terms of your contract will govern your franchise relationship. Don’t rely on the
disclosure document alone to understand your contract. Read all of your contract carefully. Show
your contract and this disclosure document to an advisor, like a lawyer or an accountant.

Buying a franchise is a complex investment. The information in this disclosure document
can help you make up your mind. More information on franchising, such as “A Consumer’s Guide
to Buying a Franchise,” which can help you understand how to use this disclosure document, is
available from the Federal Trade Commission. You can contact the FTC at 1-877-FTC- HELP or
by writing to the FTC at 600 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW. Washington, D.C. 20580. You can also
visit the FTC’s home page at www.ftc.gov for additional information. Call your state agency or
visit your public library for other sources of information on franchising.

There may also be laws on franchising in your state. Ask your state agencies about them.

Issuance date: April 28, 2023
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How to Use This Franchise Disclosure Document

Here are some questions you may be asking about buying a franchise and tips on how to

find more information:

QUESTION

WHERE TO FIND INFORMATION

How much can I earn?

Item 19 may give you information
about outlet sales, costs, profits or
losses. You should also try to obtain
this information from others, like
current and former franchises. You can
find their names and contact
information in Item 20 or Exhibit F.

How much will I need to invest?

Items 5 and 6 list fees you will be
paying to the franchisor or at the
franchisor’s direction. Item 7 lists the
initial investment to open. Item 8
describes the suppliers you must use.

Does the franchisor have the financial
ability to provide support to my business?

Item 21 or Exhibit D includes financial
statements. Review these statements
carefully.

Is the franchise system stable, growing, or
shrinking?

Item 20 summarizes the recent history
of the number of company-owned and
franchised outlets.

Will my business be the only Best Choice
Roofing business in my area?

Item 12 and the “territory” provisions
in the franchise agreement describe
whether the franchisor and other
franchisees can compete with you.

Does the franchisor have a troubled legal
history?

Items 3 and 4 tell you whether the
franchisor or its management have been
involved in material litigation or
bankruptcy proceedings.

What’s it like to be a Best Choice Roofing
franchisee?

Item 20 or Exhibit F lists current and
former franchisees. You can contact
them to ask about their experiences.

What else should I know?

These questions are only a few things
you should look for. Review all 23
Items and all Exhibits in this disclosure
document to better understand this
franchise opportunity. See the table of
contents.

i
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What You Need To Know About Franchising Generally

Continuing responsibility to pay fees. You may have to pay royalties and other fees even
if you are losing money.

Business model can change. The franchise agreement may allow the franchisor to change
its manuals and business model without your consent. These changes may require you to
make additional investments in your franchise business or may harm your franchise
business.

Supplier restrictions. You may have to buy or lease items from the franchisor or a limited
group of suppliers the franchisor designates. These items may be more expensive than
similar items you could buy on your own.

Operating restrictions. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a
similar business during the term of the franchise. There are usually other restrictions. Some
examples may include controlling your location, your access to customers, what you sell,
how you market, and your hours of operation.

Competition from franchisor. Even if the franchise agreement grants you a territory, the
franchisor may have the right to compete with you in your territory.

Renewal. Your franchise agreement may not permit you to renew. Even if it does, you may
have to sign a new agreement with different terms and conditions in order to continue to
operate your franchise business.

When your franchise ends. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a
similar business after your franchise ends even if you still have obligations to your landlord
or other creditors.

Some States Require Registration

Your state may have a franchise law, or other law, that requires franchisors to
register before offering or selling franchises in the state. Registration does not mean
that the state recommends the franchise or has verified the information in this
document. To find out if your state has a registration requirement, or to contact your
state, use the agency information in Exhibit A.

Your state also may have laws that require special disclosures or amendments
be made to your franchise agreement. If so, you should check the State Specific
Addenda. See the Table of Contents for the location of the State Specific Addenda.

111
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Special Risks to Consider About This Franchise

Certain states require that the following risk(s) be highlighted:

1.

Out-of-State Dispute Resolution. The franchise agreement requires you to
resolve disputes with the franchisor by arbitration and/or litigation only in
Tennessee. Out-of-state arbitration or litigation may force you to accept a less
favorable settlement for disputes. It may also cost more to arbitrate or litigate
with the franchisor in Tennessee than in your own state.

Minimum Payments. You must make minimum royalty or advertising payments,
regardless of your sales levels. Your inability to make the payments may result in
termination of your franchise and loss of your investment.

Short Operating History. The franchisor is at an early stage of development and
has a limited operating history. This franchise is likely to be a riskier investment
than a franchise in a system with a longer operating history.

. Supplier Control. You must purchase all or nearly all of the inventory or supplies

that are necessary to operate your business from the franchisor, its affiliates, or
suppliers that the franchisor designates, at prices the franchisor or they set. These
prices may be higher than prices you could obtain elsewhere for the same or similar
goods. This may reduce the anticipated profit of your franchise business.

. Mandatory Minimum Payments. You must make minimum royalty payments,

regardless of your sales levels. Your inability to make the payments may result in
termination of your franchise and loss of your investment.

Financial Condition. The franchisor’s financial condition as reflected in its
financial statements (see Item 21) calls into question the franchisor’s financial
ability to provide services and support to you.

Certain states may require other risks to be highlighted. Check the “State Specific
Addenda” (if any) to see whether your state requires other risks to be highlighted.

v
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(THE FOLLOWING APPLIES TO TRANSACTIONS GOVERNED BY
THE MICHIGAN FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW ONLY)

THE STATE OF MICHIGAN PROHIBITS CERTAIN UNFAIR PROVISIONS THAT
ARE SOMETIMES IN FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS. IF ANY OF THE FOLLOWING
PROVISIONS ARE IN THESE FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS, THE PROVISIONS ARE VOID
AND CANNOT BE ENFORCED AGAINST YOU.

Each of the following provisions is void and unenforceable if contained in any documents
relating to a franchise:

(a) A prohibition on the right of a franchisee to join an association of franchisees.

(b) A requirement that a franchisee assent to a release, assignment, novation, waiver,
or estoppel which deprives a franchisee of rights and protection provided in this act. This shall not
preclude a franchisee, after entering into a franchise agreement, from settling any and all claims.

(©) A provision that permits a franchisor to terminate a franchise prior to the expiration
of its term except for good cause. Good cause shall include the failure of the franchisee to comply
with any lawful provision of the franchise agreement and to cure such failure after being given
written notice thereof and a reasonable opportunity, which in no event need be more than 30 days,
to cure such failure.

(d) A provision that permits a franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise without fairly
compensating the franchisee by repurchase or other means for the fair market value at the time of
expiration of the franchisee’s inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures, and furnishings.
Personalized materials which have no value to the franchisor and inventory, supplies, equipment,
fixtures, and furnishings not reasonably required in the conduct of the franchise business are not
subject to compensation. This subsection applies only if: (i) the term of the franchise is less than
5 years and (i1) the franchisee is prohibited by the franchise or other agreement from continuing to
conduct substantially the same business under another trademark, service mark, trade name,
logotype, advertising, or other commercial symbol in the same area subsequent to the expiration
of the franchise or the franchisee does not receive at least 6 months advance notice of franchisor’s
intent not to renew the franchise.

(e) A provision that permits the franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise on terms
generally available to other franchisees of the same class or type under similar circumstances. This
section does not require a renewal provision.

) A provision requiring that arbitration or litigation be conducted outside this state.
This shall not preclude the franchisee from entering into an agreement, at the time of arbitration,
to conduct arbitration at a location outside this state.

(2) A provision which permits a franchisor to refuse to permit a transfer of ownership
of a franchise, except for good cause. This subdivision does not prevent a franchisor from
exercising a right of first refusal to purchase the franchise. Good cause shall include, but is not
limited to:
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(1) The failure of the proposed transferee to meet the franchisor’s then-current
reasonable qualifications or standards.

(11) The fact that the proposed transferee is a competitor of the franchisor or sub-
franchisor.

(111))  The unwillingness of the proposed transferee to agree in writing to comply with all
lawful obligations.

(iv)  The failure of the franchisee or proposed transferee to pay any sums owing to the
franchisor or to cure any default in the franchise agreement existing at the time of
the proposed transfer.

(h) A provision that requires the franchisee to resell to the franchisor items that are not
uniquely identified with the franchisor. This subdivision does not prohibit a provision that grants
to a franchisor a right of first refusal to purchase the assets of a franchise on the same terms and
conditions as a bona fide third party willing and able to purchase those assets, nor does this
subdivision prohibit a provision that grants the franchisor the right to acquire the assets of a
franchise for the market or appraised value of such assets if the franchisee has breached the lawful
provisions of the franchise agreement and has failed to cure the breach in the manner provided in
subdivision (c).

(1) A provision which permits the franchisor to directly or indirectly convey, assign,
or otherwise transfer its obligations to fulfill contractual obligations to the franchisee unless
provision has been made for providing the required contractual services.

If the franchisor’s most recent financial statements are unaudited and show a net worth of
less than $100,000, the franchisee may request the franchisor to arrange for the escrow of initial
investment and other funds paid by the franchisee until the obligations, if any, of the franchisor to
provide real estate, improvements, equipment, inventory, training or other items included in the
franchise offering are fulfilled. At the option of the franchisor, a surety bond may be provided in
place of escrow.

THE FACT THAT THERE IS A NOTICE OF THIS OFFERING ON FILE WITH THE
ATTORNEY GENERAL DOES NOT CONSTITUTE APPROVAL, RECOMMENDATION, OR
ENDORSEMENT BY THE ATTORNEY GENERAL.

Any questions regarding this notice should be directed to:

State of Michigan Department of Attorney General
G. Mennen Williams Building, 7th Floor

525 W. Ottawa Street

Lansing, Michigan 48909

Telephone Number: (517) 373 7117

vi
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Item 1
THE FRANCHISOR AND ANY PARENTS, PREDECESSORS, AND AFFILIATES

(13 2

In this disclosure document, “we”, “us,” or “our” refers to Best Choice Roofing
Franchising, LLC. “You” means the person to whom we grant a Best Choice Roofing (“BCR”)
franchise (the “Franchised Business™). If you are a corporation, limited liability company, or other
entity, each owner of the franchise entity must sign our Guaranty and Non-Compete Agreement,
which means that all of the franchise agreement’s provisions also will apply to your owners.

Our name is Best Choice Roofing Franchising, LLC. We are a Tennessee limited liability
company formed on February 4, 2020. We also use the name “Best Choice Roofing.” Our principal
business address is 105 Hazel Path, Hendersonville, Tennessee 37075-3886. We have offered
franchises since December 2021. We do not have any predecessors.

Our affiliate, Best Choice Roofing & Home Improvement, Inc., is a Tennessee corporation
formed on January 5, 2010, located at 105 Hazel Path, Hendersonville, Tennessee 37075-3886,
and, as of the issuance date of this Disclosure Document, operates 17corporate locations that are
not operated by the entities below. The following aftiliates of ours operate one or more Best Choice
Roofing businesses as of the issuance date of this Disclosure Document:

Number of
. . State of Date of BCR
Affiliate Name Type of Entity Formation | Formation Address Businesses
Operated
Best Choice Roofing Limited liabilit 1711 Destiny Lane Suite
Middle Tennessee, ?n ?1 Y| Tennessee | 9/6/2018 102, Bowling Green, KY 5
LLC company 42104
Best Choice Roofing | Limited liability 1756 Jardco Drive,
Tennessee, LLC company Tennessee | 11/28/2016 Clarksville, TN 37040 2
Best Choice Roofing | Limited liability 1405 Greg Street,
East, LLC company Tennessee | 9/17/2019 Columbia, SC 29201 3
Best Choice Roofin Limited liability 3235 South Cherokee Ln
& company Tennessee | 2/19/2016 | Ste. 1220 Woodstock, GA 3
Southeast, LLC 30188
Best Choice Roofing | Limited liability 3102 Cherry Palm Drive
West Florida, LLC company Tennessee | 7/20/2018 Suite 100 Tampa, FL 33619 !
. Limited liability 22 W. Monument Ave
Best Ch01ce.Rooﬁng company Tennessee | 9/15/2020 Suite 2 Kissimmee, FL 2
Central Florida, LLC 34741
Best Choice Roofing | Limited liability 3148 Broadway Suite 305
Ohio, LLC company Tennessee | 9/29/2021 Grove City, OH 43123 !
Best Choice Roofing | Limited liability C-Pitts School Road
North Carolina, LLC company Tennessee | 10/8/2021 Concord, NC 28027 !

The above-named affiliates do not offer products or services to our franchisees, and they
have not and do not offer franchises in any line of business.

We do have one affiliate that provides a service to our franchisees. Our affiliate, Storm
Leads, Inc., was incorporated in the state of Tennessee in November 2010. They have the same
principal address as us. Storm Leads, Inc. is currently our only approved call center vendor for
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franchisees. They do not offer any other products or services to our franchisees, and they have not
and do not offer franchises in any line of business.

Agent for Service of Process

Our agents for service of process are disclosed in Exhibit A.

Information About Our Business and the Franchises Offered

We (that is, Best Choice Roofing Franchising, LL.C) do not operate businesses of the type
being franchised, but our affiliates do. We do not have any other business activities. We have not
offered franchises in other lines of business. If you sign a franchise agreement with us, you will
develop and operate a business that will be focused on residential and commercial reroofing of
properties that have sustained damaged due to wind or a hailstorm (the “Services”). You will lead
a sales team and you will be responsible for the installation of the materials and the satisfaction of
the customer. We have developed a system that will explain to you how to recruit a sales force,
retain the sales force, motivate the sales force, handle production from beginning to end and collect
remaining balances from the customers, sometimes after interacting with an Insurance Carrier (the
“System”). You will provide these services to both residential and commercial buildings, operating
under the Marks and using the System.

We also offer, to qualified franchisees, the opportunity to develop multiple Territories
under the same Franchised Business. To be eligible to develop multiple Territories, you must agree
to open between a minimum of 2 Territories and a maximum of 10 Territories. If you qualify to
develop your Franchised Business within multiple Territories, you will not sign a Multi-Unit
Development Agreement or Area Development Agreement because you will operate one business
across multiple Territories covering a total larger geographic area.

You will compete with other national, regional and local residential and commercial
roofing and other property maintenance related service businesses, generally in well-developed
markets. The residential and commercial roofing industry is well developed and competitive.
Your Franchised Business may operate in close proximity to major competitors. Some competitors
will offer many goods and services that are the same as or similar to those you offer.

Laws and Regulations

The following laws and regulations may be relevant for your market and you should be
aware of these prior to opening the franchised business. In some states, you will have to obtain
and maintain a general contractor’s license to provide the services under the System. Some states
may require a specialty contractor license. While qualifications for such licenses vary from state
to state, you may also have to pass a knowledge test and background test and obtain insurance and
a bond. There are many federal, state and local regulations specific to the operation of a roofing
and construction business. You will also be subject to state and local licensing laws, codes and
regulations, particularly as they relate to the operation of a roofing and property maintenance
service business. For certain Services, such as roofing, you are subject to federal, state, and local
contractor license laws and requirements. There may be other laws applicable to the business, and
we urge you to make further inquiries about these laws. The nature and amount of regulation could
change rapidly relating to this business. You should consult a lawyer with experience dealing with

2
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roofing and contracting issues to be sure you are familiar with the current statutes and regulations
that might apply within your territory.

Further, there are statutes and regulations that are applicable to all business, including those
governing health and labor, zoning, and safety. You should consult with a local attorney to discuss
these general business regulations within your territory.

Item 2
BUSINESS EXPERIENCE

Wavyne Holloway., Founder and President

Mr. Holloway has served as our President since our inception in February 2020. He has also been
the Owner of Best Choice Roofing & Home Improvement, Inc. in Hendersonville, TN since its
formation in January 2010. Mr. Holloway is also a Member of the following six Affiliates, each
located in Hendersonville, TN, as follows: Best Choice Roofing Central Florida, LLC since
September 2020, Best Choice Roofing East, LLC since September 2019, Best Choice Roofing
Middle Tennessee, LLC since September 2018, Best Choice Roofing West Florida, LLC since
July 2018, Best Choice Roofing Tennessee, LLC since November 2016, and Best Choice Roofing
Southeast, LLC since February 2016. Mr. Holloway was previously a Member of the following
affiliates, all headquartered in Hendersonville, TN: (i) Best Choice Roofing Louisiana, LLC from
May 2020 to May 2022, (ii) Best Choice Roofing Jackson, LLC from September 2017 to March
2022, (ii1) Best Choice Roofing North, LLC from November 2016 to March 2022, (iv) Best Choice
Roofing DC, LLC from August 2018 to May 2022, and (v) Best Choice Roofing Alabama, LLC
from June 2018 to October 2022.

Ron Sudbury, Chief Operating Officer

Mr. Sudbury has served as our Chief Operating Officer since July 2021. Previously, he was Vice
President of Avis Budget Group in Nashville, TN from July 2003 to July 2021.

Andrew Heath, Director of Franchise Operations

Mr. Heath has served as our Director of Franchise Operations since July 2021. Previously, he was
a production supervisor with Cintas Corp in Nashville, TN from September 2015 to July 2021.

Wade Miller., Director of Finance

Mr. Miller has served as our Director of Finance since July 2010.

Cameron Justice, Franchise Support Manager

Mr. Justice has served as our Franchise Support Manager since June 2022. From July 2018 to May
2022, Mr. Justice served as a Production Manager, Sales Manager, General Manager, and then
Regional Sales Manager for our affiliate, Best Choice Roofing and Home Improvement, Inc., in
Hendersonville, TN. Prior to that, he served as an Assistant Superintendent for The Berry Group
in Six Mile, SC from June 2017 to June 2018.
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Brvan Webb. Vice President of Finance

Mr. Webb has served as our Vice President of Finance since November 2022. Mr. Webb previously
served in the following roles: (i) General Manager of Yusen Terminals in Nashville, TN from
August 2022 to October 2022; (ii) Group Controller of Modineer Group in Niles, MI from June
2022 to July 2022; (iii) Finance Manager of Casco Products Corp. in Morgantown, KY from
December 2020 to June 2022; (iv) Plant Controller of Cooper Standard in Spring Lake, MI from
October 2019 to December 2020; (v) Controller of IMPCO in Lansing, MI from May 2018 to
October 2019; and (vi) Controller of Robert Half in Southfield, MI from March 2018 to May 2018.

Marcessa Palmer, Director of Human Resources

Ms. Palmer has served as the Director of Human Resources for Best Choice Roofing & Home
Improvement, Inc. in Hendersonville, TN since July 2022. From September 2021 to July 2022,
Ms. Palmer was the Principal Owner of Transcend, LLC in Hendersonville, TN. Prior to that, Ms.
Palmer served as a Franchising Human Resources Manager for Servpro Industries in Gallatin, TN
from July 2014 to September 2021.

Item 3
LITIGATION

Best Choice Roofing & Home Improvement, Inc. v. Best Choice Roofing Savannah, LLC
& Best Choice Roofing Augusta, LLC, Civil Action No. 3:18-cv-00615 (District Court for the
Middle District of Tennessee, filed July 6, 2018) We filed a lawsuit against former licensees of
ours for breach of contract, trademark infringement, and unfair competition. The Defendants
asserted counterclaims of fraudulent misrepresentation and fraudulent concealment. The
Defendants’ counterclaims were dismissed and the parties reached a settlement agreement where
the Defendants were required to pay a monetary sum to us as well as discontinue use or association
with our business and trademarks.

Other than the above, no litigation is required to be disclosed in this Item.

Item 4
BANKRUPTCY

No bankruptcy information is required to be disclosed in this Item.

Item 5
INITIAL FEES

Initial Franchise Fee

When you sign your franchise agreement, you must pay us $59,500 as the Initial Franchise
Fee. This fee is uniformly imposed among our franchisees. The Initial Franchise Fee includes a
Territory containing approximately 100,000 single-family homes. You may purchase additional
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Territories based on the table below. Upon approval by us, you may also purchase additional
territories for $0.60 per single-family home.

Approximate
Nug}ber Sirll)gle-Family Initial Cumulative Initial
. Homes in Franchise Fee Franchise Fee
Territories .
Territory
1 100,000 $59,500 $59,500
2 200,000 $40,000 $99,500
3 300,000 $35,000 $134,500
4 400,000 $30,000 $164,500
5 500,000 $30,000 $194,500
6 600,000 $30,000 $224,500
7 700,000 $30,000 $254,500
8 800,000 $30,000 $284,500
9 900,000 $30,000 $314,500
10 1,000,000 $30,000 $344,500

If (1) you fail to complete the initial training program to our satisfaction, or (2) we
conclude, no more than 10 days after you complete the initial training program, that you do not
have the ability to satisfactorily operate your franchise, then we have the right to terminate your
franchise agreement. If we do so, we will refund your franchise fee less any out-of-pocket costs
we have incurred, subject to your signing a general release of our liability. Otherwise, the Initial
Franchise Fee is not refundable.

Initial Marketing Materials

You will initially purchase Initial Marketing Materials from us consisting of various pieces
of marketing collateral for use with your Franchised Business, which will cost approximately
$11,000. The Initial Marketing Materials include TVs, apparel, banners, diagrams, and door
hangers among other marketing pieces and may vary depending on the season in which you
purchase your franchise. We will order the Initial Marketing Materials from our approved suppliers
and arrange for delivery to you.

New Hire Kits and Uniforms

You will initially purchase at least ten new hire kits, including uniforms, from us. These
are for your sales representatives and will cost between $500 and $3,000 total.

Call Center Fee

Prior to you opening for business, you will pay us a Call Center Fee of $3,300 per every
three Territories you purchase, and Territories in between intervals of three will be rounded up
(i.e., 10x Territories will result in a $13,200 Call Center Fee). You will continue to pay us this fee
on an annual basis.

101k TV Service
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Prior to opening for business, you will pay us $210 for the 101k TV Service, which allows us to
stream content to a television display at your Franchised Business. This fee is due to us annually
thereafter.

Veterans Discount

We offer a Veteran discount to honorably discharged veterans of the United States armed
forces and their spouses. We will discount the Initial Franchise Fee by 10% on the first Territory
purchased by those veterans and/or their spouses who have received an honorable discharge from
the military. The Initial Franchise Fee is payable at the time a Franchise Agreement is signed. The
Initial Franchise Fee is deemed fully earned upon payment and, in consideration of administrative
and other expenses we incur in granting this franchise and for our lost or deferred opportunity to
franchise others, is non-refundable.

Refunds

Except as stated above, all fees under this Item 5 are uniform, earned when received, and
non-refundable under any circumstances.

Item 6
OTHER FEES
Type of Fee Amount Due Date Remarks
Royalty 6% of Gross Within 30 days See Notes 1 and 2.
Sales', subject | after each contract
to weekly is invoiced by
minimums.? (entered into) our
Beginning in | Customer
the sixth (6") | Relationship
month after Management
you open for | platform.
business, there
1S a minimum
weekly
Royalty Fee
for each
territory
operating
6
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Type of Fee Amount Due Date Remarks
Client Contract Fee $59 per Weekly, on You will pay us $59 per contract
contract Monday of each entered with a client for your
entered with week. franchised business. This covers

client

our cost of reviewing each
contract, ensuring the work scope
is within the approved services,
and ensuring the proper materials
are provided to the customer.

Brand Fund
Contribution

Up to 3% of
Gross Sales.
Currently 1%
of Gross Sales

Beginning after the
3" month from the
effective date of
your Franchise

See Note 3.

Agreement,
weekly on Monday
of each week.
Market Cooperative | As determined | As determined by | We have the right to establish
Contribution by co-op. CO-0p. local or regional advertising
Currently, cooperatives. The amount you
none. must contribute to the
However, cooperative will be determined
once co-op by vote of the members, but not
formed, not less than 1% of gross sales. If our
less than 1% own outlets are members of a
of Gross Sales cooperative, they must contribute
to the cooperative on the same
basis as franchisees, and they will
vote on the same basis as other
members. If our outlets have
controlling voting power, there is
no maximum on fees that could
be imposed.
Additional Initial $1,000 per Prior to attending | If you send a manager or other
Training person training employee to our training program

after you open, we will charge
our then-current training fee.
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Type of Fee Amount Due Date Remarks
Third party vendors Pass-through | Varies We have the right to require
of costs, plus franchisees to use third-party
10% vendors and suppliers that we
administrative designate. Examples can include
charge. computer support vendors, email
services, mystery shopping, and
customer feedback systems. The
vendors and suppliers may bill
franchisees directly, or we have
the right to collect payment for
these vendors together a
reasonable markup or charge for
administering the payment
program.
Software — Currently Monthly We require you to use certain
Job Nimbus (CRM) $151 per softwafe as describe'd ip Item 11.
month, each You will pay subscription fees
additional user directly to us.
is $25.00 per
month.
Software — Currently Monthly We require you to use this
QuickBooks/Right $500.00 per gccounting softwa're as described
Networks month, $25.00 in Item 11. You will pay
per user subscription fees directly to Right
Networks.
Software — Currently Monthly We require you to use this
Guild Quality Survey $40.00 per cqstomer survey sgrvice. Ygu
Questionnaires month will pay subscription fees directly
to us.
Call Center Fee $3,300 per Annually All website and phone inquiries
year per three are routed to our affiliate, Storm
(3) Territories Leads, Inc., which manages a call
center that will follow up with
inbound leads to set appointments
for franchisees. You are currently
required to utilize our affiliate’s
call center for inbound leads.
8
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Type of Fee Amount Due Date Remarks

Storm Leads Fee $90 per As appointments Franchisees may submit contact
appointment are set with leads. | information to our affiliate,
set Storm Leads, Inc., for our

affiliate’s call center to make
outbound calls to follow up with.
For each appointment that our
affiliate sets with a lead you
submit to our affiliate, you will
pay Storm Leads, Inc. a $90
Storm Leads Fee.

Non-compliance Fee | $500 per On demand We may charge you $500 if your

occurrence business is not in compliance
with our system specifications or
the franchise agreement and you

$250 per week fail to correct the non-compliance

not cured after after 30 days’ notice. Thereafter,

30 days’ we may charge you $250 per

notice week until you correct such non-
compliance.

Reimbursement Amount that Within 15 days of | If we pay any amount that you
we spend on invoice owe or are required to pay to a
your behalf, third party, you must reimburse
plus 10% us.

Late fee $100 plus On demand We may charge a late fee if you
interest on the fail to make a required payment
unpaid when due.
amount at a
rate equal to
18% per year
(or, if such
payment
exceeds the
maximum
allowed by
law, then
interest at the
highest rate
allowed by
law)

9
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Type of Fee Amount Due Date Remarks
Insufficient funds fee | $30 (or, if On demand We may charge an insufficient
such amount funds fee if a payment made by
exceeds the you is returned because of
maximum insufficient funds in your
allowed by account.
law, then the
maximum
allowed by
law)
Costs of collection Our actual As incurred Payable if we incur costs
costs (including reasonable attorney
fees) in attempting to collect
amounts you owe to us.
Breach of territory The greater of | On demand If you serve a customer outside of
fee (1) $500 or (ii) your territory without our prior
75% of the written permission, we may
amount paid impose this fee.
by the
customer
outside of
your territory.
Special support fee Our then- On demand If we provide in-person support
current fee, to you in response to your
plus our request, we may charge this fee
expenses. plus any out-of-pocket expenses
Currently, (such as travel, lodging, and
$500 per day. meals for employees providing
onsite support).
Customer complaint | Our expenses We may take any action we deem
resolution appropriate to resolve a customer
complaint about your business. If
we respond to a customer
complaint, we may require you to
reimburse us for our expenses.
10
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Type of Fee Amount Due Date Remarks
Records audit Our actual On demand Payable only if (1) we audit you
cost plus because you have failed to submit
$1,000 required reports or other non-
compliance, or (2) the audit
concludes that you under-
reported gross sales by more than
3% for any month.
Special evaluation fee | Currently On demand Payable only if we conduct an in-
$600, plus our person evaluation of your
out-of-pocket business because of a
costs governmental report, customer
complaint or other customer
feedback, or your default or non-
compliance with any system
specification.
Non-compliance cure | Our out-of- When billed We may cure your non-

costs and fee

pocket costs
and internal

compliance on your behalf (for
example, if you do not have

cost required insurance, we may
allocation, purchase insurance for you), and
plus 10% you will owe our costs plus a
10% administrative fee.
Transfer fee $10,000 When transfer Payable if you sell all or part of
occurs your business. This transfer fee is
subject to applicable state law.
Renewal fee $10,000 Upon renewal of Subject to approval by us and

Franchise other requirements
Agreement
Indemnity Our costs and | On demand You must indemnify and defend
losses from (with counsel reasonably
any legal acceptable to us) us and our
action related affiliates against all losses in any
to the action by or against us related to,
operation of or alleged to arise out of, the
your franchise operation of your franchise
(unless caused by our misconduct
or negligence).
11
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Type of Fee Amount Due Date Remarks

Prevailing party’s Our attorney On demand In any legal proceeding

legal costs fees, court (including arbitration), if you lose
costs, and and we prevail, you must pay our
other expenses attorney fees, court costs and
of a legal other expenses.
proceeding, if
we are the
prevailing
party

National Annual
Meeting (Christmas
Party)

No more than
$3,000 for up
to 2 people,
plus travel and
lodging. $700
for each
additional
person over 2.

Annually upon
demand

You must send a Principal
Executive, your General
Manager, all of your sales
managers, and anyone we require
to attend our National Annual
Meeting each year. The cost of
attendance shall be adjusted for
inflation each year per the
consumer price index. You are
responsible for all travel and
lodging costs and your payroll
expenses for employees who
attend.

Bootcamp Sales
Meetings

No more than
$3,000 for up
to 2 people,
plus travel and
lodging. $700
for each
additional
person over 2.

Semi-Annually

You must send a Principal
Executive, your General
Manager, all of your sales
managers, and anyone we require
to attend our semi-annual
Bootcamp Sales Meetings each
year. The cost of attendance shall
be adjusted for inflation each
year per the consumer price
index. You are responsible for all
travel and lodging costs and your
payroll expenses for employees
who attend.

Best Choice Roofing Franchising, LLC FDD 2023
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Type of Fee Amount Due Date Remarks
Broker Fees Our actual As incurred If you transfer your Best Choice
cost of the Roofing franchise to a third-party
brokerage or purchaser, you must reimburse
commissions, all of our actual costs for
finder’s fees, commissions, finder’s fees and
or similar similar charges in addition to
charges paying us the Transfer Fee.
Quarterly Quality Our actual On demand We may inspect your franchise
Assurance Inspection | cost to on a quarterly basis and may
complete the assess this inspection fee if you
inspection fail to meet the System
plus $1,000 Standards.
Owens Corning $2,500 Due upon receipt See Note 4.
Annual Membership | Annually of bill
101K TV Service Fee | Then-current | Annually on Prior to opening for business, you
fee. Currently | demand. will pay us $210 for the 101k TV
$210 per year. Service, which allows us to
stream content to a television
display at your Franchised
Business. This fee is due to us
annually thereafter.

All fees are payable only to us, including the software subscription charges, unless we
designate otherwise. All fees are non-refundable. All fees are uniform for all franchisees, although
we reserve the right to change, waive, or eliminate fees for any one or more franchisees as we
deem appropriate.

There are currently no marketing cooperatives, purchasing cooperatives, or other
cooperatives that impose fees on you.

Notes

1. “Gross Sales” is defined in your franchise agreement as the total dollar amount of
all sales generated through your business for a given period, including, but not limited to, payment
for any services or products sold by you, whether for cash or credit. Gross Sales does not include
(1) bona fide refunds to customers, (ii) sales taxes collected, (iii1) sales of used equipment not in the
ordinary course of business, or (iv) sales of prepaid cards or similar products (but the redemption
of any such card or product will be included in Gross Sales).

2. Beginning in the sixth month after you open your Franchised Business, there is a

Minimum Weekly Royalty Fee of $300 per week per 100,000 single-family homes in your
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Territory or cumulative Territories and is prorated for single-family homes between the levels
described above in Item 5 of this Disclosure Document. The formula for calculating your
Minimum Weekly Royalty Fee is:

# of Single — Family Homes in your Territory(ies)
100,000

Minimum Weekly Royalty Fee = $300 X

3. Beginning after the third month from the effective date of your Franchise
Agreement, you will pay us a weekly Brand Fund Contribution equal to 1% of your Gross Sales
from the preceding week, in the same manner and at the same time as your Royalty Fee. During
the term of your Franchise Agreement, we may increase the Brand Fund Contribution up to 3% of
your Gross Revenues.

4. We have an agreement with Owens Corning by which our franchisees are eligible
for the Platinum Preferred Contractor Status immediately upon launching their franchised
business, with the 2 years of business requirement being waived. As a Platinum Preferred
Contractor, you will receive a 1% rebate on Owens Corning’s products that are purchased by your
franchise. To be eligible for the status, you must complete a Platinum Preferred application and
have $1 million in GL insurance. To continue being eligible for the Platinum Preferred Contractor
status, you must achieve certain criteria set by Owens Corning. You are required to continue to be
a Platinum Preferred member during the Term of the Franchise Agreement. All fees are paid
directly to Owens Corning, the first annual payment of $2,500.00 must be made prior to opening
your franchise for business.

Item 7
ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT - ONE TERRITORY

To whom
exTZ’rIl) gi:lfre Amount Mztl:::gn(;f When due payment is to
P pay be made
.. . Upon signing the
Initial 1 §59,500- 859,500 | CheCK OrWIre | g chise Us
franchise fee transfer
agreement
Vendors,
Travel & Living Airlines,
Expenses While As incurred or Hotels, Car
Attending Initial $1,000 - $2,000 Asarranged | e billed Rental
Training Companies,
etc.
Rent & Security
Deposit (3 $3,000 - $7,000 As arranged As incurred Landlord
Months)?
Leasehold Landlord,
Improvements’ $0 - $15,000 As arranged As arranged Lender, or
Contractors
14
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Type of

Method of

To whom

. Amount When due payment is to
expenditure payment be made
Equipment" $0 - $1,000 As arranged As arranged Vendors
Furniture,
Office
Equipment & $3,500 - $9,000 As arranged As arranged Vendors
Software
Vehicle® $0 - $12,500 As arranged As incurred I;?:I(llg(r)rc;r
Signs $500 - $1,000 As arranged As incurred Vendors
) As incurred or
Licenses $200 - $3,000 As arranged when billed Government
Grand Opening .
Marketing® $5,000 - $10,000 As arranged As incurred Vendors
Insurance $2,500 - $3,500 As arranged As incurred égf;ll;:l;:s
Owens Corning Owens
Membership’ $2,500 - $2,500 As arranged Annually Corning
Professional
Fees (Legal and $1,000 - $3,000 As arranged As incurred Yo;ir Att01:[ne3t/
Accounting) or Accountan
Initial
Marketing $11,000 - $11,000 As arranged Prior to opening Us
Materials®
New Hire Kits . .
and Uniforms® $500 - $3,000 As arranged Prior to opening Us
Cal}Le(fjglter $3,300 - $3,300 As arranged Prior to opening Us
101K TV Fee $210 - $210 As arranged Prior to opening Us
Additional
funds (for first 3 $20,000 - $50,000 As arranged Varies Empl"lyees’
months)"! suppliers
Total $113,710 - $196,510

Neither we nor our affiliates will offer financing for any part of the initial investment.

Notes

1.

If (1) you fail to complete the initial training program to our satisfaction, or (2) we

conclude, no more than 10 days after you complete the initial training program, that you do not
have the ability to satisfactorily operate your franchise, then we have the right to terminate your
franchise agreement. If we do so, we will refund your franchise fee less any out-of-pocket costs
we have incurred, subject to your signing a general release of our liability. Otherwise, all fees paid
to us our affiliates are non-refundable.

Best Choice Roofing Franchising, LLC FDD 2023
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2. You must obtain and maintain a business office that meets our requirements. If you
already lease or own premises, you should review your lease or purchase documents to evaluate
the cost of real estate rental. If not, lease terms will vary in rental amounts, lease terms, amount
of space required, tenant improvements required, security deposit and advance rental required.
Location is a major factor in the amount of rent required. These estimates may not cover advance
rental deposits, insurance and similar expenses. You may elect to own your own Premises, in
which case it is not possible for us to estimate the cost because of the wide variations in price and
financing options. If you rent real estate for the premises, you may be liable for the entire term of
the lease whether or not you succeed in the Franchised Business. The cost could be higher if you
or your landlord request changes from the standard design and materials.

3. If you already lease or own premises, you should review your lease or purchase
documents to evaluate the cost of real estate leasehold improvements. If not, lease situations will
vary in rental amounts, lease terms, amount of space required, and tenant improvements required.
Size, configuration and landlord requirements will be major factors in cost. Some landlords
finance leasehold improvements by amortizing them over the lease term and charging a higher
rental amount to cover the cost. You should attempt to determine your costs and financing options
before deciding on premises.

4. The cost of equipment could vary widely depending primarily upon your
circumstances. Some new franchisees will have existing businesses and will already have some
of the equipment they will need. This may or may not be your situation. However, even if you
have an existing Best Choice Roofing Franchise business that is fully equipped, you may need
additional or different equipment if you are expanding your operations or to comply with our
standards. The initial equipment consists of ladders, harnesses, cougar paws, and other light
equipment that your sales employees will need.

5. You are not required to purchase a vehicle, but you are allowed to purchase or
otherwise utilize a vehicle in the operation of your franchise. If you do utilize a vehicle, you may,
but are not required to, wrap it in our proprietary marks. Our low-end estimate assumes you lease
the vehicle with no down payment. If you choose to lease or finance a vehicle, your cost will be
determined by your credit worthiness and the options you select.

6. You must spend at least $5,000 on grand opening marketing for your franchise.
This amount must be paid to our preferred online marketing vendor and must be spent between the
four weeks preceding your opening date and the two weeks following your opening date.

7. Owens Corning Annual Membership fee. We have an agreement with Owens
Corning of which our franchisees are eligible for the Platinum Preferred Contractor Status
immediately upon launching their franchised business, with the 2 years of business requirement
being waived. As a Platinum Preferred Contractor, franchisees are given a 1% rebate on Owens
Corning’s products that are purchased by your franchise. To be eligible for the status, the
Franchisee must complete a Platinum Preferred application and have $1 million in GL insurance.
To continue being eligible for the Platinum Preferred Contractor status, franchisees must achieve
certain criteria set by Owens Corning. You are required to continue to be Platinum Preferred
member during the Term of this Agreement. All fees are paid directly to Owens Corning, the first
payment of $2,500.00 must be made prior to opening of your Franchise.
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8. The Initial Marketing Materials include TVs, apparel, banners, diagrams, and door
hangers among other marketing pieces and may vary depending on the season in which you
purchase your franchise.

9. You will initially purchase at least ten new hire kits, including uniforms, from us.
These are for your sales representatives.

10. The Call Center Fee is paid to us for our affiliate’s call center services. The Call
Center Fee is $3,300 per every three Territories that you purchase. This estimate is for one
Territory. See the Multiple Territories chart, below, for more information regarding the Call Center
Fee for multiple Territories.

11. These estimates are for your initial start-up expenses. We recommend having
significant cash reserves to cover the cost of ordering roofing materials from suppliers while
awaiting full payment from customers. This estimate includes payroll costs and various service
costs such as utilities. These estimates do not include owner compensation or return on investment.
We have based the estimates in this table on our experience of opening 31 corporate locations.

YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT — MULTIPLE TERRITORIES

To whom
Typ e'of Amount Method of When due payment is to
expenditure payment be made
Cumulative $99,500 - $344,500 | Check or wire | UPOM signing the
Initial (2 - 10 Territories) transfer Franchise Us
Franchise Fee anste Agreement
Initial
Ir(l)vestmep!: to $50,910 — $133,710 See Preceding Chart for Single Territory Investment
pen Initial
Business!
Additional $0 - $9,900 Check or wire Prior to
Call Center L > - . Us
Fee? (2 Territories) (10 Territories) transfer opening
Total $150,410 — $488,110
Neither we nor our affiliates will offer financing for any part of the initial investment.
Note
1. Please refer to the table for the Estimated Initial Investment for a Single Territory

for expenses associated with opening the initial Best Choice Roofing business for one Territory
under a Franchise Agreement. This amount does not include the Initial Franchise Fee for one
Territory, which is included within the Cumulative Initial Franchise Fee amounts in the row above.

2. The low-end of this estimate is $0 because the first three Territories are covered by
the $3,300 Call Center Fee under the Initial Investment to Open Initial Business. You will pay an
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additional $3,300 Call Center Fee for 4-6 Territories. You will pay an additional $6,600 Call
Center Fee for 7-9 Territories. If you purchase ten Territories, you will pay an additional Call
Center Fee of $9,900, which, together with the Call Center Fee for 1-3 Territories, results in a total
Call Center Fee of $13,200.

Item 8
RESTRICTIONS ON SOURCES OF PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

Generally

We have the right to require you to purchase or lease all goods, services, supplies, fixtures,
equipment, inventory, computer hardware and software, real estate, or comparable items related
to establishing or operating your business either (1) from us, our designee or suppliers approved
by us, or (2) according to our specifications.

Specific Obligations

The following are our current specific obligations for purchases and leases:

A. Insurance. You must obtain insurance as described in the Franchise Agreement and
in our Manual, which includes (i) Commercial General Liability insurance, including products
liability coverage, and broad form commercial liability coverage, written on an “occurrence”
policy form in an amount of not less than $1,000,000 single limit per occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate limit, (i1) Business Automobile Liability insurance including owned, leased, non-owned
and hired automobiles coverage in an amount of not less than $1,000,000, and (iii) Workers
Compensation coverage as required by state law, but no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and
$2,000,000 in the aggregate. Your insurance policies must add us and our affiliates as additional
insured.

B. Initial Marketing Package. You must initially purchase from us and/or our affiliate
an initial marketing package consisting of certain marketing materials you will use in your
Franchised Business. We and our affiliate, Best Choice Roofing & Home Improvement, Inc. are
currently the only approved vendors for the initial equipment package. Our affiliate, Storm Leads,
Inc., is currently the only approved call center vendor. We or our designated vendor(s) will make
a wholesale profit consistent with industry standards. Our owner, Wayne Holloway, owns an
interest in both Best Choice Roofing & Home Improvement, Inc. and Storm Leads, Inc. and will
derive revenue from required franchisee purchases through his ownership in those affiliates of
ours.

Alternative Suppliers

If you want to use a supplier that is not on our list of approved suppliers, you must request
our approval in writing. We will grant or revoke approvals of suppliers based on criteria
appropriate to the situation, which may include evaluations of the supplier’s capacity, quality,
financial stability, reputation, and reliability; inspections; product testing, and performance
reviews. Our criteria for approving suppliers are not available to you. We permit you to contract
with alternative suppliers who meet our criteria only if you request our approval in writing, and
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we grant approval. There is no fee for us to review or approve an alternate supplier. We will
provide you with written notification of the approval or disapproval of any supplier you propose
within 30 days after receipt of your request. We may grant approvals of new suppliers or revoke
past approvals of suppliers on written notice to you, or by updating our Manual.

Issuing Specifications and Standards

We issue specifications and standards to you for applicable aspects of the franchise in our
Manual and/or in written directives. We may issue new specifications and standards for any aspect
of our brand system, or modify existing specifications and standards, at any time by revising our
Manual and/or issuing new written directives (which may be communicated to you by any method
we choose). We will generally (but are not obligated to) issue new or revised specifications only
after thorough testing in our headquarters, in company-owned outlets, and/or a limited market test
in multiple units.

Revenue to Us and Our Affiliates

We and our affiliates will derive revenue from the required purchases and leases by
franchisees. During the previous fiscal year ended December 31, 2021, neither we nor our affiliates
derived any revenue from vendors based on required purchases and leases by franchisees made in
accordance with our specifications because we did not have any active franchisees. Because of
common industry practices, we expect to receive rebates, discounts and allowances from some
vendors with whom you do business. We expect the amount and availability of discounts to vary
from time to time based upon factors outside our control. Best Choice Roofing Franchising, LLC
will receive rebates from Owens Corning, our designated supplier for roofing material, as well as
from ABC Supply, Beacon Supply, Superior Distribution, and Lomanco Products, based on
required franchisee purchases.

Proportion of Required Purchases and Leases

We estimate that the required purchases and leases to establish your business are 90% to
100% of your total purchases and leases to establish your business.

We estimate that the required purchases and leases to operate your business are 90% to
100% of your total purchases and leases to operate your business.

Payments by Designated Suppliers to Us

You must purchase all payroll services through our approved vendor, ADP. ADP pays us
a 10% rebate during the first year of service with each franchisee. You must purchase ridge vents
from our approved supplier, Lomanco Products. Lomanco Products pays us a rebate on all ridge
vents purchased by our franchisees ranging from 2.5% to 5%. You will pay us for your Initial
Marketing Materials, which we will order for you from our supplier, which will be Blink
Marketing or another approved supplier. Blink Marketing pays us a rebate of 5% on all purchases
we make on behalf of our franchisees, which covers our administrative cost related to the branding
of certain merchandise and shipping it from the manufacturer to our franchisees. You will engage
our designated supplier, Structure M, for strategy development, brand messaging, and search
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engine optimization campaigns among other marketing efforts. Structure M will pay us a rebate
equal to 5% of the amount our franchisees spend on these services.

Other than as stated above, we do not currently receive payments from any designated
suppliers based on purchases by you or other franchisees. However, the franchise agreement does

not prohibit us from doing so.

Purchasing or Distribution Cooperatives

No purchasing or distribution cooperative currently exists.

Negotiated Arrangements

We have negotiated purchase arrangements with suppliers, including price terms, for the
benefit of franchisees. Some of the benefits we have negotiated may include rebates, discounts, or

other incentives.

Benefits Provided to You For Purchases

We, ourselves, do not provide any material benefit to you based on your purchase of
particular goods or services, or your use of particular suppliers. However, as stated above, we have
negotiated such benefits with certain suppliers.

Item 9

FRANCHISEE’S OBLIGATIONS

This table lists your principal obligations under the franchise and other agreements.
It will help you find more detailed information about your obligations in these agreements
and in other items of this disclosure document.

Section in Franchise

Obligation Disclosure document item
Agreement

a. Site selection and acquisition/lease §6.1 Item 11

b. Pre-opening purchase/leases §§ 6.2,6.3 Items 5,7, 8 and 11

c. Sl'Fe development and other pre-opening Article 6 Items 5, 7, 8 and 11

requirements

d. Initial and ongoing training §§54,64,7.6 Items 5, 6, 8 and 11

e. Opening §§ 6.5, 6.6 Items 7, 8 and 11

f. Fees Article 4, §3 5.5,7.8,10.5, Items 5, 6 and 7

11.2,11.3,15.2,16.1,17.6

g. Compliance with standards and
policies/operating manual

§§63,7.1,73,7.5,7.7,
7.9 -7.13,7.15,10.1, 10.4,
11.1

Items &, 11 and 14

h. Trademarks and proprietary information

Article 12, § 13.1

Items 13 and 14

1. Restrictions on products/services offered

§7.3

Items &, 11 and 16
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Obligation

Section in Franchise

Disclosure document item

Agreement
j. Wgrranty and customer service §87.3,7.8.7.9 Item 8
requirements
k. Territorial development and sales quotas | Not applicable Item 12
1. Ongoing product/service purchases Article 8 Items 6 and 8
m. Mam‘tenance,' appearance, and §§7.12,7.13 Items 6, 7 and 8
remodeling requirements
n. Insurance §7.15 Items 6, 7 and 8
0. Advertising Article 9 Items 6,7, 8 and 11
p. Indemnification Article 16 Items 6 and 8
. Owner’s
garticipation/management/stafﬁng 324 Ttems 15
r. Records and reports Article 10 Item 11
s. Inspections and audits §§ 10.5,11.2 Items 6 and 11
t. Transfer Article 15 Items 6 and 17
u. Renewal §3.2 Item 17
v. Post-termination obligations Article 13, § 14.3 Item 17
w. Non-competition covenants § 13.2 Item 17
x. Dispute resolution Article 17 Items 6 and 17
Item 10
FINANCING

We do not offer direct or indirect financing. We do not guarantee your note, lease or

obligations.

Item 11

FRANCHISOR’S ASSISTANCE, ADVERTISING, COMPUTER SYSTEMS, AND

TRAINING

Except as listed below, we are not required to provide you with any assistance.

Qur Pre-Opening Obligations

Before you open your business:

A. Your site. We do not assist you in (i) locating your site and negotiating the purchase
or lease of the site, (i1) conforming the premises to local ordinances and building codes and
obtaining any required permits, or (iil) constructing, remodeling, or decorating the premises.
However, we will either approve of or deny your site within 10 business days following our receipt
from you of a copy of the proposed lease or sub-lease and such other information about the
proposed premises as we may require. If we have not notified you within 10 business days
following receipt of the required information, approval of your site shall be deemed approved. We
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consider the following factors in approving your site: demographics of the surrounding area; the
type of nearby development; zoning; physical characteristics of the proposed site; the status of
nearby competition; the economics of the proposed site; and access issues. We typically do not
own premises that are leased to franchisees. If you do not submit a proposed site for our review
within 45 days of signing the Franchise Agreement, we may terminate your Franchise Agreement.
If you do not enter into a lease for a site, subject to our approval, within 180 days of signing the
Franchise Agreement, we may terminate your Franchise Agreement. (Section 5.4)

B. Hiring and training employees. We will provide you with our suggested staffing
levels (Section 5.2), suggested guidelines for hiring employees (Section 5.2), operational
instructions in the Manual which you can use as part of training new employees (Section 5.3), and
our initial training program described below. All hiring decisions and conditions of employment
are your sole responsibility.

C. Necessary equipment, signs, fixtures, opening inventory, and supplies. We will
provide you a list of our specifications and approved suppliers for equipment, signs, fixtures,
opening inventory, and supplies necessary to open your business. We will not deliver or install
these items for you.

D. Manual. We will give you access to our Manual (Section 5.1). See Exhibit E for
the table of contents of our Manual as of the date of this disclosure document. There are currently
209 pages in the Manual.

E. Initial Training Program. We will conduct our initial training program. (Section
5.4). The current initial training program is described below.

F. Market Introduction Plan. We will advise you regarding the planning and execution
of your Market Introduction Plan. (Section 5.4).

Length of Time To Open

The typical length of time between signing the franchise agreement and the opening of
your business is 90 to 120 days. Factors that may affect the time period include obtaining licenses,
equipment availability, shipping delays, custom orders, your ability to obtain financing, obtain
business permits and licenses, schedule initial training, take delivery of required equipment, and
hire employees. You must open for business within six months from signing the Franchise
Agreement.

Qur Post-Opening Obligations

After you open your business:

A. Developing products or services you will offer to your customers. Although it is our
intent and practice to refine and develop products or services that you will offer to your customers,
the franchise agreement does not obligate us to do so.

B. Improving and developing your business, resolving operating problems you
encounter. If you request, we will provide advice to you (by telephone or electronic
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communication) regarding improving and developing your business, and resolving operating
problems you encounter, to the extent we deem reasonable. If we provide in-person support in
response to your request, we may charge a fee (currently $500 per day) plus any out-of-pocket
expenses (such as travel, lodging, and meals for our employees providing onsite support). (Section
5.5).

C. Establishing prices. We may establish minimum and maximum prices for products
and services. (Section 5.5). We have the right to determine prices charged by our franchisees for
goods and services (but only to the extent permitted by applicable law).

D. Establishing and using administrative, bookkeeping, accounting, and inventory
control procedures. We will provide you our required providers and procedures for administration,
bookkeeping, accounting, and inventory control. (Section 5.5). We may make any such procedures
part of required (and not merely recommended) procedures for our system.

E. Brand Fund. We will administer the Brand Fund. (Section 5.5).

F. Website. We will maintain a website for the Best Choice Roofing brand, which will
include your business location and the local telephone number that we establish for you. You will
be prohibited from creating any websites for the promotion of your franchised business. (Section
5.5)

Advertising

(1) Our obligation. We will use the Brand Fund only for marketing and related
purposes and costs. Media coverage is primarily local. The marketing is in-house and we use
internal marketing employees and outside vendors and consultants to produce advertising, and we
may use Brand Fund funds for these purposes. We are not required to spend any amount of
advertising in the area or territory where any particular franchisee is located. We will maintain the
brand website (which will be paid for by the Brand Fund). We have no other obligation to conduct
advertising.

(11) Your own advertising material. You may use your own advertising or marketing
material only with our approval. To obtain our approval, you must submit any proposed advertising
or marketing material at least 14 days prior to use. If we do not respond, the material is deemed
rejected. If you develop any advertising or marketing materials, we may use those materials for
any purpose, without any payment to you.

(iii)  Grand Opening Marketing. You must spend at least $5,000 on Grand Opening
Marketing to advertise the opening of your franchised business. This amount must be spent
between the four weeks before and the two weeks after your opening date. (Section 9.7).

(111)  Advertising council. We have not created an advertising counsel, but we reserve the
right to create one comprised of franchisees and our employees.

(iv)  Local or Regional Advertising Cooperatives. We do not currently have any local or
regional advertising cooperatives. We have the right to require you to participate in a local or
regional advertising cooperative. We will define the area of the cooperative based on media
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markets, or other geographic criteria that we deem appropriate. Each franchisee in the area would
have one vote (unless the franchisee is in default under its franchise agreement). The amount you
must contribute to the cooperative will be determined by vote of the members, but not less than
1% of gross sales. If our own outlets are members of a cooperative, they must contribute to the
cooperative on the same basis as franchisees, and they will vote on the same basis as other
members. If our outlets have controlling voting power, there is no maximum on fees that could be
imposed. We administer the cooperative, but we have the right to delegate responsibility for
administration to an outside company such as an advertising agency or accounting firm, or to the
franchisee members of the cooperative. We have the right to require the cooperative to operate
from written bylaws or other governing documents that we determine. The documents are not
currently available for you to review. Cooperatives will prepare annual financial statements which
will be available for review only by us and by the members of cooperative. We have the power to
require cooperatives to be formed, changed, dissolved, or merged.

v) Brand Fund Contributions. You and all other franchisees must contribute to our
Brand Fund. Your contribution is currently 1% of gross sales per month. We reserve the right to
increase the Brand Fund contribution to up to 3% of gross sales per month. All franchisees
contribute the same percentage. Outlets that we own are not obligated to contribute to the Brand
Fund. We administer the fund. The fund is not audited. We will make unaudited annual financial
statements available to you upon request. (Section 9.3).

In our fiscal year ending December 31, 2022, we did not collect any money from Brand
Fund contributions. If not all funds are spent in the fiscal year in which they accrue, the money
will remain in the Brand Fund to be spent in the next year. No money from the Brand Fund is spent
principally to solicit new franchise sales.

(vi)  Market Introduction Plan. Y ou must develop a Market Introduction Plan and obtain
our approval of the plan at least 30 days before the projected opening date of your business.
(Section 9.5).

Computer Systems

We require you to purchase and use computer systems and software as follows:

QuickBooks Enterprise, hosted by Right Networks
Job Nimbus CRM

Natural Forms

GroupMe

Email services (provided by us)

Computer(s)

Smart Phone(s)

Best Choice Roofing Proprietary Software

These systems provide management tools, operational systems, logistics and business
systems needed to operate the franchised business. These systems will generate or store data such
as marketing, financial, customer and order data. The Best Choice Roofing Proprietary Software
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costs approximately $151 per month and $25 per additional user, and is separate from the cost of
the actual device that the software is run on.

We will have direct access to your CRM and to QuickBooks for contract entry and financial
inspections. You must provide Job Nimbus for all employees, and your sales representatives must
have Job Nimbus access no later than ten days after their employment by you. We own your CRM
and will set up your account and approve users. Your QuickBooks account will need to be hosted
by our required vendor, Right Networks, at your cost. You will grant us full administrative access
to QuickBooks.

We estimate that these systems will cost between $250 and $500 to purchase/subscribe.
We are not obligated to provide any ongoing maintenance, repairs, upgrades, or updates. We do
not require you to enter into any such contract with a third party. However, we may do so in the
future. You must upgrade or update any system when we determine. There is no contractual limit
on the frequency or cost of this obligation. We estimate that the annual cost of any optional or
required maintenance, updating, upgrading, or support contracts will be $100 to $300.

You must give us independent access to the information that will be generated or stored in
these systems. The information that we may access will include sales, customer data, and reports.

There is no contractual limitation on our right to access the information.

Training Program

Our training program consists of the following:

TRAINING PROGRAM
. Hours of Classroom Hours of On-The-Job .
Subject .. . . Location
Training Training
Orientation: Best Choice 1 0 Hendersonville, TN
Roofing
Ob;j ectl'ves of the 2 0 Hendersonville, TN
Franchisor
Best Choice Roofing New .
Sales Rep Day 1 Training 4 0 Hendersonville, TN
Best Choice Roofing New .
Sales Rep Day 2 Training 4 0 Hendersonville, TN
Ofﬁcg Administrator 4 0 Hendersonville, TN
Training
Best Choice Roofing Sales .
Meeting and Ride-along 1 4 Hendersonville, TN
with an Existing
Rep/Manager (1/2)
Job Nimbus Training 2 0 Hendersonville, TN
New Qfﬁce Dev.e10p ment, 6 0 Hendersonville, TN
Including Recruiting and
Amassing Sales Reps
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. Hours of Classroom Hours of On-The-Job .
Subject .. . . Location
Training Training

Contract Entry 2 0 Hendersonville, TN
Af:counts Payables — Roof 2 0 Hendersonville, TN
Bills, Commissions
Prodqctlon Manager 2 0 Hendersonville, TN
Training
Pr‘?d}”tlor} Manager 0 3 Hendersonville, TN
training — in field
Best Choice Roofing Sales .
Meeting (2/2) 1 0 Hendersonville, TN
Accounts Receivables 3 0 Hendersonville, TN
Closing 1 0 Hendersonville, TN

TOTALS: 35 Hours 7 Hours

Training classes will be scheduled in accordance with the needs of new franchisees and
may include remote/virtual training as well as in-person training. We anticipate holding in-person
training classes once per month. Training will be held at our offices and business location(s) in
Tennessee, or we may hold training, at our discretion, at your location or the location of another
franchisee.

The instructional materials consist of the Manual and other materials, lectures, discussions,
and on-the-job demonstration and practice.

Training classes will be overseen by Wayne Holloway and led by members of our franchise
support staff, including your assigned business coach, who have at least 1 year of experience in
the roofing industry. Mr. Holloway’s experience is described in Item 2 of this Disclosure
Document.

There is no fee for up to 3 people to attend training. You must pay the travel and living
expenses of people attending training. You must attend training. You may send any additional
persons to training that you want (up to the maximum described above). If you wish to send more
than 3 people to initial training, you must pay us $1,000 per person. You must complete training
to our satisfaction before opening your business. We currently require your principal executive,
your general manager, your sales managers and anyone in your business with decision-making
authority to attend two additional semi-annual sales training “Bootcamps.” The attendance fee for
the first two individuals we require you to send to the semi-annual Bootcamps will not exceed
$3,000. For additional people beyond the first two, the Bootcamp attendance fee will be $700 per
person. These attendance fees will be adjusted annually for inflation. We do not currently require
other additional training programs or refresher courses, but we have the right to do so.
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Item 12
TERRITORY

Grant of Territory

You will not receive an exclusive territory. You may face competition from other
franchisees, from outlets that we own, or from other channels of distribution or competitive brands
that we control. The territory will include a defined area approved by us and will be documented
as a territory of consisting of approximately 100,000 single-family homes. As described in Item
5, you may purchase additional areas within your territory for $0.60 per single-family homes, or
you may purchase additional entire territories.

The number of single-family homes within your territory shall be determined by our
mapping software, GbBis, which pulls population and other data from various sources, including
the most current United States Census data.

Relocation; Establishment of Additional Qutlets

You may relocate your business headquarters anywhere in your territory. You do not have
the right to establish additional franchised outlets or expand into additional territories. If you desire
to do so, you must (1) pay us additional franchise fees, (2) be in compliance with your Franchise
Agreement at all times since opening your business, (3) have demonstrated your capability to
operate a multi-territory franchise successfully, and (4) obtain our approval. You do not receive
any options, rights of first refusal, or similar rights to acquire additional franchises.

Protected Territory

We grant you a protected territory. You do not receive an exclusive territory. In your
territory, we will not establish a Best Choice Roofing outlet, nor license or franchise another party
to establish a Best Choice Roofing outlet. Continuation of your territorial rights does not depend
on any contingency. There are no circumstances that permit us to modify your territorial rights.

Restrictions on Us From Soliciting or Accepting Orders In Your Territory

Except as described in this paragraph, we will not serve customers in your territory, nor
authorize another party to serve customers in your territory, under our Best Choice Roofing brand.
However, we may serve (or authorize other franchisees to serve) customers in your territory if you
are in default, or if you are incapable of meeting customer demand in your territory. We may also
serve (or authorize another franchisee to serve) a particular customer in your territory if you fail
to properly serve such customer, or if we reasonably believe that you will not properly serve such
customer. We reserve the right to use other channels of distribution, such as the internet, catalog
sales, telemarketing, or other direct marketing sales, to make sales within your territory (1) using
our principal trademarks, but only for sales of products or services different from the ones you will
offer, and (i1) using trademarks different from the ones you will use. In the circumstances where
the franchise agreement does not prohibit us from soliciting or accepting orders from inside your
territory, we do not pay any compensation to you.
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Soliciting by You Outside Your Territory

You cannot solicit or market to potential customers outside of your territory without our
prior written permission. You cannot provide services outside of your territory without our prior
written permission. If 10% or more of your Gross Sales are derived from providing services outside
of your territory, we may, in our sole discretion, require you to purchase one or more additional
territories. We may withdraw permission at any time. You do not have any right to use other
channels of distribution, such as the Internet, catalog sales, telemarketing, or other direct marketing
to make sales outside of your territory. If you provide services at any location outside of your
Territory without our prior written permission, we may impose a fee equal to the greater of (i)
$500 or (ii) 75% of the amount paid by such customer to you. This fee is a reasonable estimate of
our internal cost of personnel time attributable to addressing your breach of the applicable section
of the Franchise Agreement, and it is not a penalty or estimate of all damages arising from such
breach. This fee is in addition to all of our other rights and remedies.

Competition by Us Under Different Trademarks

Neither we nor any of our affiliates operates, franchises, or has plans to operate or franchise
a business under a different trademark selling goods or services similar to those you will offer.
However, the Franchise Agreement does not prohibit us from doing so.

Item 13
TRADEMARKS

The following is the principal trademark that we license to you. This trademark is owned
by our Affiliate, Best Choice Roofing & Home Improvement, Inc., which has licensed it to us
pursuant to the terms below. The below trademark is registered on the Principal Register of the
United States Patent and Trademark Office.

Trademark Registration Date Registration Number

B C R July 17,2012 Reg. No. 4175360

Best Choice Roofing
You (hose the Best!

All affidavits required so far have been filed for the trademark and the registration has been
renewed. We do not know of any prior rights or infringing uses that could materially affect our
franchisees’ use of the trademarks.
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Litigation

There are no presently active determinations of the Patent Office, the Trademark
Administrator of any state or any court, any pending interference, opposition or cancellation
proceeding or any pending material litigation involving the Marks that is relevant to Your ability
to use the Marks in connection with the Franchised Business.

Agreements

There are no currently effective agreements that significantly limit our rights to use or
license the use of trademark listed above in a manner material to the franchise.

Our affiliate, Best Choice Roofing & Home Improvement, Inc., owns the trademark
described in this Item. Under an Intercompany License Agreement between us and Best Choice
Roofing & Home Improvement, Inc., we have been granted the exclusive right to sublicense the
trademarks to franchisees throughout the United States. The agreement is of perpetual duration. It
may be modified only by mutual consent of the parties. It may be canceled by our affiliate only if
(1) we materially misuse the trademarks and fail to correct the misuse, or (2) we discontinue
commercial use of the trademarks for a continuous period of more than one year. The
Intercompany License Agreement specifies that if it is ever terminated, your franchise rights will
remain unaffected.

Protection of Rights

We protect your right to use the principal trademarks listed in this Item, and we protect you
against claims of infringement or unfair competition arising out of your use of the trademarks, to
the extent described in this section.

The Franchise Agreement obligates you to notify us of the use of, or claims of rights to, a
trademark identical to or confusingly similar to a trademark licensed to you. The Franchise
Agreement does not require us to take affirmative action when notified of these uses or claims. We
have the right to control any administrative proceedings or litigation involving a trademark
licensed by us to you.

If you use our trademark in accordance with the Franchise Agreement, then (1) we will
defend you (at our expense) against any legal action by a third party alleging infringement by your
use of the trademark, and (i1) we will indemnify you for expenses and damages if the legal action
is resolved unfavorably to you.

Under the Franchise Agreement, we may require you to modify or discontinue using a
trademark, at your expense.
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Item 14
PATENTS, COPYRIGHTS AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION

Patents

No patents are material to the franchise. We do not have any pending patent applications
that are material to the franchise.

Copyrights

All of our original works of authorship fixed in a tangible medium of expression are
automatically protected under the U.S. Copyright Act, whether or not we have obtained
registrations. This includes our Manual as well as all other sales, training, management and other
materials that we have created or will create. You may use these copyrighted materials during the
term of the franchise, in a manner consistent with our ownership rights, solely for your franchised
business.

We do not have any registered copyrights. There are no pending copyright applications for
our copyrighted materials. There are no currently effective determinations of the U.S. Copyright
Office (Library of Congress) or any court regarding any copyright.

There are no agreements currently in effect that limit our right to use or license the use of
our copyrighted materials.

We have no obligation to protect any of our copyrights or to defend you against claims
arising from your use of copyrighted items. The franchise agreement does not require us to take
affirmative action when notified of copyright infringement. We control any copyright litigation.
We may require you to modify or discontinue using the subject matter covered by any of our
copyrights.

We do not know of any copyright infringement that could materially affect you.

Proprietary Information

We have a proprietary, confidential Manual and related materials that include guidelines,
standards and policies for the development and operation of your business. We also claim
proprietary rights in other confidential information or trade secrets that include all methods for
developing and operating the business, and all non-public plans, data, financial information,
processes, vendor pricing, supply systems, marketing systems, formulas, techniques, technical
designs, equipment designs, layouts, operating procedures, customer data, information and know-
how.

You (and your owners, if the franchise is owned by an entity) must protect the
confidentiality of our Manual and other proprietary information, and you must use our confidential
information only for your franchised business. We may require your managers and key employees
to sign confidentiality agreements and non-compete agreements, pursuant to local law.
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Protection of Rights

We protect your right to use any patents listed in this Item, and we protect you against
claims of infringement or unfair competition arising out of your use of the patents or copyrights,
to the extent described in this section.

The Franchise Agreement obligates you to notify us of the use of, or claims of rights to, a
patent or copyright identical to or confusingly similar to a patent or copyright licensed to you. The
franchise agreement does not require us to take affirmative action when notified of these uses or
claims. We have the right to control any administrative proceedings or litigation involving a patent
or copyright licensed by us to you.

If you use our patents or copyrights in accordance with the franchise agreement, then (i)
we will defend you (at our expense) against any legal action by a third party alleging infringement
by your use of the patent, and (i1) we will indemnify you for expenses and damages if the legal
action is resolved unfavorably to you.

Under the Franchise Agreement, we may require you to modify or discontinue using a
patent or copyright, at your expense.

Item 15
OBLIGATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THE ACTUAL OPERATION OF THE
FRANCHISE BUSINESS

Your Participation

You are required to participate personally in the supervision of your business.

If you are the sole owner of the business, then you are deemed the “Principal Executive”.
If the business is owned through a corporation or limited liability company, you must designate
one person as your “Principal Executive.” The Principal Executive is the executive primarily
responsible for your business and has decision-making authority on behalf of the business. The
Principal Executive must own at least 10% of the business. The Principal Executive must complete
our initial training program. The Principal Executive must complete any post-opening training
programs that we develop in the future. The Principal Executive must attend all in-person meetings
and remote meetings (such as telephone conference calls), including regional or national brand
conferences, that we require. The Principal Executive must attend all required meetings, including
the Bootcamp Sales meetings and National Annual Meeting (Christmas Party).

If your business is owned by an entity, all owners of the business must sign our Guaranty
and Non-Compete Agreement (see Attachment 2 to Exhibit B). Spouses of each owner that do not
have any ownership interest in your entity will not be required to sign the Guaranty and Non-
Compete Agreement.
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“On-Premises” Supervision

When your business performs services for a customer, you are not required to personally
conduct “on-premises” supervision of your business. You may hire a Production Manager who
will oversee your roofing installation subcontractors and be responsible for customer service.
However, we recommend on-premises supervision by you.

There is no limit on who you can hire as an on-premises supervisor. The general manager
of your business (whether that is you or a hired person) must successfully complete our training
program.

If the franchise business is owned by an entity, we do not require that the general manager
own any equity in the entity.

Restrictions on Your Manager

If we request, you must have your general manager sign a confidentiality and non-compete
agreement. We do not require you to place any other restrictions on your manager.

Restrictions on Disposition of Franchise Equipment

Franchisees may not sell, sublease, scrap, donate, barter, or otherwise dispose of any
franchise equipment without express consent from us. We require first rights to repossess any
equipment used in the operation of a franchise, including but not limited to vehicles, parts,
inventory, tools, and communications devices.

We will compensate the franchisee and/or any lien holders for the repossession of franchise
equipment. Compensation may be reduced by outstanding amounts you owe us.

We have full discretion and rights as it applies to repossessing any of your equipment. Our
rights do not release you from any liens, leases, or financing agreements. We do not co-sign for
any of your equipment, and will not assume liabilities in the event of failure to make payment.

Item 16
RESTRICTIONS ON WHAT THE FRANCHISEE MAY SELL

You must offer for sale only goods and services that we have approved. You must offer for
sale all goods and services that we require. We have the right to change the types of authorized
goods or services, and there are no limits on our right to make changes. We do not restrict your
access to customers, except that all sales must be made to customers in your territory. All sales
must be made through our point of sale system, including issuing invoices and receipts. You may
not collect cash from or otherwise charge customers outside of our point of sale system.

You will be required to perform all Warranty Work for products installed during the term
of the Franchise Agreement by Franchisee during and after the term of the Franchise Agreement.
The Franchise Agreement defines “Warranty Work™ all labor relating to repairing or replacing a
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product installed by you pursuant to such product’s warranty issued by you or the required vendor

of such product.

Item 17

RENEWAL, TERMINATION, TRANSFER, AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION

THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP

This table lists certain important provisions of the franchise and related agreements. You
should read these provisions in the agreements attached to this disclosure document.

Provision

Section in franchise
or other agreement

Summary

a. Length of the franchise
term

F.A.§3.1

10 years from date of franchise
agreement.

b. Renewal or extension of the
term

F.A. §32

You may obtain a successor franchise
agreement for up to two additional 5-year
terms.

c. Requirements for
franchisee to renew or
extend

F.A. §32

For our franchise system, “renewal”
means that at the end of your term, you
sign our successor franchise agreement
for an additional 5-year term. You may
be asked to sign a contract with
materially different terms and conditions
than your original contract.

To renew, you must give advance notice
to us; be in compliance; conform your
business to then-current standards for
new franchisees; sign then-current form
of franchise agreement; sign general
release (unless prohibited by applicable
law) and pay a $10,000 renewal fee.

d. Termination by franchisee

F.A§ 14.1

If we violate a material provision of the
franchise agreement and fail to cure or to
make substantial progress toward curing
the violation within 30 days after notice
from you. (subject to applicable state
law)

e. Termination by franchisor
without cause

F.A. Not Applicable

We may not terminate your franchise
agreement without cause.
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Provision

Section in franchise
or other agreement

Summary

curable defaults

f. Termination by franchisor F.A.§14.2 We may terminate your franchise
with cause agreement for cause, subject to any
applicable notice and cure opportunity.
g. “Cause” defined--curable F.A.§14.2 Non-payment by you (10 days to cure);
defaults violate franchise agreement other than
non-curable default (30 days to cure).
h. “Cause” defined--non- F.A.§14.2 Misrepresentation when applying to be a

franchisee; knowingly submitting false
information; bankruptcy; violation of
law; violation of confidentiality;
violation of non-compete; violation of
transfer restrictions; slander or libel of
us; refusal to cooperate with our audit or
evaluation; cease operations for more
than 15 consecutive days; two defaults in
12 months; cross-termination; charge or
conviction of a felony, or accusation of
an act that is reasonably likely to
materially and unfavorably affect our
brand; any other breach of franchise
agreement which by its nature cannot be
cured.

1. Franchisee’s obligations on
termination/non-renewal

F.A. §§ 143 — 14.6

Pay all amounts due; return Manual and
proprietary items; notify phone, internet,
and other providers and transfer service;
cease doing business; remove
identification; purchase option by us.

J. Assignment of agreement
by franchisor

F.A. §15.1

Unlimited

k. “Transfer” by franchisee -
defined

F.A. Article 1

For you (or any owner of your business)
to voluntarily or involuntarily transfer,
sell, or dispose of, in any single or series
of transactions, (i) substantially all of the
assets of the business, (i1) the franchise
agreement, (iii) direct or indirect
ownership interest of more than 25% of
the business, or (iv) control of the
business.
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Provision

Section in franchise
or other agreement

Summary

1. Franchisor’s approval of
transfer by franchisee

F.A. §152

No transfers without our approval, which
we will not unreasonably withhold.

m. Conditions for franchisor’s
approval of transfer

F.A. §152

Pay transfer fee; buyer meets our
standards; buyer is not a competitor of
ours; buyer and its owners sign our then-
current franchise agreement and
guaranty; you’ve made all payments to us
and are in compliance with the franchise
agreement; buyer completes training
program; you sign a general release;
business complies with then-current
system specifications. If we approve of a
transfer to your spouse, child or sibling,
there will be no transfer fee. If you
transfer your franchise rights to your
spouse, child or sibling, they must sign a
personal guaranty.

n. Franchisor’s right of first
refusal to acquire
franchisee’s business

F.A.§ 155

If you want to transfer your business
(other than to your spouse, sibling, or
child), we have a right of first refusal.

Best Choice Roofing Franchising, LLC FDD 2023

35




Provision

Section in franchise
or other agreement

Summary

o. Franchisor’s option to
purchase franchisee’s
business

F.A. Not Applicable

When the FA expires or is terminated,
Franchisor will have the right (but not the
obligation) to purchase any or all of the
assets related to the business at fair
market value. To exercise this option,
Franchisor must notify Franchisee no
later than 30 days after the FA expires or
is terminated. If the parties cannot agree
on fair market value within 30 days after
the exercise notice, the fair market value
will be determined by an independent
appraiser reasonably acceptable to both
parties. The parties will equally share the
cost of the appraisal. Franchisor’s
purchase will be of assets only (free and
clear of all liens), and the purchase will
not include any liabilities of Franchisee.
If Franchisor exercises the purchase
option, Franchisor may deduct from the
purchase price: (a) all amounts due from
Franchisee; (b) Franchisee’s portion of
the cost of any appraisal conducted
hereunder; and (c¢) amounts which
Franchisor paid or will pay to third
parties to satisfy indebtedness owed by
Franchisee to third parties. If any of the
assets are subject to a lien, Franchisor
may pay a portion of the purchase price
directly to the lienholder to pay off such
lien. Franchisor may withhold 25% of the
purchase price for 90 days to ensure that
all of Franchisee’s taxes and other
liabilities are paid. Franchisor may assign
this purchase option to another party.

p. Death or disability of
franchisee

F.A.§§2.4,15.4

If you die or become incapacitated, a new
principal operator acceptable to us must
be designated to operate the business,
and your executor must transfer the
business to a third party within nine
months. This is subject to our step-in
rights.
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Provision

Section in franchise
or other agreement

Summary

g. Non-competition covenants
during the term of the
franchise

F.A. §132

Neither you, any owner of the business,
or any spouse of an owner may have
ownership interest in, or be engaged or
employed by, any competitor. (subject to
applicable state law)

r. Non-competition covenants
after the franchise is
terminated or expires

F.A. §132

For two years, no ownership of, or
employment by, a competitor operating
in your former territory or the territory of
any other Best Choice Roofing business
operating on the date of termination.
(subject to applicable state law)

s. Modification of the
agreement

F.A. §18.4

No modification or amendment of the
franchise agreement will be effective
unless it is in writing and signed by both
parties. This provision does not limit our
right to modify the Manual or system
specifications.

t. Integration/merger clause

F.A.§ 183

Only the terms of the franchise
agreement are binding (subject to
applicable state law). Any
representations or promises outside of the
disclosure document and franchise
agreement may not be enforceable.
However, no claim made in any franchise
agreement is intended to disclaim the
express representations made in this
Disclosure Document.

u. Dispute resolution by
arbitration or mediation

F.A. §17.1

All disputes are resolved by arbitration
(except for injunctive relief) (subject to
applicable state law).
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Provision

Section in franchise
or other agreement

Summary

v. Choice of forum

F.A.§§17.1;17.5

Arbitration will take place where our
headquarters is located (currently,
Hendersonville, Tennessee) (subject to
applicable state law). Any legal
proceedings not subject to arbitration will
take place in the District Court of the
United States, in the district where our
headquarters is then located, or if this
court lacks jurisdiction, the state courts
of the state and county where our
headquarters is then located (subject to
applicable state law).

w. Choice of law F.A.§18.8 Tennessee law will govern (subject to
applicable state law).
Item 18
PUBLIC FIGURES

We do not use any public figure to promote our franchise.

Item 19

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REPRESENTATIONS

The FTC’s Franchise Rule permits a franchisor to provide information about the actual or
potential financial performance of its franchised and/or franchisor-owned outlets, if there is a
reasonable basis for the information, and if the information is included in the disclosure document.
Financial performance information that differs from that included in Item 19 may be given only
if: (1) a franchisor provides the actual records of an existing outlet you are considering buying; or
(2) a franchisor supplements the information provided in this Item 19, for example, by providing
information about possible performance at a particular location or under particular circumstances.

Each of our corporate-owned locations is wholly owned and operated by our affiliate, Best
Choice Roofing & Home Improvement, Inc. Our corporate-owned locations do not operate within
any territorial boundaries and share services among each other. Due to these material differences
between the operation of our corporate-owned locations and the franchise offered under this
Disclosure Document, we have not included any location-specific financial performance
representations from our corporate-owned locations within this Item 19. We have included a
general, system-wide revenue representation in Chart 7, which includes the total Gross Revenue
from all of our corporate-owned locations.
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We have included historical financial performance representations from certain affiliate-
owned businesses (“Affiliate Outlets”) that operate Best Choice Roofing businesses similar to the
franchise offered under this Disclosure Document. Each of our Affiliate Outlets is owned by
Wayne Holloway and one or more partners through the affiliate entities listed in Item 1 of this
Disclosure Document. Our Affiliate Outlets operate within territories of different sizes. Our
Affiliate Outlets operate one or more locations (each an “Affiliate Location”) as separate
businesses, which are also operated within territories of different sizes. Each Affiliate Location is
granted the right to operate a Best Choice Roofing business within a fifty-mile radius from a
specific location (its “Base Location”). However, each Affiliate Location derives revenue from
providing services within a smaller geographic area that is similar to the territories offered to Best
Choice Roofing franchisees under this Disclosure Document. In Chart 1, the approximate number
of single-family homes within each Affiliate Location’s territory represents the approximate
number of single-family homes in the geographic area in which each Affiliate Location derives
revenue from providing services. The Affiliate Locations derive revenue from areas similar in size
to the different numbers of Territories described in Item 5 and Item 12 of this Disclosure
Document.

Due to differences across the country in the number of single-family households within
any given area, we anticipate that our franchisees will operate in Territories that are both larger
and smaller than our Affiliate Location’s territories depending on the number of Territories our
franchisees purchase and the number of single-family homes within the territories they purchase.
The Affiliate Locations have all been open and operating for certain periods of time, and the years
in which they began operation are disclosed in the table below. Otherwise, there are no material
differences between their operation and the franchise offered under this Disclosure Document. The
Affiliate Locations do not pay Royalty Fees or Brand Fund Contributions to us and do not incur
certain fees associated with operating a Best Choice Roofing franchise as disclosed in Item 6 of
this Disclosure Document. The fees that our Affiliate Locations do not incur that our franchisees
will incur are described in the notes below Chart 3. Other than these fees that our Affiliate
Locations do not incur, there are no material financial differences between our Affiliate Locations
as the franchise offered under this Disclosure Document.

We had twenty-three (23) Affiliate Outlets as of December 31, 2022. There were eight (8)
Affiliate Outlets operating across eighteen (18) Affiliate Locations as of December 31, 2022. Five
(5) additional Affiliate Locations opened during the 2022 Calendar Year, but we have excluded
these Affiliate Locations in Charts 1, 2, 3, 4, and 5 because they were not operated for an entire
year as of December 31, 2022. We had five (5) franchisees open as of December 31, 2022, but we
have excluded these franchisees from this Item 19 because none of our franchisees had been open
for an entire year as of December 31, 2022.

Chart 1 — Overview of Affiliate Locations Open and
Operated for an Entire Year as of December 31, 2022

Affiliate Year

Location Opened Description and Territory Size

. This Location is granted a fifty-mile radius from its Base Location, but derives revenue
Affiliate o . _ . . . .
2016 from providing services within a territory consisting of approximately 462,919 single-

Location 1 .
ocation family homes.
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Affiliate

This Location is granted a fifty-mile radius from its Base Location, but derives revenue

. 2016 from providing services within a territory consisting of approximately 101,383 single-
Location 2 .
family homes.
. This Location is granted a fifty-mile radius from its Base Location, but derives revenue
Affiliate oy . . . . .
. 2016 from providing services within a territory consisting of approximately 1,358,330
Location 3 . .
single-family homes.
AFiLi This Location is granted a fifty-mile radius from its Base Location, but derives revenue
tate 2018 from providing services within a territory consisting of approximately 494,059 single-
Location 4 .
family homes.
Affil This Location is granted a fifty-mile radius from its Base Location, but derives revenue
L ! .1ates 2018 from providing services within a territory consisting of approximately 292,423 single-
ocation family homes.
Affil This Location is granted a fifty-mile radius from its Base Location, but derives revenue
thate 2018 from providing services within a territory consisting of approximately 156,705 single-
Location 6 .
family homes.
Affil This Location is granted a fifty-mile radius from its Base Location, but derives revenue
thate 2018 from providing services within a territory consisting of approximately 118,258 single-
Location 7 .
family homes.
Affil This Location is granted a fifty-mile radius from its Base Location, but derives revenue
thate 2020 from providing services within a territory consisting of approximately 311,538 single-
Location 8 .
family homes.
Affil This Location is granted a fifty-mile radius from its Base Location, but derives revenue
thate 2020 from providing services within a territory consisting of approximately 206,660 single-
Location 9 .
family homes.
AFiLi This Location is granted a fifty-mile radius from its Base Location, but derives revenue
tate 2020 from providing services within a territory consisting of approximately 186,080 single-
Location 10 .
family homes.
Affil This Location is granted a fifty-mile radius from its Base Location, but derives revenue
L ! 1atel 1 2020 from providing services within a territory consisting of approximately 186,670 single-
ocation family homes.
Affil This Location is granted a fifty-mile radius from its Base Location, but derives revenue
rhate 2020 from providing services within a territory consisting of approximately 119,310 single-
Location 12 .
family homes.
Affil This Location is granted a fifty-mile radius from its Base Location, but derives revenue
rhate 2020 from providing services within a territory consisting of approximately 125,592 single-
Location 13 .
family homes.
Affil This Location is granted a fifty-mile radius from its Base Location, but derives revenue
tate 2021 from providing services within a territory consisting of approximately 228,144 single-
Location 14 .
family homes.
Affil This Location is granted a fifty-mile radius from its Base Location, but derives revenue
tate 2021 from providing services within a territory consisting of approximately 513,804 single-
Location 15 .
family homes.
AFiLi This Location is granted a fifty-mile radius from its Base Location, but derives revenue
rlate 2021 from providing services within a territory consisting of approximately 491,676 single-
Location 16 .
family homes.
Affil This Location is granted a fifty-mile radius from its Base Location, but derives revenue
L ! 1atel7 2021 from providing services within a territory consisting of approximately 787,330 single-
ocation family homes.
Affil This Location is granted a fifty-mile radius from its Base Location, but derives revenue
1iate 2021 from providing services within a territory consisting of approximately 826,061 single-

Location 18

family homes.
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Chart 2 — 2022 Gross Revenue from Affiliate Locations

The chart below includes the total Gross Revenue earned by each Affiliate Location for the
2022 calendar year. This chart only includes the Affiliate Locations that were open and operating
as of December 31, 2021 and operating for the entire 2022 calendar year.

Affiliate Location R?\t‘:lflsle
Affiliate 13 13,413,417
Affiliate 16 10,532,003
Affiliate 1 9,006,774
Affiliate 9 8,720,698
Affiliate 15 8,199,430
Affiliate 11 7,239,028
Affiliate 4 7,114,530
Affiliate 7 6,558,319
Affiliate 2 5,740,089
Affiliate 14 5,561,308
Affiliate 8 5,486,457
Affiliate 17 5,160,515
Affiliate 10 5,091,756
Affiliate 3 4,821,141
Affiliate 5 3,431,166
Affiliate 12 3,140,288
Affiliate 6 2,223,038
Affiliate 18 1,123,115
Average Gross Revenue $6,253,504
Number of Locations that Met or 9
Exceeded the Average

Percentage of Locations that Met 50%
or Exceeded the Average

Median Gross Revenues $5,650,699

Gross Revenue: “Gross Revenue” in Chart 2 means all revenues generated by the Affiliate
Locations between January 1, 2022 and December 31, 2022.

Chart 3 — 2022 Average Profit & Loss Statement from Affiliate Locations

Each of our Affiliate Locations is operated as an executive business model in that the owner
(the partner(s) with Wayne Holloway in each Affiliate Outlet) do not take part in the day-to-day
management of the business. This is contrary to an owner-operator business model in which the
owner of the business participates heavily in the daily operations, management, or marketing of
the business. Each of our Affiliate Locations employs managers and sales representatives.
However, our franchisees may operate their Best Choice Roofing franchise under either of these
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models. Our franchisees may have a semi-absentee role with their franchise, employing key
individuals to manage the sales and operation aspects of the business. On the other hand, our
franchisees may run their business as an owner-operator, taking a full-time role within the business
themselves.

If any of our franchisees operate their business as an owner-operator, we anticipate that (1)
their payroll expenses and net profit would be significantly lower than the amounts disclosed
below. While they may save on payroll expenses, an owner-operator franchisee will likely not
scale their business as quickly due to their own personal capacity.

The chart below includes the average Gross Revenue, Costs of Construction and certain
Disclosed Expenses experienced by our eighteen (18) Affiliate Locations that operated for the
entire 2022 calendar year (January 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022). To be included in this chart,
each Affiliate Location had to have been open and operating as of December 31, 2021.

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank]
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Number &
Percent of
% of Affiliate
Averages' Across Affiliate Locations Gross Median High Low Locations that
Revenue® Met or
Exceeded the
Average
Gross Revenue? $6,253,504 100.0% 5,650,699 | 13,413,417 | 1,123,115 8 (44%)
Materials (After Rebates from Suppliers)* 2,140,306 34.2% 2,040,804 5,059,495 401,906 7 (39%)
Sub-Contractor Labor’ 1,395,624 22.3% 1,273,832 | 2,999,619 300,672 7 (39%)
Total Cost of Construction 3,535,929 56.5% 3,322,396 8,059,114 702,578 7 (39%)
Gross Profit 2,717,575 43.5% 2,597,796 | 5,354,303 420,537 9 (50%)
Disclosed Expenses
Background Checks 3,187 0.1% 2,279 6,608 1,492 7 (39%)
Bank Charges & Merchant Fees 4,146 0.1% 3,020 18,499 70 6 (33%)
Commissions® 562,815 9.0% 508,563 1,207,208 101,080 8 (44%)
CRM & Tech 5,985 0.1% 6,018 12,086 2,011 10 (56%)
Insurance - Priﬁzﬁ’ty"rkm Comp & 39,508 0.6% 13,624 | 241,169 4,425 3 (17%)
Internet & Telephone 5,006 0.1% 3,841 22,330 1,091 5 (28%)
Customer Call Center’ 15,276 0.2% 10,026 76,293 3,665 6 (33%)
Marketing Materials 17,816 0.3% 11,202 63,602 600 7 (39%)
Office Supplies 6,594 0.1% 1,350 68,801 493 3(17%)
Office — Lease 26,536 0.4% 26,373 38,204 15,840 8 (44%)
Administrative Payroll® 92,500 1.5% 77,440 156,640 69,120 5 (28%)
Utilities 3,749 0.1% 2,977 15,097 858 6 (33%)
Bonus’ 179,296 2.9% 195,494 332,840 4,559 11 (61%)
Total Disclosed Expenses'’ 962,414 15.4% 885,663 2,181,764 274,263 6 (33%)
Average Gross Profit Less Disclosed 1,755,161 28.1% 1,753,210 | 3225322 | 146,274 9 (50%)
Expenses
Estimated Expenses'?
Estimated Contract Entry Fees'3 31,268 0.5%
Estimated QulckBgoks & li}ght Networks 4,800 0.1%
Hosting Fees
Estimated Royalty Fees'® 375,210 6.0%
Estimated Brand Fund Contributions'® 62,535 1.0%
Estimated Owens Corning Annual
Membership Fee‘% 2,500 0.04%
Total Estimated Expenses 476,313 7.6% N/A — Estimates
Average Gr9ss Profit Less Dllsgclosed & 1278848 20.5%
Estimated Expenses
Estimated Sales Mana]gger Base Salary $3.899 13%
& Bonuses
Estimated Average Gross Profit
Less Disclosed & Estimated 1,362,747 21.8%
Expenses - Owner-Operator?’
Notes to Chart 3:
1. Averages: This chart contains the average Gross Revenue and Disclosed Expenses from

the eighteen (18) Affiliate Locations that were open and operating for the entire 2022 Calendar
Year along with certain estimated expenses described below. The amounts across all eighteen (18)
Affiliate Locations were totaled and divided by eighteen (18) to reflect the average.
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2. Gross Revenue: As used in Chart 3, “Gross Revenue” means the average of all revenues
generated by the Affiliate Locations between January 1, 2022 and December 31, 2022 with no
deductions.

3. % of Gross Revenue: This column reflects the percentage of average Gross Revenue for
each row. For example, the average Total Disclosed Expenses ($962,414) is 15.4% of the average
Gross Revenue, and the Estimated Contract Entry expense ($31,268) is 0.5% of the average Gross
Revenue.

4. Materials: Our Affiliate Locations receive rebates from Owens Corning and distributors
based on their purchases of roofing material. Our franchisees will receive some of these rebates as
well, but not all of them. The amount shown for “Materials” in Chart 3 is after the applicable
rebates that our franchisees may be eligible for have been subtracted. We have not subtracted
amounts from rebates that our franchisees will not be eligible for.

5. Sub-Contractor Labor: This represents the average amounts paid to contractors who
perform the labor associated with roof installation.

6. Commissions: This represents the average sales commissions paid to sales staff based on
certain objectives. This represents a base commission that we propose for your sales staff.

7. Customer Call Center: This figure represents the actual historical Customer Call Center
expenses each of the Affiliate Locations incurred during the 2022 Calendar Year. However, under
this Disclosure Document, our franchisees will pay an annual fixed expense for the Customer Call
Center based on the number of Designated Territories they purchase (see Item 6).

8. Administrative Payroll: This represents (i) the base salary, bonus, and commission for one
(1) Sales Manager; (i1) the base salary, bonus, and commission for one (1) General Manager; and
(111) the base salary for one (1) Office Administrator. We anticipate that many of our franchisees
will personally oversee the day-to-day operation of their businesses and will not pay certain payroll
expenses as they will assume one or more of these roles.

9. Bonus: This represents the average bonuses paid to the Managers of an Affiliate Location
with the average Gross Revenue above. We expect that franchisees with higher or lower Gross
Revenue will have higher or lower bonus expenses, respectively. As described above, we
anticipate that our owner-operator franchisees may not incur this expense as they will be running
their franchises themselves.

10. Total Disclosed Expenses: The “Disclosed Expenses” in Chart 3 include some, but not all,
of the historical expenses incurred by our Affiliate Locations during the 2022 Calendar Year. Our
franchisees may incur additional expenses depending on how they operate their franchise from a
staffing perspective (see Estimated Expenses below).

11. Average Gross Profit Less Disclosed Expenses: This represents the actual, historical
average Gross Profit less the actual, historical average Disclosed Expenses that our Affiliate
Locations experienced during the 2022 Calendar Year.
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12. Estimated Expenses: These Estimated Expenses represent material financial differences
between our Affiliate Locations and the franchise offered under this Disclosure Document. Each
of the Estimated Expenses has been based on either (i) historical financial performance data or (ii)
certain fees that franchisees of ours will pay us that our Affiliate Locations did not pay us during
the 2022 Calendar Year.

13. Estimated Contract Entry Fees: Our franchisees must pay us $59 per contract entry (see
Item 6). We estimated that the average Gross Revenue in Chart 3 would have resulted from
approximately 530 contracts entered during the 2022 Calendar Year. Therefore, we multiplied 530
contracts by the $59 Contract Entry Fee to come up with a total Estimated Contract Entry Fee of
$31,268 (0.5% of average Gross Revenue).

14. Estimated QuickBooks & Right Networks Hosting Fees: Our franchisees must pay our
designated supplier, Right Networks, $400 per month for QuickBooks and accounting fees. Our
Affiliate Locations did not incur this same expense during the 2022 Calendar Year. This figure
represents twelve (12) months multiplied by the fee of $400 per month for a total Estimated
QuickBooks & Right Networks Hosting Fee of $4,800 (0.1% of average Gross Revenue).

15. Estimated Royalty Fees: Our Affiliate Locations do not pay Royalty Fees, so this amount
1s an estimate and not a historical figure. The average Royalty Fees across all Affiliate Locations
during the 2022 Calendar Year would have been $375,210 (equal to 6% of the average Gross
Revenue of $6,253,504).

16. Estimated Brand Fund Contributions: Our Affiliate Locations do not pay Brand Fund
Contributions, so this amount is an estimate and not a historical figure. The average Brand Fund
Contributions across all Affiliate Locations during the 2022 Calendar Year would have been
$62,535 (equal to 1% of the average Gross Revenue of $6,253,504).

17. Estimated Owens Corning Annual Membership Fee: Our Affiliate Locations share one
Owens Corning Platinum Preferred Membership and do not each incur the applicable $2,500
annual membership fee. Each of our franchisees will have to obtain their own Platinum Preferred
Membership, incurring the $2,500 annual membership fee (see Item 6).

18. Average Gross Profit Less Disclosed Expenses & Estimated Expenses: If our Affiliate
Locations had incurred the Estimated Expenses (Estimated Contract Entry Fees, Estimated
QuickBooks & Right Networks Hosting Fees, Estimated Royalty Fees, Estimated Brand Fund
Contributions, and Estimated Owens Corning Annual Membership Fee), then the average Gross
Profit less the average Disclosed Expenses and the Estimated Expenses would have been $976,842
(15.6% of average Gross Revenue).

19. Estimated Sales Manager Base Salary & Bonuses: We estimate that our franchisees will
pay themselves an annual base salary of approximately $10,400 if they operate their franchise as
an “owner-operator,” assuming the role of the Sales Manager, and we anticipate many of our
franchisees to operate their franchises as owner-operators. We have added that amount to the
average Bonus of $73,499 for a total Estimated Manager Salary & Bonus of $83,899. This is the
amount that we anticipate a franchisee would pay themselves between base salary and bonus
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during a calendar year if the franchisee assumed the role of the Sales Manager. This particular
figure is an estimate, as described above, and not a historical financial performance representation.

20. Estimated Average Gross Profit Less Disclosed Expenses & Estimated Expenses — Owner-
Operator: This particular figure is an estimate, and not a historical financial performance
representation, of the average Gross Revenue less the average Disclosed Expenses and the
Estimated Expenses that an owner-operator franchisee may experience if they assume the day-to-
day Sales Manager role of their franchise, adding the Estimated Sales Manager Base Salary &
Bonus of $83,899 (see Note 19 above) to the average Gross Revenue less the average Disclosed
Expenses and the Estimated Expenses.

Chart 4 — 2022 Average Start-up Gross Revenue Across First 24 Months of Business

The chart below displays the average annual Gross Revenue for our thirteen (13) Affiliate
Locations that were open and operating for two (2) years as of December 31, 2022 during their
first twelve (12) months of operation and second twelve (12) months of operation (Months 13-24
of Operation).

Date Range Months 1-12 of Operation | Months 13-24 of Operation

Average Gross Revenue $4,802,413 $6,592,107

Number and Percent that o o
Met or Exceeded Average 3(23%) > (38%)

The chart below displays the monthly average Gross Revenue for the same thirteen (13)
Affiliate Locations open and operating for two (2) years as of December 31, 2022 during each of

their first twenty-four (24) months of operation.

Month Month 1 Month 2 Month 3 Month 4 Month 5 Month 6
Average Gross Revenue $291,407 $331,086 $459,322 $429,086 $452,804 $393,182
Number and Percent that o o o o o o
Met or Exceeded Average 4 (31%) 4 (31%) 4 (31%) 3 (23%) 4 (31%) 4 (31%)
Month Month 7 Month 8 Month 9 Month 10 Month 11 Month 12
Average Gross Revenue $364,639 $353,103 $322,993 $374,580 $345,115 $315,699
Number and Percent that o o o o o o
Met or Exceeded Average 5 (38%) 6 (46%) 5 (38%) 3 (23%) 5 (38%) 5 (38%)
Month Month 13 Month 14 Month 15 Month 16 Month 17 Month 18
Average Gross Revenue $362,255 $417,446 $514,907 $503,535 $530,043 $486,110
Number and Percent that o o o o o o
Met or Exceeded Average 5 (38%) 6 (46%) 8 (62%) 6 (46%) 7 (54%) 7 (54%)
Month Month 19 Month 20 Month 21 Month 22 Month 23 Month 24
Average Gross Revenue $460,238 $572,015 $547,962 $579,998 $593,610 $516,902
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Number and Percent that
Met or Exceeded Average

8 (62%) ‘ 7 (54%) ‘ 6 (46%) ‘ 7 (54%) ‘ 5 (38%) ‘ 5 (38%) ‘

Chart 5 — 2022 Average Gross Profit Margins

The charts below represent the 2022 calendar year averages of Sub-Contractor Labor and
Materials (both comprising Cost of Construction), and the resulting Gross Profit Margins given
those costs, for our eighteen (18) Affiliate Locations that were open for the entire 2022 calendar

year.
Affiliate Locations
Number Percent
Number that met or | that met or
of Low | High | Median | Average | exceeded exceeded
Locations the the
Average Average
Sub-Contractor 18 17.8% | 51.5% | 30.7% 22.3% 7 38.9%
Labor
Materials 18 17.3% | 50.3% 32.4% 39.1% 8 44 .4%
Gross Profit 18 15.3% | 51.7% | 33.0% 38.6% 8 44.4%
Margin

Chart 6 — 2022 Average Jobs and Ticket Price

The chart below represents the average price per job (“Ticket Price™) for all Affiliate

Locations that operated during the 2022 calendar year (not just Affiliate Locations that operated
for the entire 2022 calendar year). During the 2022 calendar year, our Affiliate Locations signed a
total of 9,228 jobs with customers. This includes jobs signed by the five (5) Affiliate Locations
that opened during the 2022 calendar year.

Number and Percent
Total High Low Average Median of Jobs that Met or
Jobs Ticket Price Ticket Price Ticket Price Ticket Price | Exceeded the Average
Ticket Price
9,228 | $155,106.35 $1,503.12 $13,416.18 $11,849.60 3,664 Jobs (39%)
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Chart 7 — Year-Over-Year System Growth

The below chart summarizes the year-over-year growth in revenue across all of our
Affiliate Locations and our Corporate Outlet during the entire 2018, 2019, 2020, 2021, and 2022
calendar years. The “Overall System Growth” is the percentage of growth in Total Gross Revenues
between each applicable year and the preceding year. The “Corporate Outlet Gross Revenues”
represents Gross Revenue earned by our Corporate Outlet as disclosed above.

2018 | 15,626,418 | 10,432,729 | 26,059,147 10 6 16
2019 | 32,011,258 | 16,374,910 | 48,386,168 | 85.7% 11 8 19
2020 | 56,561,961 | 31,487,562 | 88,049,523 | 82.0% 17 12 29
2021 | 79,205,335 | 34,989,166 | 114,194,501 | 29.7% 18 15 33
2022 | 109,954,748 | 39,785,690 | 149,740,446 | 31.1% 18 17 35

Total Best Choice Roofing Sales
160,000,000

140,000,000

120,000,000

q Y
100,000,000
80,000,000
60,000,000 ;
40,000,000 .
20,000,000

2021 2022

Notes:

1. “Gross Revenue” in the above charts means all revenue collected by each Location
during the time period measured with no discounts.

2. The Charlotte, North Carolina Location was converted from a Corporate Outlet
business to an Affiliate Location in October 2021.

3. The Indianapolis, IN affiliate location was converted to a franchise on March 18,
2022, and we no longer have an ownership interest in this business.

4. The Jackson, TN affiliate location was converted to a franchise on March 29, 2022,
and we no longer have an ownership interest in this business.
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Some outlets have sold this amount. Your individual results may differ. There is no
assurance you’ll sell as much.

Written substantiation for the financial performance representation will be made available
to the prospective franchisee upon reasonable request.

Other than the preceding financial performance representation, we do not make any
representations. We also do not authorize our employees or representatives to make any such
representations either orally or in writing. If you are purchasing an existing outlet, however, we
may provide you with the actual records of that outlet. If you receive any other financial
performance information or projections of your future income, you should report it to the
franchisor’s management by contacting Best Choice Roofing Franchising, LLC, 105 Hazel Path,
Hendersonville, Tennessee 37075-3886, (615) 637-3341, the Federal Trade Commission, and the
appropriate state regulatory agencies.

Item 20
OUTLETS AND FRANCHISEE INFORMATION
Table 1
Systemwide Outlet Summary
For years 2020 to 2022
Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4 Column 5
Outlet Type Year Outlets at the Outlets at the Net Change
Start of the Year End of the Year

2020 0 0 0
Franchised 2021 0 0 0
2022 0 6 +6
2020 19 29 +10
Company-Owned* 2021 29 33 +4
2022 33 35 +2
2020 19 29 +10
Total Outlets 2021 29 33 +4
2022 33 41 +8

*Company-owned locations are owned and operated by affiliated entities

Table No. 2
Transfers of Outlets from Franchisees to New Owners (other than the Franchisor)
For years 2020 to 2022
Column 1 Column 2 Column 3
State Year Number of Transfers
Tennessee 2020 0
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Column 1 Column 2 Column 3
State Year Number of Transfers
2021 0
2022 0
2020 0
Total 2021 0
2022 0
Table 3
Status of Franchised Outlets
For years 2020 to 2022
Column 1 Column2 | Column3 | Column4 | Column5 | Column 6 Column 7 Column 8 | Column 9
State Year Outlets at Outlets Termi- Non- Reacquired Ceased Outlets at
the Start Opened Nations Renewals by Operations | End of the
of the . — Other Year
Franchisor
Year Reasons
2020 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Arkansas 2021 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2022 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
2020 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Delaware 2021 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2022 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
2020 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Georgia 2021 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2022 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
2020 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Indiana 2021 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2022 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
2020 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Louisiana 2021 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2022 0 1 0 0 0 0 1*
2020 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Tennessee 2021 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2022 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
2019 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Totals
2020 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
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Column 1 Column2 | Column3 | Column4 | Column5 | Column 6 Column 7 Column 8 | Column 9
State Year Outlets at Outlets Termi- Non- Reacquired Ceased Outlets at
the Start Opened Nations Renewals by Operations | End of the
of the . — Other Year
Franchisor
Year Reasons
2021 0 6 0 0 0 0 6

*We (through our affiliate) are in the process of reacquiring this franchise as of the issuance date
of this Disclosure Document.
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Table 4
Status of Company-Owned Outlets
For years 2020 to 2022
Column 1 Column 2 | Column 3 Column 4 Column5 | Column6 | Column7 | Column 8
State Year Outlets at Outlets Outlets Outlets Outlets Outlets at
the Start Opened Reacquired Closed Sold to End of the
of the From Franchisee Year
Year Franchisee
2020 1 1 0 0 0 2
AL 2021 2 0 0 0 0 2
2022 2 0 0 0 0 2
2020 2 2 0 0 0 4
FL 2021 4 1 0 0 0 5
2022 5 1 0 0 0 6
2020 2 1 0 1 0 2
GA 2021 2 0 0 0 0 2
2022 2 1 0 0 0 3
2020 1 1 0 0 0 2
IN 2021 2 0 0 0 0 2
2022 2 0 0 0 1 1
2020 2 0 0 0 0 2
KY 2021 2 0 0 0 0 2
2022 2 0 0 0 0 2
2020 0 1 0 0 0 1
LA 2021 1 0 0 0 0 1
2022 1 0 0 0 1 0
2020 0 1 0 0 0 1
MS 2021 1 1 0 0 0 2
2022 2 1 0 0 0 3
MD 2020 0 1 0 0 0 1
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Table 5
Projected Openings as of December 31, 2022

Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4
State Franchise Agreements Projected New Projected New Company-
Signed But Outlet Not Franchised Outlets In Owned Outlets In the
Opened The Next Fiscal Year Next Fiscal Year
Michigan 1 1 0
Texas 2 2 0
Utah 1 1 0
Totals 4 4 0

Current Franchisees

Exhibit F contains the names of all current franchisees (as of the end of our last fiscal year)
and the address and telephone number of each of their outlets.

Former Franchisees

Exhibit F contains the name, city and state, and current business telephone number, or if
unknown, the last known home telephone number of every franchisee who had an outlet
terminated, canceled, not renewed, or otherwise voluntarily or involuntarily ceased to do business
under the franchise agreement during the most recently completed fiscal year or who have not
communicated with us within 10 weeks of the disclosure document issuance date.

If you buy this franchise, your contact information may be disclosed to other buyers when
you leave the franchise system.

Confidentiality Clauses

In the last three fiscal years, no franchisees have signed any contract, order, or settlement
provision that directly or indirectly restricts a current or former franchisee from discussing his or
her personal experience as a franchisee in our system with any prospective franchisee.

Franchisee Organizations

There are no trademark-specific franchisee organizations associated with our franchise
system.

Item 21
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have not been in business for three years or more, and therefore cannot include all
financial statements required by the Franchise Rule of the Federal Trade Commission. Exhibit D
contains our audited financial statements as of December 31, 2022, December 31, 2021 and
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December 31, 2020 and our unaudited Balance Sheet as of March 31, 2023 and Profit & Loss
Statement from January 1, 2023 to March 31, 2023. Our fiscal year end is December 31.

Item 22
CONTRACTS

Copies of all proposed agreements regarding this franchise offering are attached as the
following Exhibits:

B. Franchise Agreement (with Guaranty and Non-Compete Agreement)
C. Form of General Release
H. State Addenda to Franchise Agreement

Item 23
RECEIPTS

Detachable documents acknowledging your receipt of this disclosure document are
attached as the last two pages of this disclosure document.
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EXHIBIT A

STATE ADMINISTRATORS AND AGENTS FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS

We may register this Disclosure Document in some or all of the following states in accordance
with the applicable state law. If and when we pursue franchise registration, or otherwise comply
with the franchise investment laws, in these states, the following are the state administrators
responsible for the review, registration, and oversight of franchises in each state and the state
offices or officials that we will designate as our agents for service of process in those states:

State

State Administrator

Agent for Service of Process (if different
from State Administrator)

California

Commissioner of Financial Protection and
Innovation

Department of Financial Protection and
Innovation

2102 Arena Boulevard

Sacramento, CA 95834

866-275-2677

Hawaii

Department of Commerce and Consumer
Affairs

Business Registration Division
Commissioner of Securities

P.O. Box 40

Honolulu, HI 96810

(808) 586-2722

Commissioner of Securities

Department of Commerce and Consumer
Affairs

Business Registration Division
Securities Compliance Branch

335 Merchant Street, Room 203
Honolulu, HI 96813

Illinois

Franchise Bureau

Office of Attorney General
500 South Second Street
Springfield, IL 62706
(217) 782-4465

Indiana

Franchise Section

Indiana Securities Division
Secretary of State

Room E-111

302 W. Washington Street
Indianapolis, IN 46204
(317) 232-6681

Maryland

Office of the Attorney General
Division of Securities

200 St. Paul Place

Baltimore, MD 21202-2020
(410) 576-6360

Maryland Commissioner of Securities
200 St. Paul Place
Baltimore, MD 21202-2020

Michigan

Michigan Attorney General's Office
Consumer Protection Division
Attn: Franchise Section

525 W. Ottawa Street

Williams Building, 1st Floor
Lansing, MI 48933

(517) 373-7117
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Agent for Service of Process (if different

State State Administrator fromiState A dministeator)

Minnesota Department of Commerce Commissioner of Commerce
Minnesota Securities-Franchise Registration Minnesota Department of Commerce

85 7" Place East, Suite 280 85 7" Place East, Suite 280

St. Paul, MN 55101-2198 St. Paul, MN 55101-2198

(651) 539-1500 (651) 539-1500

NYS Department of Law
New York Invegtor Protection Bureau Secretar}{ of State

28 Liberty St., 21% Floor 99 Washington Avenue

New York, NY 10005 Albany, NY 12231

(212) 416-8222

.. Securities Commissioner

North Dakota Securities Department' . North Dakota Securities Department
North Dakota 600 East Boulevard Ave., State Capital Fifth 600 East Boulevard Avenue

Floor, Dept. 414 . .

. State Capitol, Fifth Floor Dept. 414
Bismarck, ND 58505-0510 .
(701) 328-4712 Bismarck, ND 58505-0510
(701) 328-4712

Department of Consumer & Business

Services
Oregon Division of Finance and Corporate Securities

Labor and Industries Building

Salem, Oregon 97310

(503) 378-4140

Department of Business Regulation

Securities Division
Rhode Island 1511 Pontiac Avenue

John O. Pastore Complex—69-1

Cranston, RI 02920-4407

(401) 462-9527

IS);ZLSrli(t)ilz:sger:;uulr;ril()cr? Director of the Division of Insurance
South Dakota . . 124 South Euclid Suite 104

124 South Euclid Suite 104 .

. Pierre, SD 57501-3185

Pierre, SD 57501-3185 (605) 773-3563

(605) 773-3563

State Corporation Commission
Virginia 1300 East Main Street Clerk of the S'tate Corporation Commission

9th Floor 1300 East Main Street, 1st Floor

Richmond, VA 23219 Richmond, VA 23219

(804) 371-9051

Department of Financial Institutions Department of Financial Institutions
Washington Securities Division Securities Division

PO Box 9033 150 Isracl Rd SW

Olympia, WA 98507 Tumwater, WA 98501

(360) 902-8760 (360) 902-8760

Division of Secu.r 1tles. o Securities And Franchise Registration

. . Department of Financial Institutions . . o =

Wisconsin Wisconsin Securities Commission

Post Office Box 1768
Madison, WI 53701
(608) 266-2801

201 West Washington Avenue, Suite 300
Madison, WI 53703
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EXHIBIT B

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

B c R

Best Choice Roofing
You (Chose the Test!

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
SUMMARY PAGE
1. Franchisee
2. Initial Franchise Fee $

Approximate Number of Single-
3. Family Homes within
Territory(ies)

4. Number of Territories

5. Territory(ies) See Attached Map and List of Zip Codes

6. Opening Deadline

7.  Principal Executive (If an Entity)

8. Franchisee’s Address

Franchisee’s State(s) of
Residence

State(s) in which the Business

10. will be operated
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FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

This Agreement is made between Best Choice Roofing Franchising, LLC, a Tennessee limited
liability company (“Franchisor”), and Franchisee effective as of the date signed by Franchisor (the
“Effective Date”).

Background Statement:

A. Franchisor and its affiliates have created and own a system (the “System”) for
developing and operating a roofing business under the trade name “Best Choice Roofing”.

B. The System includes (1) methods, procedures, and standards for developing and
operating a Best Choice Roofing business, (2) particular products and services, (3) the Marks, (4)
training programs, (5) business knowledge, (6) marketing plans and concepts, and (7) other
mandatory or optional elements as determined by Franchisor from time to time.

C. The parties desire that Franchisor license the Marks and the System to Franchisee
for Franchisee to develop and operate a Best Choice Roofing business on the terms and conditions
of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 1. DEFINITIONS

“Action” means any action, suit, proceeding, claim, demand, governmental investigation,
governmental inquiry, judgment or appeal thereof, whether formal or informal.

“Approved Vendor” means a supplier, vendor, or distributor of Inputs which has been approved
by Franchisor.

“Business” means the Best Choice Roofing business owned by Franchisee and operated under this
Agreement.

“Competitor” means any business which sells or provides roofing installation and/or repair
services.

“Confidential Information” means all non-public information of or about the System, Franchisor,
and any Best Choice Roofing business, including all methods for developing and operating the
Business, and all non-public plans, data, financial information, processes, vendor pricing, supply
systems, marketing systems, formulas, techniques, designs, layouts, operating procedures,
customer data, information and know-how.

“Gross Sales” means the total dollar amount of all sales generated through the Business for a given
period, including, but not limited to, payment for any services or products sold by Franchisee,
whether for cash or credit. Gross Sales does not include (i) bona fide refunds to customers, (ii)
sales taxes collected by Franchisee, (iii) sales of used equipment not in the ordinary course of
business, or (iv) sales of prepaid cards or similar products (but the redemption of any such card or
product will be included in Gross Sales).
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“Input” means any goods, services, supplies, fixtures, equipment, inventory, computer hardware
and software, real estate, or comparable items related to establishing or operating the Business.

“Location” means the location stated on the Summary Page.

“Losses” includes (but is not limited to) all losses; damages; fines; charges; expenses; lost profits;
reasonable attorneys’ fees; travel expenses, expert witness fees; court costs; settlement amounts;
judgments; loss of Franchisor’s reputation and goodwill; costs of or resulting from delays;
financing; costs of advertising material and media time/space and the costs of changing,
substituting or replacing the same; and any and all expenses of recall, refunds, compensation,
public notices and other such amounts incurred in connection with the matters described.

“Manual” means Franchisor’s confidential Operating Manual(s), including any supplements,
additions, or revisions from time to time, which may be in any form or media.

“Brand Fund” means the fund established (or which may be established) by Franchisor into which
Brand Fund Contributions are deposited.

“Marks” means the trademark contained on the Summary Page, and all other trade names,
trademarks, service marks and logos specified by Franchisor from time to time for use in a Best
Choice Roofing business.

“Owner” means each person or entity which directly or indirectly owns or controls any equity of
Franchisee. If Franchisee is an individual person, then “Owner” means Franchisee.

“Required Vendor” means a supplier, vendor, or distributor of Inputs which Franchisor requires
franchisees to use.

“System Standards” means, as of any given time, the then-current mandatory procedures,
requirements, and/or standards of the System as determined by Franchisor, which may include
without limitation, any procedures, requirements and/or standards for appearance, business
metrics, cleanliness, customer service, design, equipment, inventory, marketing and public
relations, operating hours, presentation of Marks, product and service offerings, quality of products
and services (including any guaranty and warranty programs), reporting, safety, technology (such
as computers, computer peripheral equipment, smartphones, point-of-sale systems, back-office
systems, information management systems, security systems, video monitors, other software,
backup and archiving systems, communications systems (including email, audio, and video
systems), payment acceptance systems, and internet access, as well as upgrades, supplements, and
modifications thereto), uniforms, and vehicles.

“Territory” means the territory stated on the Summary Page, which may reference to or include
one or more maps and lists of zip codes attached hereto. The Territory may be one Territory or
multiple Territories. In this Franchise Agreement, “Territory” shall refer to all Territories, whether
one or more, that Franchisee has purchased from Franchisor.
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“Transfer” means for Franchisee (or any Owner) to voluntarily or involuntarily transfer, sell, or
dispose of, in any single or series of transactions, (1) substantially all of the assets of the Business,
(11) this Agreement, (ii1) direct or indirect ownership interest of more than 25% of the Business, or
(iv) control of the Business.

“Warranty Work” means all labor relating to repairing or replacing a product installed by
Franchisee pursuant to such product’s warranty issued by Franchisee or the Required Vendor of
such product.

ARTICLE 2. GRANT OF LICENSE

2.1 Grant. Franchisor grants to Franchisee the right to operate a Best Choice Roofing business
solely in the Territory. Franchisee shall develop, open and operate a Best Choice Roofing business
in the Territory for the entire term of this Agreement.

2.2 Protected Territory.

(a) Limitation. Franchisee shall not solicit or market to potential customers outside of
the Territory without Franchisor’s prior written permission, which permission Franchisor may
withdraw at any time.

(b) Service. Franchisee shall not provide services at any location outside of the
Territory without Franchisor’s prior written permission. Franchisor may withdraw permission at
any time. Franchisee shall not market or otherwise solicit business outside of the Territory without
Franchisor’s prior written permission, which permission Franchisor may withdraw at any time. If
ten percent (10%) or more of Franchisee’s Gross Sales are derived from providing services outside
of Franchisee’s Territory, Franchisor may, in its sole discretion, require Franchisee to purchase
one or more additional Territories that comprise the area where Franchisee is deriving such
revenue. If Franchisee provides services at any location outside of the Territory without
Franchisor’s prior written permission, Franchisor may impose a fee equal to the greater of (i) $500
or (i1) 75% of the amount paid by such customer to Franchisee. This fee is a reasonable estimate
of Franchisor’s internal cost of personnel time attributable to addressing Franchisee’s breach of
this Section, and it is not a penalty or estimate of all damages arising from Franchisee’s breach.
This fee is in addition to all of Franchisor’s other rights and remedies.

(©) Exclusivity. Franchisor shall not establish, nor license the establishment of, another
Best Choice Roofing business within the Territory or which serves customers located in the
Territory. However, Franchisor retains the right to:

(1) serve (or authorize other franchisees to serve) customers in the Territory if
Franchisee is in default, or if Franchisee is incapable of meeting customer demand
in the Territory (in Franchisor’s reasonable opinion), after notice of the same has
been delivered to Franchisee in writing and Franchisee has been given a reasonable
opportunity to correct defaults and to serve such customers;

(11) serve (or authorize other franchisees to serve) a particular customer in the Territory
if Franchisee fails to properly serve such customer, or if Franchisor reasonably
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believes that Franchisee will not properly serve such customer after notice of the
same has been delivered to Franchisee in writing and Franchisee has been given a
reasonable opportunity to serve such customers;

(111)  establish and license others to establish and operate Best Choice Roofing businesses
outside the Territory;

(iv)  operate and license others to operate businesses anywhere that do not operate under
the Best Choice Roofing brand name; and

v) sell and license others to sell Best Choice Roofing products and services to
customers in the Territory through channels of distribution (including the internet)
so long as such products and services are not provided through a Best Choice
Roofing outlet in the Territory, and are different from the products and services
provided by Franchisee, and in utilizing alternative channels of distribution as
described herein, Franchisor would pay no compensation to Franchisee.

(d) Policies. Franchisor may set policies binding on all franchisees regarding soliciting,
marketing, and serving customers in another franchisee’s territory, and Franchisor may waive or
modify such policies in any circumstance as Franchisor determines. If Franchisee obtains a client
in the protected territory of another franchisee, then, in addition to all other rights and remedies
Franchisor may have, Franchisor may in its discretion (i) require Franchisee to transfer the client
to such other franchisee, (ii) require Franchisee to pay such other franchisee 75% of the Gross
Sales received from such client, or (ii1) fashion such other remedy as Franchisor deems
appropriate.

(e) Referrals. Franchisor may set policies binding on all franchisees regarding referral
fees (and other terms and conditions) when a customer is referred from one Best Choice Roofing
business to another. Franchisor also retains full discretion in determining how national accounts
may be handled between, by, and among franchisees, including Franchisee. Franchisor may waive
or modify such policies in any circumstance as Franchisor determines.

2.3 Franchisee Control. Franchisee represents that Attachment 1 (i) identifies each owner,
officer and director of Franchisee, and (ii) describes the nature and extent of each owner’s interest
in Franchisee. If any information on Attachment 1 changes (which is not a Transfer), Franchisee
shall notify Franchisor within 10 days.

24 Principal Executive. Franchisee agrees that the person designated as the “Principal
Executive” on the Summary Page is the executive primarily responsible for the Business and has
decision-making authority on behalf of Franchisee. The Principal Executive must have at least
10% ownership interest in Franchisee. The Principal Executive must participate in the direct
operation of the Business and must devote substantial time and attention to the Business. If the
Principal Executive dies, becomes incapacitated, transfers his/her interest in Franchisee, or
otherwise ceases to be the executive primarily responsible for the Business, Franchisee shall
promptly designate a new Principal Executive, subject to Franchisor’s reasonable approval.

2.5 Guaranty. If Franchisee is an entity, then Franchisee shall have each Owner sign a
personal guaranty of Franchisee’s obligations to Franchisor, in the form of Attachment 2.
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2.6  No Conflict. Franchisee represents to Franchisor that Franchisee and each of its Owners
(1) are not violating any agreement (including any confidentiality or non-competition covenant) by
entering into or performing under this Agreement, (i1) are not a direct or indirect owner of any
Competitor, and (ii1) are not listed or “blocked” in connection with, and are not in violation under,
any anti-terrorism law, regulation, or executive order.

2.7  Name of Franchised Business. Franchisee shall not use the words “Best Choice Roofing”
in Franchisee’s entity name. Franchisor shall, in its sole discretion, have the right to approve or
disapprove of Franchisee’s entity name.

2.8  DBA Requirement. Franchisee must register a “Doing Business As” or similar type of
fictitious business name with Franchisee’s local municipality, but not at the state level unless
Franchisee has purchased all of the Best Choice Roofing Territories available within the applicable
state. Franchisee’s fictitious business name shall be “Best Choice Roofing”, or as otherwise
designated by Franchisor, and Franchisee shall not use any other fictitious business name for the
Franchised Business. Franchisee shall provide Franchisor with proof of its fictitious name filing
upon Franchisor’s request.

ARTICLE 3. TERM

3.1 Term. This Agreement commences on the date Franchisee opens for business and
continues for ten (10) years thereafter.

3.2 Successor Agreement. When the term of this Agreement expires, Franchisee may enter
into a successor agreement for up to two (2) additional periods of five (5) years each, subject to
the following conditions prior to each expiration:

(1) Franchisee notifies Franchisor of the election to renew between 90 and 180 days
prior to the end of the term;

(1)  Franchisee (and its affiliates) are in compliance with this Agreement and all other
agreements with Franchisor (or any of its affiliates) at the time of election and at
the time of renewal,

(111)  Franchisee has made or agrees to make (within a period of time acceptable to
Franchisor) changes to the Business as Franchisor requires to conform to the then-
current System Standards;

(iv)  Franchisee executes Franchisor’s then-current standard form of franchise
agreement, which may be materially different than this form (including, without
limitation, higher and/or different fees), except that Franchisee will not pay another
initial franchise fee and will not receive more renewal or successor terms than
described in this Section;

v) Franchisee shall pay Franchisor a renewal fee equal to ten thousand dollars
($10,000); and
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(v)  Franchisee and each Owner executes a general release (on Franchisor’s then-
standard form) of any and all claims against Franchisor, its affiliates, and their
respective owners, officers, directors, agents and employees (subject to applicable
state law).

ARTICLE 4. FEES

4.1 Initial Franchise Fee. Upon signing this Agreement, Franchisee shall pay an initial
franchise fee in the amount stated on the Summary Page. This initial franchise fee is not refundable,
except as provided in Section 6.4. The cumulative initial franchise fee is calculated by the number
of Territories Franchisee purchases according to the table below, which include the corresponding
approximate number of single-family homes:

Approximate
Number Single-Family Initial Cumulative Initial

of . . :

.. Homes in Franchise Fee Franchise Fee

Territories .
Territory

1 100,000 $59,500 $59,500

2 200,000 $40,000 $99,500

3 300,000 $35,000 $134,500

4 400,000 $30,000 $164,500

5 500,000 $30,000 $194,500

6 600,000 $30,000 $224,500

7 700,000 $30,000 $254,500

8 800,000 $30,000 $284,500

9 900,000 $30,000 $314,500
10 1,000,000 $30,000 $344,500

If Franchisee’s Territory territories with approximate numbers of single-family homes between
two levels in the above chart, Franchisee shall pay Franchisor $0.60 per single-family home.

4.2  Royalty Fee. Throughout the term of this Franchise Agreement, Franchisee shall pay
Franchisor a royalty fee (the “Royalty Fee) equal to six percent (6%) of Franchisee’s Gross Sales
from each job that Franchisee performs. Franchisee shall pay Franchisor the Royalty Fee within
thirty (30) days after each contract is invoiced by (entered into) Franchisor’s Customer
Relationship Management platform, and Franchisor may collect the Royalty Fee on a weekly basis.
Beginning in the sixth (6'") month after Franchisee opens for business, the Royalty Fee shall be
subject to a minimum weekly amount based on the approximate number of single-family homes
within the Territory(ies) Franchisee has purchased, which number is stated on the Summary Page
of this Franchise Agreement. The Royalty Fee for any given week is due on the Monday of the
following week. The minimum weekly Royalty Fee is equal to three hundred dollars ($300.00)
multiplied by the number of single-family homes within Franchisee’s Territory or Territories
divided by one hundred thousand (100,000). For avoidance of confusion, the formula for
calculating Franchisee’s minimum weekly Royalty Fee is below:

# of Single — Family Homes within Territory(ies)
100,000

Minimum weekly Royalty Fee = $300 X
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4.3 Brand Fund Contribution.

(a) Brand Fund Contribution. Beginning after the third (3") month from the Effective
Date of this Agreement, Franchisee shall pay Franchisor a contribution to the Brand Fund (the
“Brand Fund Contribution”) equal to one percent (1%) of Franchisee’s Gross Sales (or such lesser
amount as Franchisor determines), at the same time as the Royalty Fee. Franchisor may, in its sole
discretion, increase the Brand Fund Contribution up to three percent (3%) of Franchisee’s Gross
Sales. The Brand Fund Contribution shall be based on Franchisee’s Gross Sales from the prior
week.

(b) Market Cooperative Contribution. If the Business participates in a Market
Cooperative, then Franchisee shall contribute to the Market Cooperative a percentage of Gross
Sales (or other amount) determined by the Market Cooperative.

4.4  Replacement/Additional Training Fee. If Franchisee sends an employee to Franchisor’s
training program after opening, Franchisor may charge its then-current training fee. As of the date
of this Agreement, the training fee is $500 per day.

4.5 Third Party Vendors. If Franchisor requires Franchisee to use a designated third-party
vendor, Franchisor has the right (but not the obligation) to collect payment on behalf of the vendor
and remit the payment to the vendor. If Franchisor does so, it may impose a reasonable markup or
charge for administering the payment program.

4.6  Non-Compliance Fee. Franchisor may charge Franchisee $500 for any instance of non-
compliance with the System Standards or this Agreement (other than Franchisee’s non-payment
of a fee owed to Franchisor) which Franchisee fails to cure after 30 days’ notice. Thereafter,
Franchisor may charge Franchisee $250 per week until Franchisee ceases such non-compliance.
This fee is a reasonable estimate of Franchisor’s internal cost of personnel time attributable to
addressing the non-compliance, and it is not a penalty or estimate of all damages arising from
Franchisee’s breach. The non-compliance fee is in addition to all of Franchisor’s other rights and
remedies.

4.7 Reimbursement. Franchisor may (but is never obligated to) pay on Franchisee’s behalf
any amount that Franchisee owes to a supplier or other third party. If Franchisor does so or intends
to do so, Franchisee shall pay such amount plus a 10% administrative charge to Franchisor within
15 days after invoice by Franchisor accompanied by reasonable documentation.

4.8 Payment Terms.

(a) Method of Payment. Franchisee shall pay the Royalty Fee, Brand Fund
Contribution, and any other amounts owed to Franchisor by pre-authorized bank draft or in such
other manner as Franchisor may require, and Franchisor may, in its sole discretion, change the
timing of collection of any fees due to Franchisor under this Agreement upon notice to Franchisee.

(b) Calculation of Fees. Franchisee shall report weekly Gross Sales to Franchisor by
the first day of the following week. If Franchisee fails to report monthly Gross Sales, then
Franchisor may withdraw estimated Royalty Fees and Brand Fund Contributions equal to 125%
of the last royalty paid, and the parties will true-up the actual fees after Franchisee reports Gross
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Sales. Franchisee acknowledges that Franchisor has the right to remotely access Franchisee’s
point-of-sale system and accounting software to calculate Gross Sales.

(©) Late Fees and Interest. If Franchisee does not make a payment on time, Franchisee
shall pay a $100 “late fee” plus interest on the unpaid amount at a rate equal to 18% per year (or,
if such payment exceeds the maximum allowed by law, then interest at the highest rate allowed by
law).

(d) Insufficient Funds. Franchisor may charge $30 for any payment returned for
insufficient funds (or, if such amount exceeds the maximum allowed by law, then the fee allowed
by law).

(e) Costs of Collection. Franchisee shall repay any costs incurred by Franchisor
(including reasonable attorney fees) in attempting to collect payments owed by Franchisee.

) Application. Franchisor may apply any payment received from Franchisee to any
obligation and in any order as Franchisor may determine, regardless of any designation by
Franchisee.

(2) Obligations Independent; No Set-Off. The obligations of Franchisee to pay to
Franchisor any fees or amounts described in this Agreement are not dependent on Franchisor’s
performance and are independent covenants by Franchisee. Franchisee shall make all such
payments without offset or deduction.

(h) Credit of amounts paid towards future payments. In the event a customer of
Franchisee cancels a contract after the Royalty or Brand Fund Contribution has been paid,
Franchisee shall not be entitled to a refund of any amounts paid towards the Royalty or Brand Fund
Contribution; however, Franchisor shall grant a credit to Franchisee an amount equal to the
Royalty or Brand Fund Contribution paid against the cancelled contract. Such credit shall be
applied to the next Royalty or Brand Fund Contribution due.

(1) Credit of amounts paid towards future payments. In the event a customer of
Franchisee cancels a contract after the Royalty or Brand Fund Contribution has been paid,
Franchisee shall not be entitled to a refund of any amounts paid towards the Royalty or Brand Fund
Contribution; however, Franchisor shall grant a credit to Franchisee an amount equal to the
Royalty or Brand Fund Contribution paid against the cancelled contract. Such credit shall be
applied to the next Royalty or Brand Fund Contribution due.

4.9 Quarterly Audit Inspection. Franchisor may audit Franchisee’s Franchised Business
quarterly and Franchisee must pay Franchisor its actual cost to complete the inspection plus one
thousand dollars ($1,000) in association with each audit if Franchisee is found to not be in
compliance with Franchisor’s System Standards or the terms of this Agreement when such audit
is performed.

4.10 Call Center Fee. On an annual basis, Franchisee will pay Franchisor or its designated
supplier (currently Franchisor’s affiliate, Storm Leads, Inc.) three thousand and three-hundred
dollars ($3,300.00) per every three (3) Territories granted to Franchisee (“Call Center Fee™).
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Franchisee acknowledges that Franchisor shall have all website and phone inquiries routed to its
designated supplier or affiliate that manages a call center.

4.11 Storm Leads Fee. Franchisee will pay Franchisor or its designated supplier, which may
be an affiliate of Franchisor, (currently Franchisor’s affiliate, Storm Leads, Inc.) ninety dollars
($90.00) per lead that Franchisee submits to such supplier which lead is then scheduled for an
appointment with Franchisee by the supplier (“Storm Leads Fee”). Franchisee will pay the Storm
Leads Fee in addition to the Call Center Fee.

4.12 101k TV Fee. Prior to opening for business, Franchisee must pay Franchisor or its
designated supplier two hundred and ten dollars ($210.00) for 101K TV service, which allows
Franchisor to stream content to a television within Franchisee’s Franchised Business. Annually,
Franchisee must pay Franchisor the then-current fee for this service or a similar service that
Franchisor may adopt and require.

ARTICLE 5. ASSISTANCE
5.1 Manual. Franchisor shall make its Manual available to Franchisee.

5.2 Assistance in Hiring Employees. Franchisor shall provide its suggested staffing levels to
Franchisee. Franchisor shall provide suggested guidelines for hiring employees. All hiring
decisions and conditions of employment are Franchisee’s sole responsibility.

5.3 Assistance in Training Employees. Franchisor shall, to the extent it deems appropriate,
provide programs for Franchisee to conduct training of new employees.

5.4 Pre-Opening Assistance.

(a) Pre-Opening Specifications and Vendors. To the extent not included in the Manual,
Franchisor shall provide Franchisee with (i) applicable System Standards and other specifications
as Franchisor deems appropriate (which may include specifications regarding inventory, supplies,
materials, and other matters), and (i1) Franchisor’s lists of Approved Vendors and/or Required
Vendors.

(b) Pre-Opening Training. Franchisor shall make available its standard pre-opening
training to the Principal Executive and up to (two) 2 other employees, at Franchisor’s headquarters
and/or at a Best Choice Roofing business designated by Franchisor. Franchisor shall not charge
any fee for this training. Franchisee is responsible for its own travel, lodging, meal, and other out-
of-pocket expenses.

(©) Market Introduction Plan. Franchisor shall advise Franchisee regarding the
planning and execution of Franchisee’s Market Introduction Plan.

(d) Site Selection. Franchisee shall be solely responsible for selecting the location for
the Licensed Business that complies with the Manual (hereinafter "the Premises"). Franchisee,
within forty-five (45) days after signing this Agreement, shall select a location, subject to
Franchisor’s approval. Franchisor will attempt to provide to Franchisee any information in its
possession regarding the Premises, proposed Premises and any known alternative Premises within
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Franchisee's Territory. Such information is provided by Franchisor without warranty as to its
accuracy or completeness or otherwise. Franchisor has no special expertise in such matters.
Franchisee shall not sign a lease, sub-lease or other obligation until after Franchisee has received
Franchisor's approval of the Premises and lease or sub-lease in writing, which approval shall be
deemed to have been given if Franchisor has not notified Franchisee within ten (10) business days
following Franchisor's receipt from Franchisee of a copy of the proposed lease or sub-lease and
such other information about the proposed Premises as Franchisor may require. Approval of the
Premises or the lease or sub-lease by Franchisor does not constitute a representation or warranty
by Franchisor that the Premises will be good and does not constitute a legal or other opinion as to
any term of the lease or sub-lease. Franchisor may, in Franchisor's discretion, condition approval
upon execution of the Lease Conditional Assignment Agreement by Franchisee and Franchisee's
landlord in the form of Attachment 3, attached hereto. If Franchisee fails to select an approved
location within one hundred and eighty (180) days, Franchisor shall have the option of terminating
this Agreement. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that failure to select an approved location
within one hundred and eighty (180) days is cause for Termination of this Agreement.
Notwithstanding Franchisor’s right to terminate for failure to select an approved location within
one hundred and eighty (180) days, Franchisor may reasonably extend the selection period if
Franchisee has made best efforts to select a location and for valid reasons has been unsuccessful.

5.5 Post-Opening Assistance.

(a) Advice, Consulting, and Support. If Franchisee requests, Franchisor will provide
advice to Franchisee (by telephone or electronic communication) regarding improving and
developing Franchisee’s business, and resolving operating problems Franchisee encounters, to the
extent Franchisor deems reasonable. If Franchisor provides in-person support in response to
Franchisee’s request, Franchisor may charge its then-current fee plus any out-of-pocket expenses
(such as travel, lodging, and meals for employees providing onsite support). As of the Effective
Date of this Agreement, Franchisor’s current fee for in-person support is five-hundred dollars
($500) per day. If Franchisee sends an employee to Franchisor’s initial training program after
Franchisee has opened for business, Franchisee shall pay Franchisor $1,000 per attendee and
Franchisee shall be solely responsible for all other expenses related to such training for its
attendees.

(b) Pricing. Franchisor may establish minimum and maximum pricing for the
Franchised Business.

() Procedures. Franchisor will provide Franchisee with Franchisor’s recommended
administrative, bookkeeping, accounting, and inventory control procedures. Franchisor may make
any such procedures part of required (and not merely recommended) System Standards.

(d) Marketing. Franchisor shall manage the Brand Fund.

(e) Internet. Franchisor shall maintain a website for Best Choice Roofing, which will
include Franchisee’s location (or territory) and telephone number. Franchisee will be prohibited
from creating any websites for the promotion of Franchisee’s Business.
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ARTICLE 6. LOCATION, DEVELOPMENT, AND OPENING

6.1 Location. Franchisee is solely responsible for selecting the Location. If the Location is not
stated on the Summary Page, then Franchisee shall find a suitable Location that meets Franchisor’s
System Standards (if any) within the Territory.

6.2 Lease. In connection with any lease between Franchisee and the landlord of the Location:
(1) if requested by Franchisor, Franchisee must submit the proposed lease to Franchisor for written
approval, and (i1) the term of the lease (including renewal terms) must be for a period of not less
than the term of this Agreement.

6.3 Development. If the Location will be open to the public or used for meeting customers or
potential customers, then Franchisee shall construct (or remodel) and finish the Location in
conformity with Franchisor’s System Standards.

6.4  New Franchisee Training. Franchisee’s Principal Executive must complete Franchisor’s
training program for new franchisees before opening the Business. If the Principal Executive (i)
fails to complete the initial training program to Franchisor’s satisfaction, or (ii) Franchisor
concludes, no more than 10 days after the Principal Executive completes the initial training
program, that the Principal Executive does not have the ability to satisfactorily operate the
Business, then Franchisor may terminate this Agreement. In such event, Franchisor shall refund
the initial franchise fee to Franchisee (less any franchise broker fees and other out-of-pocket costs
incurred by Franchisor related to Franchisee), subject to Franchisee’s prior execution of a general
release of liability of Franchisor and its affiliates, in a form prescribed by Franchisor. Franchisee
must attend training within ninety (90) days of executing this Franchise Agreement.

6.5 Conditions to Opening. Franchisee shall notify Franchisor at least 30 days before
Franchisee intends to open the Business. Before opening, Franchisee must satisfy all of the
following conditions: (1) Franchisee is in compliance with this Agreement, (2) Franchisee has
obtained all applicable governmental permits and authorizations, (3) the Business conforms to all
applicable System Standards, (4) Franchisee has hired sufficient employees, (5) Franchisee’s
officers and employees have completed all of Franchisor’s required pre-opening training; (6)
Franchisee has obtained Platinum Preferred Contractor Status with Owens Corning; and (7)
Franchisor has given its written approval to open, which will not be unreasonably withheld.

6.6  Opening Date. Franchisee shall open the Business within six (6) months of signing this
Franchise Agreement.

ARTICLE 7. OPERATIONS

7.1 Compliance with Manual and System Standards. Franchisee shall at all times and at its
own expense comply with all mandatory obligations contained in the Manual and with all other
System Standards.

7.2 Compliance with Law. Franchisee and the Business shall comply with all laws and
regulations. Franchisee and the Business shall obtain and keep in force all governmental permits
and licenses necessary for the Business.
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7.3  Products and Services. Franchisee shall offer all products and services, and only those
products and services, from time to time prescribed by Franchisor in the Manual or otherwise in
writing. Franchisee shall implement any guaranties, warranties, or similar commitments regarding
products and/or services that Franchisor may require. Franchisee is required to perform all
Warranty Work for products installed during the term of the Franchise Agreement by Franchisee
during and after the term of the Franchise Agreement. Franchisee must purchase all products,
services and equipment from Franchisor’s approved suppliers, which may be Franchisor or an
Affiliate of Franchisor, as designated in the Manual.

7.3.1 Owens Corning Membership. Franchisee must apply for and obtain a Platinum
Preferred Contractor membership/status, including meeting all requirements and making required
payment for such membership/status, from Owens Corning prior to opening the Business.
Franchisee must maintain its Platinum Preferred Contractor Status with Owens Corning at all times
during the Term of this Franchise Agreement, including annually renewing this membership and
paying the applicable renewal fee(s), unless Franchisor states otherwise in writing.

7.3.2 Warranty. Franchisee shall offer all of its customers a warranty on all products
and services in accordance with Franchisor’s standards as contained within the Manual, which
may be changed from time to time in Franchisor’s sole discretion (the “Warranty”). Franchisee
shall be exclusively responsible for the costs associated with providing products and services under
the Warranty, including, without limitation, labor costs. Franchisee’s responsibilities related to the
Warranty shall survive the expiration, termination, or transfer of this Franchise Agreement. If
Franchisee fails to perform its Warranty obligations, Franchisor may, through an affiliate of
Franchisor or any other third-party, provide products and/or services under the Warranty and
charge Franchisee for all costs associated with such products and/or services along with a
reasonable administrative fee.

7.4 Prices. Franchisee acknowledges that the System Standards determined by Franchisor
may include the minimum, maximum, and/or exact prices that franchisees may charge for products
or services sold (except to the extent such authority is limited or prohibited by applicable law).

7.5 Personnel.

(a) Service. Franchisee shall cause its personnel to render competent and courteous
service to all customers and members of the public.

(b) Appearance. Franchisee shall cause its personnel to comply with any dress attire,
uniform, personal appearance and hygiene standards set forth in the Manual.

() Qualifications. Franchisor may set minimum qualifications for categories of
employees employed by Franchisee.

(d) Sole Responsibility. Franchisee is solely responsible for the terms and conditions
of employment of all of its personnel, including recruiting, hiring, training, scheduling,
supervising, compensation, and termination. Franchisee is solely responsible for all actions of its
personnel. Franchisee and Franchisor are not joint employers, and no employee of Franchisee will
be an agent or employee of Franchisor.
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(e) Minimum Number of Sales Representatives. Upon reaching one hundred twenty
thousand dollars ($120,000) in monthly gross revenue for a period of three (3) consecutive months,
Franchisee shall be required to employ no less than four (4) full time sales representatives on behalf
of the Franchised Business, not including Franchisee’s Principal Executive. Failure or refusal to
comply with this requirement shall constitute a material violation of the Franchise Agreement and
will be subject to termination of the Franchise Agreement by Franchisor subject to the cure period
with Section 14.2(b) of the Franchise Agreement.

7.6  Post-Opening Training. Franchisor may at any time require that the Principal Executive
and/or any other employees complete training programs, in any format and in any location
determined by Franchisor. Franchisor may charge a reasonable fee for any training programs.
Franchisor may require Franchisee to provide training programs to its employees. If a training
program is held at a location which requires travel by the Principal Executive or any other
employee, then Franchisee shall pay all travel, living and other expenses.

7.7 Software. Without limiting the generality of Section 7.1 or Section 8.1, Franchisee shall
acquire and use all software and related systems required by Franchisor. Franchisee shall enter into
any subscription and support agreements that Franchisor may require. Franchisee shall upgrade,
update, or replace any software from time to time as Franchisor may require. Franchisee shall
protect the confidentiality and security of all software systems, and shall abide by any System
Standards related thereto. Franchisee shall give Franchisor unlimited access to Franchisee’s point
of sale system and other software systems used in the Business, by any means designated by
Franchisor. Franchisee acknowledges that Franchisor owns Franchisee’s customer relationship
management software (currently Job Nimbus), including all customer data stored on such software.
Franchisee also acknowledges that Franchisor shall own the license to the QuickBooks account
that Franchisee must utilize for its Franchised Business and that Franchisor shall at all times have
administrative level access to the QuickBooks account for any and all purposes. Franchisee must
provide, at Franchisee’s cost, Job Nimbus accounts and access to all of Franchisee’s employees,
including sales representatives who must have Job Nimbus accounts no later than ten (10) days
after their employment by Franchisee.

7.8  Customer Complaints. Franchisee shall use its best efforts to promptly resolve any
customer complaints. Franchisor may take any action it deems appropriate to resolve a customer
complaint regarding the Business, and Franchisor may require Franchisee to reimburse Franchisor
for any expenses.

7.9 Customer Evaluation and System Compliance Programs. Franchisee shall participate
at its own expense in programs required from time to time by Franchisor for obtaining customer
evaluations and/or reviewing Franchisee’s compliance with the System, which may include (but
are not limited to) a customer feedback system, customer survey programs, and mystery shopping.
Franchisor shall share with Franchisee the results of these programs, as they pertain to the
Business. Franchisee must meet or exceed any minimum score requirements set by Franchisor for
such programs.

7.10 Payment Systems. Franchisee shall accept payment from customers in any form or manner
designated by Franchisor (which may include, for example, cash, specific credit and/or debit cards,
gift cards, electronic fund transfer systems, and mobile payment systems). Franchisee shall
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purchase or lease all equipment and enter into all business relationships necessary to accept
payments as required by Franchisor. Franchisee must at all times comply with payment card
industry data security standards (PCI-DSS). Franchisee must issue all invoices, process all sales
payments, and issue all receipts through our point of sale system. Franchsiee shall not collect cash
from or otherwise accept any payments from customers in any other method, unless we approve
of such other method in writing.

7.11 Gift Cards, Loyalty Programs, and Incentive Programs. At its own expense, Franchisee
shall sell or otherwise issue gift cards, certificates, or other pre-paid systems, and participate in
any customer loyalty programs or customer incentive programs, designated by Franchisor, in the
manner specified by Franchisor in the Manual or otherwise in writing. Franchisee shall honor all
valid gift cards and other pre-paid systems, regardless of whether issued by Franchisee or another
Best Choice Roofing business. Franchisee shall comply with all procedures and specifications of
Franchisor related to gift cards, certificates, and other pre-paid systems, or related to customer
loyalty or customer incentive programs.

7.12 Maintenance and Repair. If the Location will be open to the public or used for meeting
customers or potential customers, then Franchisee shall at all times keep the Business in a neat and
clean condition, perform all appropriate maintenance, and keep all physical property in good
repair. In addition, Franchisee shall promptly perform all work on the physical property of the
Business as Franchisor may prescribe from time to time.

7.13  Vehicles. If Franchisee uses one or more vehicles for the Business, Franchisee shall ensure
that all vehicles comply with all applicable System Standards, including without limitation
required equipment and exterior décor. Franchisee shall keep all vehicles in good repair, clean,
and free of dents and other damage, and shall ensure that the vehicles presents a first-class image
appropriate to Franchisor’s System. Franchisee shall use the vehicle solely for the Business.

7.14 Meetings. The Principal Executive must attend all in-person meetings and remote meetings
(such as telephone conference calls) that Franchisor requires. Annually, the Principal Executive
must attend the National Annual Meeting (Christmas Party). Franchisee shall pay Franchisor or
Franchisor’s designee no more than $3,000.00 for up to two (2) people to attend the National
Annual Meeting. The fee for each additional person over two (2) that attends the National Annual
Meeting shall be $700 per person. Franchisee shall additionally be responsible for all travel and
lodging costs associated with attending the National Annual Meeting. The Principal Executive,
general manager and sales manager of the Franchised Business, and anyone with decision-making
authority over the Franchised Business shall attend all of Franchisor’s semi-annual sales training
“Bootcamp” meetings. Franchisee shall pay Franchisor or Franchisor’s designee no more than
$3,000.00 for up to two (2) people to attend each of the semi-annual Bootcamps. The fee for each
additional person over two (2) that attends the semi-annual Bootcamps shall be $700 per person.
Franchisee shall additionally be responsible for all travel and lodging costs associated with
attending the semi-annual Bootcamps. The fees referenced in this Section may be increased to
account for inflation based on the consumer price index. Franchisee must pay these fees even if a
Principal Executive is not able to attend either meeting. Franchisee shall be solely responsible for
all payroll and related expenses for its employees that attend these meetings.

15

Best Choice Roofing Franchising, LLC FDD 2023 Franchise Agreement



7.15 Insurance.

(a) Franchisee shall obtain and maintain insurance policies in the types and amounts as
specified by Franchisor in the Manual. If not specified in the Manual, Franchisee shall maintain at
least the following insurance coverage:

(1) Commercial General Liability insurance, including products liability coverage, and
broad form commercial liability coverage, written on an “occurrence” policy form
in an amount of not less than $1,000,000 single limit per occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate limit;

(i1))  Business Automobile Liability insurance including owned, leased, non-owned and
hired automobiles coverage in an amount of not less than $1,000,000; and

(111))  Workers Compensation coverage as required by state law, but no less than
$1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 in the aggregate.

(b) Franchisee’s policies must list Franchisor and its affiliates as an additional insured
and the policies must stipulate that Franchisor shall receive a 30-day prior written notice of
cancellation. Franchisee shall provide Certificates of Insurance evidencing the required coverage
to Franchisor prior to opening and upon annual renewal of the insurance coverage, as well as at
any time upon request of Franchisor.

7.16 Suppliers and Landlord. Franchisee shall pay all vendors and suppliers in a timely
manner. If Franchisee leases the Location, Franchisee shall comply with its lease for the Location.

7.17 Public Relations. Franchisee shall not make any public statements (including giving
interviews or issuing press releases) regarding Best Choice Roofing, the Business, or any particular
incident or occurrence related to the Business, without Franchisor’s prior written approval.

7.18 Association with Causes. Franchisee shall not in the name of the Business (i) donate
money, products, or services to any charitable, political, religious, or other organization, or (i1) act
in support of any such organization, without Franchisor’s prior written approval.

7.19 No Other Businesses. If Franchisee is an entity, Franchisee shall not own or operate any
other business except Best Choice Roofing businesses.

7.20 No Third-Party Management. Franchisee shall not engage a third-party management
company to manage or operate the Business without the prior written approval of Franchisor,
which will not be unreasonably withheld.

7.21 No Co-Branding. Franchisee shall not “co-brand” or associate any other business activity
with the Best Choice Roofing Business in a manner which is likely to cause the public to perceive
it to be related to the Best Choice Roofing Business.

7.22 No Subcontracting. Franchisee shall not subcontract or delegate to a third party any
services to be performed by Franchisee for a customer other than engaging subcontractors for the
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labor involved with installing roofing systems and engaging individuals as independent contractors
in the ordinary course of business.

7.23 Identification. Franchisee must identify itself as the independent owner of the Business in
the manner prescribed by Franchisor.

7.24 Business Practices. Franchisee, in all interactions with customers, employees, vendors,
governmental authorities, and other third parties, shall be honest and fair. Franchisee shall comply
with any code of ethics or statement of values from Franchisor. Franchisee shall not take any action
which may injure the goodwill associated with the Marks.

7.25 Repossession. Franchisee shall not sell, sublease, scrap, donate, barter, or otherwise
dispose of any franchise equipment without express consent from Franchisor. Franchisor shall
have the first right to repossess or otherwise acquire any equipment used in the operation of
Franchisee’s Best Choice Roofing business, including but not limited to vehicles, parts, inventory,
tools, and communication devices. Franchisor will compensate Franchisee and/or any lien holders
for the repossession by Franchisor of the equipment described herein. Compensation may be
Franchisee owes to Franchisor. Franchisor shall have full discretion and rights as it applies to
repossessing any of Franchisee’s equipment. Franchisor’s rights described herein do not release
Franchisee from any liens, leases, or financing agreements. Franchisor shall have no obligation to
co-sign for any of Franchisee’s equipment, and Franchisor will not assume any liabilities
whatsoever resulting from Franchisee’s failure to make payment on any equipment, including
equipment that may have been repossessed or otherwise acquired by Franchisor.

7.26 Adherence to Codes. Franchisee must adhere to all national, state, and local or municipal
building codes related to the installation of roofing systems. Franchisee hereby acknowledges that
Franchisee is solely responsible for determining what building codes apply to roofing services
within the Territory.

7.27 Contests. Franchisor shall have the right to institute or implement contests on behalf of the
System, which Franchisee must participate in. If Franchisor institutes or implements any such
contest and an employee of Franchisee is declared the winner of said contest, Franchisee shall be
required to reimburse the costs of Franchisor and/or any approved supplier for said contest prize
up to one thousand dollars ($1,000).

ARTICLE 8. SUPPLIERS AND VENDORS

8.1 Generally. Franchisee shall acquire all Inputs required by Franchisor from time to time in
accordance with System Standards. Franchisor may require Franchisee to purchase or lease any
Inputs from Franchisor, Franchisor’s designee, Required Vendors, Approved Vendors, and/or
under Franchisor’s specifications. Franchisor may change any such requirement or change the
status of any vendor. To make such requirement or change effective, Franchisor shall issue the
appropriate System Standards.

8.2 Alternate Vendor Approval. If Franchisor requires Franchisee to purchase a particular
Input only from an Approved Vendor or Required Vendor, and Franchisee desires to purchase the
Input from another vendor, then Franchisee must submit a written request for approval and any
information, specifications and/or samples requested by Franchisor. Franchisor may condition its
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approval on such criteria as Franchisor deems appropriate, which may include evaluations of the
vendor’s capacity, quality, financial stability, reputation, and reliability; inspections; product
testing, and performance reviews. Franchisor will provide Franchisee with written notification of
the approval or disapproval of any proposed new vendor within 30 days after receipt of
Franchisee’s request.

8.3  Alternate Input Approval. If Franchisor requires Franchisee to purchase a particular
Input, and Franchisee desires to purchase an alternate to the Input, then Franchisee must submit a
written request for approval and any information, specifications and/or samples requested by
Franchisor. Franchisor will provide Franchisee with written notification of the approval or
disapproval of any proposed alternate Input within 30 days after receipt of Franchisee’s request.

8.4  Purchasing. Franchisor may implement a centralized purchasing system and negotiate
prices and terms with vendors on behalf of the System. Franchisor may receive rebates or payments
from vendors in connection with purchases by franchisees. Franchisor may establish a purchasing
cooperative and require Franchisee to join and participate in the purchasing cooperative on such
terms and conditions as Franchisor may determine.

8.5  No Liability of Franchisor. Franchisor shall not have any liability to Franchisee for any
claim or loss related to any product provided or service performed by any Approved Vendor or
Required Vendor, including without limitation defects, delays, or unavailability of products or
services.

8.6 Product Recalls. If Franchisor or any vendor, supplier, or manufacturer of an item used or
sold in Franchisee’s Business issues a recall of such item or otherwise notifies Franchisee that such
item is defective or dangerous, Franchisee shall immediately cease using or selling such item, and
Franchisee shall at its own expense comply with all instructions from Franchisor or the vendor,
supplier, or manufacturer of such item with respect to the recall, repair, or other remedy of such
item.

ARTICLE 9. MARKETING

9.1 Implementation. Franchisee shall not use any marketing materials or campaigns
(including point-of-sale materials, advertising, social media marketing, and sponsorships) that
have not been approved by Franchisor. Franchisee shall implement any marketing plans or
campaigns determined by Franchisor.

9.2 Use By Franchisor. Franchisor may use any marketing materials or campaigns developed
by or on behalf of Franchisee, and Franchisee hereby grants an unlimited, royalty-free license to
Franchisor for such purpose.

9.3 Brand Fund. Franchisor has established a Brand Fund, and:

(a) Separate Account. Franchisor shall hold the Brand Fund Contributions from all
franchisees in one or more bank accounts separate from Franchisor’s other accounts.

(b) Use. Franchisor shall use the Brand Fund only for marketing, advertising, and
public relations materials, programs and campaigns (including at local, regional, national, and/or
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international level), and related overhead. The foregoing includes such activities and expenses as
Franchisor reasonably determines, and may include, without limitation: reimbursement or
contribution towards contests established by Franchisor on behalf of the System; development and
placement of advertising and promotions; sponsorships; contests and sweepstakes; development
of décor, trade dress, Marks, and/or branding; development and maintenance of brand websites;
social media; internet activities; e-commerce programs; search engine optimization; market
research; public relations, media or agency costs; trade shows and other events; printing and
mailing; and administrative and overhead expenses related to the Brand Fund (including the
compensation of Franchisor’s employees working on marketing and for accounting, bookkeeping,
reporting, legal and other expenses related to the Brand Fund).

(©) Discretion. Franchisee agrees that expenditures from the Brand Fund need not be
proportionate to contributions made by Franchisee or provide any direct or indirect benefit to
Franchisee. The Brand Fund will be spent at Franchisor’s sole discretion, and Franchisor has no
fiduciary duty with regard to the Brand Fund.

(d) Surplus or Deficit. Franchisor may accumulate funds in the Brand Fund and carry
the balance over to subsequent years. If the Brand Fund operates at a deficit or requires additional
funds at any time, Franchisor may loan such funds to the National Brand Fund on reasonable terms.

(e) Financial Statement. Franchisor will prepare an unaudited annual financial
statement of the Brand Fund within 120 days of the close of Franchisor’s fiscal year and will
provide the financial statement to Franchisee upon request.

9.4  Market Cooperatives. Franchisor may establish market advertising and promotional
cooperative funds (“Market Cooperative”) in any geographical areas. If a Market Cooperative for
the geographic area encompassing the Territory has been established at the time Franchisee
commences operations hereunder, Franchisee shall immediately become a member of such Market
Cooperative. If a Market Cooperative for the geographic area encompassing the Territory is
established during the term of this Agreement, Franchisee shall become a member of such Market
Cooperative within 30 days. Franchisor shall not require Franchisee to be a member of more than
one Market Cooperative. If Franchisor establishes a Market Cooperative:

(a) Governance. Each Market Cooperative will be organized and governed in a form
and manner, and shall commence operations on a date, determined by Franchisor. Franchisor may
require the Market Cooperative to adopt bylaws or regulations prepared by Franchisor. Unless
otherwise specified by Franchisor, the activities carried on by each Market Cooperative shall be
decided by a majority vote of its members. Franchisor will be entitled to attend and participate in
any meeting of a Market Cooperative. Any Best Choice Roofing business owned by Franchisor in
the Market Cooperative shall have the same voting rights as those owned by its franchisees. Each
Business owner will be entitled to cast one vote for each Business owned, provided, however, that
a franchisee shall not be entitled to vote if it is in default under its franchise agreement. If the
members of a Market Cooperative are unable or fail to determine the manner in which Market
Cooperative monies will be spent, Franchisor may assume this decision-making authority after 10
days’ notice to the members of the Market Cooperative.
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(b) Purpose. Each Market Cooperative shall be devoted exclusively to administering
regional advertising and marketing programs and developing (subject to Franchisor’s approval)
standardized promotional materials for use by the members in local advertising and promotion.

(©) Approval. No advertising or promotional plans or materials may be used by a
Market Cooperative or furnished to its members without the prior approval of Franchisor pursuant
to Section 9.1. Franchisor may designate the national or regional advertising agencies used by the
Market Cooperative.

(d) Funding. The majority vote of the Market Cooperative will determine the dues to
be paid by members of the Market Cooperative, including Franchisee, but not less than 1% of
Gross Sales.

(e) Enforcement. Only Franchisor will have the right to enforce the obligations of
franchisees who are members of a Market Cooperative to contribute to the Market Cooperative.

) Termination. Franchisor may terminate any Market Cooperative. Any funds left in
a Market Cooperative upon termination will be transferred to the Brand Fund.

(2) Fees. Once a cooperative is formed, the Marketing Cooperative Contribution shall
not be less than one percent (1%) of Gross Sales.

9.5  Market Introduction Plan. Franchisee must develop a market introduction plan and
obtain Franchisor’s approval of the market introduction plan at least 30 days before the projected
opening date of the Business.

9.6 Internet Marketing. Franchisor has the exclusive right to conduct and manage all
marketing and commerce on the internet or other electronic medium, including all websites and
“social media” marketing. Franchisee shall not conduct such marketing or commerce, nor establish
any website or social media presence independently, except as Franchisor may specify, and only
with Franchisor’s consent. Franchisor retains the right to approve any linking to or other use of
Franchisor’s website. Franchisee must comply with any internet, online commerce and/or social
media policy that Franchisor may prescribe.

9.7 Grand Opening Marketing. Franchisee must spend at least five thousand dollars ($5,000)
on advertising the opening of Franchisee’s Business. This amount must be paid to Franchisor’s
preferred online marketing vendor and spent between the four weeks before and the two weeks
after the date Franchisee opens the Business.

ARTICLE 10. RECORDS AND REPORTS

10.1 Systems. Franchisee shall use such customer data management, sales data management,
administrative, bookkeeping, accounting, and inventory control procedures and systems as
Franchisor may specify in the Manual or otherwise in writing.
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10.2 Reports.

(a) Financial Reports. Franchisee shall provide such periodic financial reports as
Franchisor may require in the Manual or otherwise in writing, including:

(1) a monthly profit and loss statement and balance sheet for the Business within 30
days after the end of each month of Franchisor’s fiscal year;

(11) an annual financial statement (including profit and loss statement, cash flow
statement, and balance sheet) for the Business within 90 days after the end of
Franchisor’s fiscal year;

(111))  amonthly vendor aging report for the Business within 30 days after the end of each
fiscal quarter of Franchisor’s fiscal year; and

(iv)  any information Franchisor requests in order to prepare a financial performance
representation for Franchisor’s franchise disclosure document.

(b) Cost of Labor and Material. Franchisee shall provide costs of labor and materials
report for the Business within 30 days after the end of each fiscal quarter.

(©) Legal Actions and Investigations. Franchisee shall promptly notify Franchisor of
any Action or threatened Action by any customer, governmental authority, or other third party
against Franchisee or the Business, or otherwise involving the Franchisee or the Business.
Franchisee shall provide such documents and information related to any such Action as Franchisor
may request.

(d) Government Inspections. Franchisee shall give Franchisor copies of all inspection
reports, warnings, certificates, and ratings issued by any governmental entity with respect to the
Business, within three days of Franchisee’s receipt thereof.

(d) Other Information. Franchisee shall submit to Franchisor such other financial
statements, reports, records, copies of contracts, documents related to litigation, tax returns, copies
of governmental permits, and other documents and information related to the Business as specified
in the Manual or that Franchisor may reasonably request.

10.3 Initial Investment Report. Within 120 days after opening for business, Franchisee shall
submit to Franchisor a report detailing Franchisee’s investment costs to develop and open the
Business, with costs allocated to the categories described in Item 7 of Franchisor’s Franchise
Disclosure Document and with such other information as Franchisor may request.

10.4 Business Records. Franchisee shall keep complete and accurate books and records
reflecting all expenditures and receipts of the Business, with supporting documents (including, but
not limited to, payroll records, payroll tax returns, register receipts, production reports, sales
invoices, bank statements, deposit receipts, cancelled checks and paid invoices) for at least three
years. Franchisee shall keep such other business records as Franchisor may specity in the Manual
or otherwise in writing.
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10.5 Records Audit. Franchisor may examine and audit all books and records related to the
Business, and supporting documentation, at any reasonable time. Franchisor may conduct the audit
at the Location and/or require Franchisee to deliver copies of books, records and supporting
documentation to a location designated by Franchisor. Franchisee shall also reimburse Franchisor
for all costs and expenses of the examination or audit if (i) Franchisor conducted the audit because
Franchisee failed to submit required reports or was otherwise not in compliance with the System,
or (i1) the audit reveals that Franchisee understated Gross Sales by 3% or more for any month.

ARTICLE 11. FRANCHISOR RIGHTS

11.1 Manual; Modification. The Manual, and any part of the Manual, may be in any form or
media determined by Franchisor. Franchisor may supplement, revise, or modify the Manual, and
Franchisor may change, add or delete System Standards at any time in its discretion. Franchisor
may inform Franchisee thereof by any method that Franchisor deems appropriate (which need not
qualify as “notice” under Section 18.9). In the event of any dispute as to the contents of the Manual,
Franchisor’s master copy will control.

11.2 Business Evaluation. Franchisor may accompany Franchisee or its personnel on any
services performed for a customer to conduct an evaluation. If the Location will be open to the
public or used for meeting customers or potential customers, Franchisor may enter the premises of
the Business from time to time during normal business hours and conduct an evaluation.
Franchisee shall cooperate with Franchisor’s evaluators. The evaluation may include, but is not
limited to, observing operations, conducting a physical inventory, evaluating physical conditions,
monitoring sales activity, speaking with employees and customers, and removing samples of
products, supplies and materials. Franchisor may videotape and/or take photographs of the
evaluation. Without limiting Franchisor’s other rights under this Agreement, Franchisee will, as
soon as reasonably practical, correct any deficiencies noted during an evaluation. If Franchisor
conducts an evaluation because of a governmental report, customer complaint or other customer
feedback, or a default or non-compliance with any System Standard by Franchisee (including
following up a previous failed evaluation), then Franchisor may charge all out-of-pocket expenses
plus its then-current evaluation fee to Franchisee.

11.3  Franchisor’s Right to Cure. If Franchisee breaches or defaults under any provision of
this Agreement, Franchisor may (but has no obligation to) take any action to cure the default on
behalf of Franchisee, without any liability to Franchisee. Franchisee shall reimburse Franchisor
for its costs and expenses (including the allocation of any internal costs) for such action, plus 10%
as an administrative fee.

11.4 Right to Discontinue Supplies Upon Default. While Franchisee is in default or breach of
this Agreement, Franchisor may (i) require that Franchisee pay cash on delivery for products or
services supplied by Franchisor, (ii) stop selling or providing any products and services to
Franchisee, and/or (ii1) request any third-party vendors to not sell or provide products or services
to Franchisee. No such action by Franchisor shall be a breach or constructive termination of this
Agreement, change in competitive circumstances or similarly characterized, and Franchisee shall
not be relieved of any obligations under this Agreement because of any such action. Such rights
of Franchisor are in addition to any other right or remedy available to Franchisor.
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11.5 Business Data. All customer data and other non-public data generated by the Business is
Confidential Information and is exclusively owned by Franchisor. Franchisor hereby licenses such
data back to Franchisee without charge solely for Franchisee’s use in connection with the Business
for the term of this Agreement.

11.6 Innovations. Franchisee shall disclose to Franchisor all ideas, plans, improvements,
concepts, methods and techniques relating to the Business (collectively, “Innovations”) conceived
or developed by Franchisee, its employees, agents or contractors. Franchisor will automatically
own all Innovations and it will have the right to use and incorporate any Innovations into the
System, without any compensation to Franchisee.

11.7 Communication Systems. If Franchisor provides email accounts and/or other
communication systems to Franchisee, then Franchisee acknowledges that it has no expectation of
privacy in the assigned email accounts and other communications systems, and Franchisee
authorizes Franchisor to access such communications.

11.8 Delegation. Franchisor may delegate any duty or obligation of Franchisor under this
Agreement to an affiliate or to a third party.

11.9 System Variations. Franchisor may vary or waive any System Standard for any one or
more Best Choice Roofing franchises due to the peculiarities of the particular site or circumstances,
density of population, business potential, population of trade area, existing business practices,
applicable laws or regulations, or any other condition relevant to the performance of a franchise or
group of franchises. Franchisee is not entitled to the same variation or waiver.

11.10 Temporary Public Safety Closure. If Franchisor discovers or becomes aware of any
aspect of the Business which, in Franchisor’s opinion, constitutes an imminent danger to the health
or safety of any person, then immediately upon Franchisor’s order, Franchisee must temporarily
cease operations of the Business and remedy the dangerous condition. Franchisor shall have no
liability to Franchisee or any other person for action or failure to act with respect to a dangerous
condition.

ARTICLE 12. MARKS

12.1 Authorized Marks. Franchisee shall use no trademarks, service marks or logos in
connection with the Business other than the Marks. Franchisee shall use all Marks specified by
Franchisor, and only in the manner as Franchisor may require. Franchisee has no rights in the
Marks other than the right to use them in the operation of the Business in compliance with this
Agreement. All use of the Marks by Franchisee and any goodwill associated with the Marks,
including any goodwill arising due to Franchisee’s operation of the Business, will inure to the
exclusive benefit of Franchisor.

12.2 Change of Marks. Franchisor may add, modify, or discontinue any Marks to be used under
the System. Within a reasonable time after Franchisor makes any such change, Franchisee must
comply with the change, at Franchisee’s expense.
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12.3 Infringement.

(a) Defense of Franchisee. If Franchisee has used the Marks in accordance with this
Agreement, then (i) Franchisor shall defend Franchisee (at Franchisor’s expense) against any
Action by a third party alleging infringement by Franchisee’s use of a Mark, and (i1) Franchisor
will indemnify Franchisee for expenses and damages if the Action is resolved unfavorably to
Franchisee.

(b) Infringement by Third Party. Franchisee shall promptly notify Franchisor if
Franchisee becomes aware of any possible infringement of a Mark by a third party. Franchisor
may, in its sole discretion, commence or join any claim against the infringing party.

(©) Control. Franchisor shall have the exclusive right to control any prosecution or
defense of any Action related to possible infringement of or by the Marks.

ARTICLE 13. COVENANTS

13.1 Confidential Information. With respect to all Confidential Information, Franchisee shall
(a) adhere to all procedures prescribed by Franchisor for maintaining confidentiality, (b) disclose
such information to its employees only to the extent necessary for the operation of the Business;
(c) not use any such information in any other business or in any manner not specifically authorized
in writing by Franchisor, (d) exercise the highest degree of diligence and effort to maintain the
confidentiality of all such information during and after the term of this Agreement, (¢) not copy or
otherwise reproduce any Confidential Information, and (f) promptly report any unauthorized
disclosure or use of Confidential Information. Franchisee acknowledges that all Confidential
Information is owned by Franchisor (except for Confidential Information which Franchisor
licenses from another person or entity). This Section will survive the termination or expiration of
this Agreement indefinitely.

13.2 Covenants Not to Compete.

(a) Restriction — In Term. During the term of this Agreement, neither Franchisee, any
Owner, nor any spouse of an Owner (the “Restricted Parties”) shall directly or indirectly have any
ownership interest in, or be engaged or employed by, any Competitor.

(b) Restriction — Post Term. For two years after this Agreement expires or is terminated
for any reason (or, if applicable, for two years after a Transfer), no Restricted Party shall directly
or indirectly have any ownership interest in, or be engaged or employed by, any Competitor
operating in any of Franchisee’s Territory or the territory of any other Best Choice Roofing
business operating on the date of termination or transfer, as applicable.

(©) Interpretation. The parties agree that each of the foregoing covenants is independent
of any other covenant or provision of this Agreement. If all or any portion of the covenants in this
Section is held to be unenforceable or unreasonable by any court, then the parties intend that the
court modify such restriction to the extent reasonably necessary to protect the legitimate business
interests of Franchisor. Franchisee agrees that the existence of any claim it may have against
Franchisor shall not constitute a defense to the enforcement by Franchisor of the covenants of this
Section. If a Restricted Party fails to comply with the obligations under this Section during the
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restrictive period, then the restrictive period will be extended an additional day for each day of
noncompliance.

13.3 General Manager and Employees. If requested by Franchisor, Franchisee will (1) perform
criminal background checks on its general manager and all other employees and (ii) cause its
general manager and all other employees to sign Franchisor’s then-current form of confidentiality
and non-compete agreement.

13.4 No Poaching. During the Term of this Franchise, Franchisee shall not employ or seek to
employ any person who is at the time employed by Franchisor, its affiliates, or by any other
franchisee of Franchisor or otherwise induce, directly or indirectly, such person to leave such
employment. This paragraph shall not be violated if such person has left the employ of any of the
foregoing parties for a period in excess of six (6) months.

ARTICLE 14. DEFAULT AND TERMINATION

14.1 Termination by Franchisee. Franchisee may terminate this Agreement only if Franchisor
violates a material provision of this Agreement and fails to cure or to make substantial progress
toward curing the violation within 30 days after receiving written notice from Franchisee detailing
the alleged default. Termination by Franchisee is effective 10 days after Franchisor receives
written notice of termination.

14.2 Termination by Franchisor.

(a) Subject to 10-Day Cure Period. Franchisor may terminate this Agreement if
Franchisee does not make any payment to Franchisor when due, or if Franchisee does not have
sufficient funds in its account when Franchisor attempts an electronic funds withdrawal, and
Franchisee fails to cure such non-payment within 10 days after Franchisor gives notice to
Franchisee of such breach.

(b) Subject to 30-Day Cure Period. If Franchisee breaches this Agreement in any
manner not described in subsection (a) or (c) and fails to cure such breach to Franchisor’s
satisfaction within 30 days after Franchisor gives notice to Franchisee of such breach, then
Franchisor may terminate this Agreement.

(©) Without Cure Period. Franchisor may terminate this Agreement by giving notice to
Franchisee, without opportunity to cure, if any of the following occur:

(1) Franchisee misrepresented or omitted material facts when applying to be a
franchisee, or breaches any representation in this Agreement;

(i1)  Franchisee knowingly submits any false report or knowingly provides any other
false information to Franchisor;

(111)  a receiver or trustee for the Business or all or substantially all of Franchisee’s
property is appointed by any court, or Franchisee makes a general assignment for
the benefit of Franchisee’s creditors or Franchisee makes a written statement to the
effect that Franchisee is unable to pay its debts as they become due, or a levy or
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execution is made against the Business, or an attachment or lien remains on the
Business for 30 days unless the attachment or lien is being duly contested in good
faith by Franchisee, or a petition in bankruptcy is filed by Franchisee, or such a
petition is filed against or consented to by Franchisee and the petition is not
dismissed within 45 days, or Franchisee is adjudicated as bankrupt;

(iv)  Franchisee fails to open for business within six (6) months of signing this Franchise
Agreement;

v) Franchisee or any Owner commits a material violation of Section 7.2 (compliance
with laws) or Section 13.1 (confidentiality), violates Section 13.2 (non-compete) or
Article 15 (transfer), or commits any other violation of this Agreement which by
its nature cannot be cured;

(vi)  Franchisee abandons or ceases operation of the Business for more than 15
consecutive days;

(vii)  Franchisee or any Owner slanders or libels Franchisor or any of its employees,
directors, or officers;

(viii) Franchisee refuses to cooperate with or permit any audit or evaluation by
Franchisor or its agents or contractors, or otherwise fails to comply with Section
10.5 or Section 11.2.

(ix)  the Business is operated in a manner which, in Franchisor’s reasonable judgment,
constitutes a significant danger to the health or safety of any person, and Franchisee
fails to cure such danger within 48 hours after becoming aware of the danger (due
to notice from Franchisor or otherwise);

(x) Franchisee has received two or more notices of default and Franchisee commits
another breach of this Agreement, all in the same 12-month period;

(xi)  Franchisor (or any affiliate) terminates any other agreement with Franchisee (or
any affiliate) due to the breach of such other agreement by Franchisee (or its
affiliate); or

(xii)  Franchisee or any Owner is accused by any governmental authority or third party
of any act that in Franchisor’s opinion is reasonably likely to materially and
unfavorably affect Franchisor’s brand, or is charged with, pleads guilty to, or is
convicted of a felony.

14.3 Effect of Termination. Upon termination or expiration of this Agreement, all obligations
that by their terms or by reasonable implication survive termination, including those pertaining to
non-competition, confidentiality, indemnity, and dispute resolution, will remain in effect, and
Franchisee must immediately:

(1) pay all amounts owed to Franchisor based on the operation of the Business through
the effective date of termination or expiration;
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(i1)  return to Franchisor all copies of the Manual, Confidential Information and any and
all other materials provided by Franchisor to Franchisee or created by a third party
for Franchisee relating to the operation of the Business, and all items containing
any Marks, copyrights, and other proprietary items; and delete all Confidential
Information and proprietary materials from electronic devices;

(i11)  notify the telephone, internet, email, electronic network, directory, and listing
entities of the termination or expiration of Franchisee’s right to use any numbers,
addresses, domain names, locators, directories and listings associated with any of
the Marks, and authorize their transfer to Franchisor or any new franchisee as may
be directed by Franchisor, and Franchisee hereby irrevocably appoints Franchisor,
with full power of substitution, as its true and lawful attorney-in-fact, which
appointment is coupled with an interest; to execute such directions and
authorizations as may be necessary or appropriate to accomplish the foregoing; and

(iv)  cease doing business under any of the Marks; and

(v) return Best Choice Roofing proprietary equipment to Franchisor and cease using
any intellectual property associated with Franchise.

14.4 Remove Identification. If Franchisee operates from a Location other than Franchisee’s
home, then within 30 days after termination or expiration, Franchisee shall at its own expense “de-
identify” the Location so that it no longer contains the Marks, signage, or any trade dress of a Best
Choice Roofing business, to the reasonable satisfaction of Franchisor. Franchisee shall comply
with any reasonable instructions and procedures of Franchisor for de-identification. If Franchisee
fails to do so within 30 days after this Agreement expires or is terminated, Franchisor may enter
the Location to remove the Marks and de-identify the Location. In this event, Franchisor will not
be charged with trespass nor be accountable or required to pay for any assets removed or altered,
or for any damage caused by Franchisor.

14.5 Other Claims. Termination of this Agreement by Franchisor will not affect or discharge
any claims, rights, causes of action or remedies (including claims for Franchisor’s lost future
income after termination), which Franchisor may have against Franchisee, whether arising before
or after termination.

14.6 Purchase Option. When this Agreement expires or is terminated, Franchisor will have the
right (but not the obligation) to purchase any or all of the assets related to the Business at fair
market value. To exercise this option, Franchisor must notify Franchisee no later than 30 days after
this Agreement expires or is terminated. If the parties cannot agree on fair market value within 30
days after the exercise notice, the fair market value will be determined by an independent appraiser
reasonably acceptable to both parties. The parties will equally share the cost of the appraisal.
Franchisor’s purchase will be of assets only (free and clear of all liens), and the purchase will not
include any liabilities of Franchisee. If Franchisor exercises the purchase option, Franchisor may
deduct from the purchase price: (a) all amounts due from Franchisee; (b) Franchisee’s portion of
the cost of any appraisal conducted hereunder; and (c¢) amounts which Franchisor paid or will pay
to third parties to satisfy indebtedness owed by Franchisee to third parties. If any of the assets are
subject to a lien, Franchisor may pay a portion of the purchase price directly to the lienholder to
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pay off such lien. Franchisor may withhold 25% of the purchase price for 90 days to ensure that
all of Franchisee’s taxes and other liabilities are paid. Franchisor may assign this purchase option
to another party.

14.7 Step-in Rights.

(1) In order to prevent any interruption of the operations which would cause harm to
the Franchised Business, thereby depreciating the value thereof, Franchisor has the right, but not
the obligation, to step-in and designate an individual of its choosing (an “Interim Manager”) for
so long as Franchisor deems necessary and practical to temporarily manage the Franchised
Business: (i) if Franchisee fails to comply with any provision of this Agreement and does not cure
the failure within the time period specified in this Agreement or by Franchisor if not time is
specified; (i1) if Franchisor determines in its sole judgment that the operation of the Franchised
Business is in jeopardy; (iii) if Franchisor determines in its sole discretion that operational
problems require that Franchisor operate the Franchised Business; (iv) if Franchisee abandons or
fail to actively operate the Franchised Business; (v) upon Franchisee’s death or disability; or (vi)
if Franchisor deems Franchisee incapable of operating the Franchised Business (“Step-in Rights”).

(i1) If Franchisor exercises its Step-in Rights: (i) Franchisor shall keep in a separate
account all monies generated by the operation of the Franchised Business, less the expenses of the
Franchised Business, including reasonable compensation and expenses for Franchisor’s
representatives (including an Interim Manager) as well as Franchisor’s other expenses incurred in
exercising its rights; (i1) Franchisee agrees to hold harmless Franchisor and its representatives for
all actions occurring during the course of such temporary operation and acknowledge that the
Interim Manager will have no liability to Franchisee, except to the extent directly caused by its
gross negligence or willful misconduct; (ii1) Franchisee agrees to pay Franchisor its then current
management fee; (iv) Franchisee agrees to pay Franchisor all of its reasonable costs and expenses,
including, but not limited to, attorneys’ fees incurred as a consequence of our exercise of the Step-
In Rights; and (v) Franchisee acknowledges that the Interim Manager will have a duty to utilize
only reasonable efforts and will not be liable to Franchisee or Franchisee’s owners for any debts,
losses, or obligations the Franchised Business incurs, or to any of Franchisee’s or the Franchised
Business’s creditors for any supplies, products, or other assets or services the Franchised Business
purchases, while Interim Manager manages it. Nothing contained herein shall prevent Franchisor
from exercising any other right which it may have under this Agreement, including, without
limitation, termination.

ARTICLE 15. TRANSFERS

15.1 By Franchisor. Franchisor may transfer or assign this Agreement, or any of its rights or
obligations under this Agreement, to any person or entity, and Franchisor may undergo a change
in ownership and/or control, without the consent of Franchisee.

15.2 By Franchisee. Franchisee acknowledges that the rights and duties set forth in this
Agreement are personal to Franchisee and that Franchisor entered into this Agreement in reliance
on Franchisee’s business skill, financial capacity, personal character, experience, and business
ability. Accordingly, Franchisee shall not conduct or undergo a Transfer without providing
Franchisor at least 60 days prior notice of the proposed Transfer, and without obtaining

28

Best Choice Roofing Franchising, LLC FDD 2023 Franchise Agreement



Franchisor’s consent. In granting any such consent, Franchisor may impose conditions, including,
without limitation, the following:

(1) Franchisor receives a transfer fee equal to $10,000;

(i1)  the proposed assignee and its owners have completed Franchisor’s franchise
application processes, meet Franchisor’s then-applicable standards for new
franchisees, and have been approved by Franchisor as franchisees;

(111)  the proposed assignee is not a Competitor;

(iv)  the proposed assignee executes Franchisor’s then-current form of franchise
agreement, which form may contain materially different provisions;

v) all owners of the proposed assignee provide a guaranty in accordance with Section
2.5;

(vi)  Franchisee has paid all monetary obligations to Franchisor in full, and Franchisee
is not otherwise in default or breach of this Agreement;

(vii) the proposed assignee and its owners and employees undergo such training as
Franchisor may require;

(viii) Franchisee, its Owners, and the transferee and its owners execute a general release
of Franchisor in a form satisfactory to Franchisor;

(ix)  Franchisee or the proposed transferee reimburses Franchisor upon receipt of
Franchisor’s invoice for any broker or other placement fees Franchisor incurs as a
result of the Transfer; and

(x) the Business fully complies with all of Franchisor’s most recent System Standards.

15.3 Transfer for Convenience of Ownership. If Franchisee is an individual, Franchisee may
Transfer this Agreement to a corporation or limited liability company formed for the convenience
of ownership after at least 15 days’ notice to Franchisor, if, prior to the Transfer: (1) the transferee
provides the information required by Section 2.3; (2) Franchisee provides copies of the entity’s
charter documents, by-laws (or operating agreement) and similar documents, if requested by
Franchisor, (3) Franchisee owns all voting securities of the corporation or limited liability
company, and (4) Franchisee provides a guaranty in accordance with Section 2.5. Franchisor may
require Franchisee to pay its reasonable costs associated with completing a transfer for
convenience of ownership, but Franchisee shall not be required to pay Franchisor the $10,000
transfer fee found in Section 15.2.

15.4 Transfer upon Death or Incapacity. Upon the death or incapacity of Franchisee (or, if
Franchisee is an entity, the person with the largest ownership interest in Franchisee), the executor,
administrator, or personal representative of that person must Transfer the Business to a third party
approved by Franchisor within nine months after death or incapacity. Such transfer must comply
with Section 15.2.
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15.5 Franchisor’s Right of First Refusal. Before Franchisee (or any Owner) engages in a
Transfer (except under Section 15.3), Franchisor will have a right of first refusal, as set forth in
this Section. Franchisee (or its Owners) shall provide to Franchisor a copy of the terms and
conditions of any Transfer. For a period of 30 days from the date of Franchisor’s receipt of such
copy, Franchisor will have the right, exercisable by notice to Franchisee, to purchase the assets
subject of the proposed Transfer for the same price and on the same terms and conditions (except
that Franchisor may substitute cash for any other form of payment). If Franchisor does not exercise
its right of first refusal, Franchisee may proceed with the Transfer, subject to the other terms and
conditions of this Article.

15.6 No Sublicense. Franchisee has no right to sublicense the Marks or any of Franchisee’s
rights under this Agreement.

15.7 No Lien on Agreement. Franchisee shall not grant a security interest in this Agreement to
any person or entity. If Franchisee grants an “all assets” security interest to any lender or other
secured party, Franchisee shall cause the secured party to expressly exempt this Agreement from
the security interest.

ARTICLE 16. INDEMNITY

16.1 Indemnity. Franchisee shall indemnify and defend (with counsel reasonably acceptable to
Franchisor) Franchisor, its parent entities, subsidiaries and affiliates, and their respective owners,
directors, officers, employees, agents, successors and assignees (collectively, “Indemnitees’)
against all Losses in any Action by or against Franchisor and/or any Indemnitee directly or
indirectly related to, or alleged to arise out of, the operation of the Business. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, Franchisee shall not be obligated to indemnify an Indemnitee from Actions arising as a
result of any Indemnitee’s misconduct or negligence. This indemnity will continue in effect after
this Agreement ends.

16.2 Assumption by Franchisor. Franchisor may elect to assume the defense and/or settlement
of any Action subject to indemnification under Section 16.1, at Franchisee’s expense. Such an
undertaking shall not diminish Franchisee’s obligation to indemnify the Indemnitees.

ARTICLE 17. DISPUTE RESOLUTION

17.1 Arbitration.

(a) Disputes Subject to Arbitration. Except as expressly provided in subsection (¢), any
controversy or claim arising out of or relating to this Agreement (including its formation) shall be
resolved by arbitration administered by the American Arbitration Association in accordance with
its Commercial Arbitration Rules, including the Optional Rules for Emergency Measures of
Protection. Judgment on the award rendered by the arbitrator may be entered in any court having
jurisdiction. All individual owners of Franchisee shall be subject to arbitration as described herein.
Franchisee expressly agrees that any claims Franchisee brings against Franchisor, its members,
directors, officers, employees, agents, or representatives shall be exclusively resolved by
arbitration as described in this paragraph. If Franchisor prevails on a motion to compel
Franchisee’s claims to arbitration, Franchisee shall pay Franchisor’s attorneys fees, costs, and

30

Best Choice Roofing Franchising, LLC FDD 2023 Franchise Agreement



expenses related to such action. In any arbitration, the arbitrator must have no less than ten (10)
years of experience practicing franchise law.

(b) Location. The place of arbitration shall be the city and state where Franchisor’s
headquarters are located, which is currently Hendersonville, Tennessee.

() Injunctive Relief. Either party may apply to the arbitrator seeking injunctive relief
until the arbitration award is rendered or the controversy is otherwise resolved. Either party also
may, without waiving any remedy or right to arbitrate under this Agreement, seek from any court
having jurisdiction any interim or provisional injunctive relief.

(d) Confidentiality. All documents, information, and results pertaining to any
arbitration or lawsuit will be confidential, except as required by law or as required for Franchisor
to comply with laws and regulations applicable to the sale of franchises.

(e) Performance During Arbitration or Litigation. Unless this Agreement has been
terminated, Franchisor and Franchisee will comply with this Agreement and perform their
respective obligations under this Agreement during the arbitration or litigation process.

17.2 Damages. In any controversy or claim arising out of or relating to this Agreement, each
party waives any right to punitive or other monetary damages not measured by the prevailing
party’s actual damages, except damages authorized by federal statute. In the event of termination
of this Agreement prior to the expiration of the term due to Franchisee’s default, Franchisor’s
actual damages will include its lost future income from Royalty Fees and other amounts that
Franchisee would have owed to Franchisor but for the termination.

17.3 Waiver of Class Actions. The parties agree that any claims will be arbitrated, litigated, or
otherwise resolved on an individual basis, and waive any right to act on a class-wide basis.

17.4 Time Limitation. Any arbitration or other legal action arising from or related to this
Agreement must be instituted within one year from the date such party discovers the conduct or
event that forms the basis of the arbitration or other legal action. The foregoing time limit does not
apply to claims (i) by one party related to non-payment under this Agreement by the other party,
(1) for indemnity under Article 16, or (iii) related to unauthorized use of Confidential Information
or the Marks.

17.5 Venue Other Than Arbitration. For any legal proceeding not required to be submitted to
arbitration, the parties agree that any such legal proceeding will be brought in the United States
District Court where Franchisor’s headquarters is then located, which is currently Hendersonville,
Tennessee. If there is no federal jurisdiction over the dispute, the parties agree that any such legal
proceeding will be brought in the court of record of the state and city/county where Franchisor’s
headquarters is then located, which is currently Hendersonville, Tennessee. Each party consents
to the jurisdiction of such courts and waives any objection that it, he or she may have to the laying
of venue of any proceeding in any of these courts.

17.6  Legal Costs. In any legal proceeding (including arbitration) related to this Agreement or
any guaranty, Franchisee shall pay Franchisor’s attorney fees, costs and other expenses of the legal
proceeding if Franchisor prevails upon the central litigated issues and obtains substantial relief.
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ARTICLE 18. MISCELLANEOUS

18.1 Relationship of the Parties. The parties are independent contractors, and neither is the
agent, partner, joint venturer, or employee of the other. Franchisor is not a fiduciary of Franchisee.
Franchisor does not control or have the right to control Franchisee or its Business. Any required
specifications and standards in this Agreement and in the System Standards exist to protect
Franchisor’s interest in the System and the Marks, and the goodwill established in them, and not
for the purpose of establishing any control, or duty to take control, over the Business. Franchisor
has no liability for Franchisee’s obligations to any third party whatsoever.

18.2 No Third-Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement does not confer any rights or remedies
upon any person or entity other than Franchisee, Franchisor, and Franchisor’s affiliates.

18.3 Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement of the parties and
supersedes all prior negotiations and representations. Nothing in this Agreement or in any related
agreement is intended to disclaim the representations made by Franchisor in its franchise
disclosure document.

18.4 Modification. No modification or amendment of this Agreement will be effective unless
it 1s in writing and signed by both parties. This provision does not limit Franchisor’s rights to
modify the Manual or System Standards.

18.5 Consent; Waiver. No consent under this Agreement, and no waiver of satisfaction of a
condition or nonperformance of an obligation under this Agreement will be effective unless it is
in writing and signed by the party granting the consent or waiver. No waiver by a party of any
right will affect the party’s rights as to any subsequent exercise of that right or any other right. No
delay, forbearance or omission by a party to exercise any right will constitute a waiver of such
right.

18.6 Cumulative Remedies. Rights and remedies under this Agreement are cumulative. No
enforcement of a right or remedy precludes the enforcement of any other right or remedy.

18.7 Severability. The parties intend that (i) if any provision of this Agreement is held by an
arbitrator or court to be unenforceable, then that provision be modified to the minimum extent
necessary to make it enforceable, unless that modification is not permitted by law, in which case
that provision will be disregarded, and (ii) if an unenforceable provision is modified or
disregarded, then the rest of this Agreement will remain in effect as written.

18.8 Governing Law. The laws of the State of Tennessee (without giving effect to its principles
of conflicts of law) govern this Agreement, any Addenda, and all adversarial proceedings between
the parties. The parties agree that any Tennessee law for the protection of franchisees or business
opportunity purchasers will not apply unless its jurisdictional requirements are met independently
without reference to this Section 18.8.

18.9 Notices. Any notice will be effective under this Agreement only if made in writing and
delivered as set forth in this Section to: (A) if to Franchisee, addressed to Franchisee at the notice
address set forth in the Summary Page; and (B) if to Franchisor, addressed to 105 Hazel Path
Hendersonville, Tennessee 37075. Any party may designate a new address for notices by giving
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notice of the new address pursuant to this Section. Notices will be effective upon receipt (or first
rejection) and must be: (1) delivered personally; (2) sent by registered or certified U.S. mail with
return receipt requested; or (3) sent via overnight courier. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
Franchisor may amend the Manual, give binding notice of changes to System Standards, and
deliver notices of default by electronic mail or other electronic communication.

18.10 Joint and Several Liability. If two or more people sign this Agreement as “Franchisee”,
each will have joint and several liability.

18.11 No Offer and Acceptance. Delivery of a draft of this Agreement to Franchisee by
Franchisor does not constitute an offer. This Agreement shall not be effective unless and until it is
executed by both Franchisee and Franchisor.

Agreed to by:
FRANCHISOR: FRANCHISEE:
[1f one or more individual(s)]:
BEST CHOICE ROOFING
FRANCHISING, LLC
By: By:
Name: Name:
Title: Date:
Date:
By:
Name:
Date:
[if an entity:]
By:
Name:
Title:
Date:

(Check if applicable) At the same time as the parties execute this Agreement, they are also
executing a Rider to Franchise Agreement pursuant to:

Illinois North Dakota
Indiana Rhode Island
Maryland Washington
Minnesota Other
New York
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Attachment 1 to Franchise Agreement

OWNERSHIP INFORMATION

Form of Ownership. Franchisee is a (check one):

Sole Proprietorship
Partnership

Limited Liability Company
Corporation

State:

Owners. If Franchisee is a partnership, limited liability company or corporation:

Name Shares or Percentage of Ownership

Officers. If Franchisee is a limited liability company or corporation:

Name Title
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Attachment 2 to Franchise Agreement

GUARANTY AND NON-COMPETE AGREEMENT

This Guaranty and Non-Compete Agreement (this “Guaranty”) is executed by the
undersigned person(s) (each, a “Guarantor”) in favor of Best Choice Roofing Franchising, LLC, a
Tennessee limited liability company (“Franchisor”).

Background Statement: (“Franchisee) desires to enter into a
Franchise Agreement with Franchisor for the franchise of a Best Choice Roofing business (the
“Franchise Agreement”; capitalized terms used but not defined in this Guaranty have the meanings
given in the Franchise Agreement). Guarantor owns an equity interest in Franchisee. Guarantor is
executing this Guaranty in order to induce Franchisor to enter into the Franchise Agreement.

Guarantor agrees as follows:

1. Guaranty. Guarantor hereby unconditionally guarantees to Franchisor and its successors
and assigns that Franchisee shall pay and perform every undertaking, agreement and covenant set
forth in the Franchise Agreement and further guarantees every other liability and obligation of
Franchisee to Franchisor, whether or not contained in the Franchise Agreement. Guarantor shall
render any payment or performance required under the Franchise Agreement or any other
agreement between Franchisee and Franchisor upon demand from Franchisor. Guarantor waives
(a) acceptance and notice of acceptance by Franchisor of this Guaranty; (b) notice of demand for
payment of any indebtedness or nonperformance of any obligations of Franchisee; (c) protest and
notice of default to any party with respect to the indebtedness or nonperformance of any
obligations hereby guaranteed; (d) any right Guarantor may have to require that an action be
brought against Franchisee or any other person or entity as a condition of liability hereunder; (e)all
rights to payments and claims for reimbursement or subrogation which any of the undersigned
may have against Franchisee arising as a result of the execution of and performance under this
Guaranty by the undersigned; (f) any law which requires that Franchisor make demand upon, assert
claims against or collect from Franchisee or any other person or entity (including any other
guarantor), foreclose any security interest, sell collateral, exhaust any remedies or take any other
action against Franchisee or any other person or entity (including any other guarantor) prior to
making any demand upon, collecting from or taking any action against the undersigned with
respect to this Guaranty; and (g) any and all other notices and legal or equitable defenses to which
Guarantor may be entitled.

2. Confidential Information. With respect to all Confidential Information Guarantor shall
(a) adhere to all security procedures prescribed by Franchisor for maintaining confidentiality, (b)
disclose such information to its employees only to the extent necessary for the operation of the
Business; (¢) not use any such information in any other business or in any manner not specifically
authorized or approved in writing by Franchisor, (d) exercise the highest degree of diligence and
make every effort to maintain the confidentiality of all such information during and after the term
of the Franchise Agreement, () not copy or otherwise reproduce any Confidential Information,
and (f) promptly report any unauthorized disclosure or use of Confidential Information. Guarantor
acknowledges that all Confidential Information is owned by Franchisor or its affiliates (except for

35

Best Choice Roofing Franchising, LLC FDD 2023 Franchise Agreement



Confidential Information which Franchisor licenses from another person or entity). Guarantor
acknowledges that all customer data generated or obtained by Guarantor is Confidential
Information belonging to Franchisor. This Section will survive the termination or expiration of the
Franchise Agreement indefinitely.

3. Covenants Not to Compete

(a) Restriction - In Term. During the term of the Franchise Agreement, Guarantor shall
not directly or indirectly have any ownership interest in, or be engaged or employed by, any
Competitor.

(b) Restriction — Post Term. For two years after the Franchise Agreement expires or is
terminated for any reason (or, if applicable, for two years after a Transfer by Guarantor), Guarantor
shall not directly or indirectly have any ownership interest in, or be engaged or employed by, any
Competitor operating in any of Franchisee’s Territory or the territory of any other Best Choice
Roofing business operating on the date of termination or transfer, as applicable

(©) Interpretation. Guarantor agrees that each of the foregoing covenants is
independent of any other covenant or provision of this Guaranty or the Franchise Agreement. If
all or any portion of the covenants in this Section is held to be unenforceable or unreasonable by
any court, then the parties intend that the court modify such restriction to the extent reasonably
necessary to protect the legitimate business interests of Franchisor. Guarantor agrees that the
existence of any claim it or Franchisee may have against Franchisor shall not constitute a defense
to the enforcement by Franchisor of the covenants of this Section. If Guarantor fails to comply
with the obligations under this Section during the restrictive period, then the restrictive period will
be extended an additional day for each day of noncompliance.

4. Modification. Guarantor agrees that Guarantor’s liability hereunder shall not be
diminished, relieved or otherwise affected by (a) any amendment of the Franchise Agreement, (b)
any extension of time, credit or other indulgence which Franchisor may from time to time grant to
Franchisee or to any other person or entity, or (¢) the acceptance of any partial payment or
performance or the compromise or release of any claims.

5. Governing Law; Dispute Resolution. This Guaranty shall be governed by and construed
in accordance with the laws of the state of Tennessee (without giving effect to its principles of
conflicts of law). The parties agree that any Tennessee law for the protection of franchisees or
business opportunity purchasers will not apply unless its jurisdictional requirements are met
independently without reference to this Section 6. The provisions of Article 17 (Dispute
Resolution) of the Franchise Agreement apply to and are incorporated into this Guaranty as if fully
set forth herein. If multiple Guarantors sign this Guaranty, each will have joint and several liability.

[Signatures on Following Page]
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Agreed to by:

Best Choice Roofing Franchising, LLC FDD 2023

Name:

Address:

Date:

Name:

Address:

Date:

Name:

Address:

Date:

Name:

Address:

Date:
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Attachment 3 to Franchise Agreement

FRANCHISOR ADDENDUM TO LEASE AGREEMENT

THIS FRANCHISOR ADDENDUM TO LEASE AGREEMENT (this “Addendum”) is

effective as of (the “Effective Date”), and is being signed
simultaneously with the Lease (the “Lease”) dated between
(the “Franchisee” or “Tenant”) and

(the “Landlord”) for the real property commonly known as
(the “Premises”).

1. Incorporation and Precedence. This Addendum is incorporated into the Lease and
supersedes any conflicting provisions in it. Capitalized terms not otherwise defined in this
Addendum have the meanings as defined in the Lease.

2. Background. The Tenant will operate a Best Choice Roofing franchise at the
Premises under a Franchise Agreement dated (the
“Franchise Agreement”) with Best Choice Roofing Franchising, LLC (the “Franchisor”). By
entering into a franchise relationship with the Franchisor, the Tenant has agreed to grant the
Franchisor a security interest in all of the furniture, fixtures, inventory and supplies located in the
Premises as collateral for: (a) the payment of any obligation, liability or other amount owed by
Tenant or its affiliates to the Franchisor under the Franchise Agreement. The Franchise Agreement
also requires that the Lease contain provisions that the Tenant is requesting the Landlord to include.

3. Access to Premises. During the term of the Lease, the Landlord and Tenant
acknowledge and agree that the Franchisor will have unrestricted access to the Premises within
normal business hours to inspect the Premises and Tenant’s business operations in accordance with
the Franchise Agreement.

4, Notice of Default. The Landlord will give written notice to the Franchisor
(concurrently with the giving of such notice to the Tenant) of any default (a “Default”) by the
Tenant under the Lease by certified mail, return receipt requested, or by nationally recognized
overnight courier service, at the following address or to such other address as the Franchisor may
provide to Landlord from time to time:

Best Choice Roofing Franchising, LLC
105 Hazel Path
Hendersonville, Tennessee 37075-3886
Attention: Wayne Holloway

Such notice will grant the Franchisor the right, but not the obligation, to cure any Default, if the
Tenant fails to do so, within ten (10) days after the expiration of the period in which the Tenant
may cure the Default under the Lease. Such notice will also grant the Franchisor ten (10) days in
which to exercise its right to assume the lease as described below.

5. Franchisor’s Assumption of Lease. Within ten (10) days of receiving notice of a
Default of the Lease by Tenant or upon the default of the Franchise Agreement by Tenant,
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Franchisor may deliver written notice to Landlord to have the Lease assigned to the Franchisor or
a wholly-owned affiliate as lessee (the “Assignment Notice”). Upon receiving such written notice,
(1) the Franchisor or its wholly-owned affiliate will become the lessee of the Premises and will be
liable for all past-due obligations under the Lease as well as obligations arising after the date of
the Assignment Notice, and (i1) the Landlord will recognize the Franchisor or its wholly-owned
affiliate as the lessee of the Premises effective as of the date of the Assignment Notice. Nothing
herein shall be construed as a requirement of the Franchisor or an affiliate to assume the Lease.

6. Amendment. The Landlord and the Tenant will not cancel, terminate, modify or
amend the Lease such that the Franchisor’s rights under this Addendum are altered in any way
without the Franchisor’s prior written consent.

7. Benefits and Successors. The benefits of this Addendum inure to the Franchisor
and to its successors and assigns.

8. Remaining Provisions Unaffected. Those parts of the Lease that are not expressly
modified by this Addendum remain in full force and effect.

Intending to be bound, the Landlord and the Tenant sign and deliver this Addendum
effective on the Effective Date, regardless of the actual date of signature.

“LANDLORD” “TENANT”
By: By:
Its: Its:
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EXHIBIT C
FORM OF GENERAL RELEASE
[This is our current standard form of General Release. This document is not signed when you purchase
a franchise. In circumstances such as a renewal of your franchise or as a condition of our approval of
a sale of your franchise, we may require you to sign a general release.]

This General Release (“Release”) is executed by the undersigned (“Releasor”) in favor of Best Choice
Roofing Franchising, LLC, A Tennessee limited liability company (“Franchisor”).

Background Statement: [describe circumstances of Release]

Releasor agrees as follows:

1. Release. Releasor (on behalf of itself and its parents, subsidiaries and affiliates and
their respective past and present officers, directors, shareholders, managers, members, partners, agents,
and employees (collectively, the “Releasing Parties™)) hereby releases Franchisor, its affiliates, and
their respective directors, officers, shareholders, employees, and agents (collectively, the “Released
Parties”) from any and all claims, causes of action, suits, debts, agreements, promises, demands,
liabilities, contractual rights and/or obligations, of whatever nature, known or unknown, which any
Releasing Party now has or ever had against any Released Party based upon and/or arising out of events
that occurred through the date hereof, including without limitation, anything arising out of the
Franchise Agreement (collectively, “Claims”).

2. Covenant Not to Sue. Releasor (on behalf of all Releasing Parties) covenants not to
initiate, prosecute, encourage, assist, or (except as required by law) participate in any civil, criminal,
or administrative proceeding or investigation in any court, agency, or other forum, either affirmatively
or by way of cross-claim, defense, or counterclaim, against any Released Party with respect to any
Claim.

3. Representations and Acknowledgments. Releasor represents and warrants that: (i)
Releasor is the sole owner of all Claims, and that no Releasing Party has assigned or transferred, or
purported to assign or transfer, to any person or entity, any Claim; (ii) Releasor has full power and
authority to sign this Release; and (iii) this Release has been voluntarily and knowingly signed after
Releasor has had the opportunity to consult with counsel of Releasor’s choice. Releasor acknowledges
that the release in Section 1 is a complete defense to any Claim.

4. Miscellaneous. If any of the provisions of this Release are held invalid for any reason,
the remainder of this Release will not be affected and will remain in full force and effect. In the event
of any dispute concerning this Release, the dispute resolution, governing law, and venue provisions of
the Franchise Agreement shall apply. Releasor agrees to take any actions and sign any documents that
Franchisor reasonably requests to effectuate the purposes of this Release. This Release contains the
entire agreement of the parties concerning the subject matter hereof. This Release shall not apply to
any liability under the [State] Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.

This Release does not apply to claims arising under the Franchise Investment Protection Act,
chapter 19.100 RCW, or the rules adopted thereunder in accordance with RCW 19.100.220(2).

Best Choice Roofing Franchising, LLC FDD 2023 General Release



Agreed to by:

Name:
Date:
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EXHIBIT D

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

UNAUDITED BALANCE SHEET DATED MARCH 31, 2023 AND UNAUDITED PROFIT
AND LOSS STETMENT FOR THE PERIOD FROM JANUARY 1, 2023 TO MARCH 31,
2023.

THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE PREPARED WITHOUT AN AUDIT.
PROSPECTIVE FRANCHISEES OR SELLERS OF FRANCHISES SHOULD BE ADVISED
THAT NO INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT HAS AUDITED THESE
FIGURES OR EXPRESSED HIS/HER OPINION WITH REGARD TO THE CONTENT OR
FORM.
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615 AM Best Choice Roofing Franchising LLC

B Balance Sheet
Accruadl Basis As of March 31, 2023
ASSETS
Cutrent Assets
Savings
Bank of America 3007
Totad Cracking'Savings I 3BT
Accounts Recelvable
Accourts Recelvable 10033154
Franthise Fees Receivable QT
Total Accounts Recetvable 260,76 %
Omver Cutrent Assets
Prepald Commissions - UT 41273500
Prepald Commissions - &T AT
Actumed slod Amortization 171050
Total Other Current Assels _ARR%N
Totad Current Assets 1009240 23
Fixed Assets
Furniture and Equipment 1,000 00
Totsl Pixed Assels 1000 00
TOTAL ASSETS 101024023
LIABIUTIES & EQUATY
Llasdizies
Current Liabitties
Accounts Paysble
Accourts Payatie 108 261 80
Yotsl Accourts Payadle 195,281 60
Other Curvent Liatiinies
Ous 1o Related Paty 16,153 90
Defernd Revenues - LT TS 81000
Deformed Reverse « ST 1441700
Total Other Current Liabilities 8870 W
Totsl Currerd Listilities 106367270
Total Uabilnes 10067270
Members Contrbutions 75000 00
Members Equity <184 437 30
Net Income 14005 3%
Yot Equity T34 47
TOTAL LIABILUTES & EQUITY 1010240 2)
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615 AM Best Choice Roofing Franchising LLC

won Profit & Loss
Accrual Basls January through March 2023
_Jan - Mur 23
Cedinary Income Expense
Income
Bad Debt Expense 2404 52
Chent Contract Fee 1244600
nbeund Lead Few .50
Royalty 130,929 30
Softwar e Subscrigion Fee 226500
Special Support Fee 500 00
Sorm Lead Feo 238800
Subscripdon Fees A28 76
Terthory Fee 674 480 40
Franchise Fee Cap 3188
Yotsl Income A8 N5 87
Gross Prodt N8
Cpome
Advertising and Prometion
Markating 13,903 29
Total Advertising and Pyomothon 13966 2%
Aatomcbile Dxpenss
Miwage 95 60
Roestad 442048
Automobile Expense - Other 244 55
Yotal Automobile Expense 4a9ma
Bank Service Charges 2500
Commis sions - Placement 488 11704
Insurance Experrse 1140 82
OfMice Expenses
Computer and nternst Experses 18570
Ofice Supplies 51100
Postage 1757
Total Offce Expenses a7
Payroll Expanses
Salartes & Wages S5AS 22
Payroll Tanes 47210
Yotal Payrell Expenses 6318 92
Protessional Fees
Accounting Fees 15,000 00
Background Chechs 243 00
Consuting Fees 60000
Legal 80885
AD® | Dominion/Admin Fees £ uaon
Totsd Professions Fees NI Y
Rent Expense 2235000
Taxes & Licerses 30 95
Travel Expecse
Meats and Entertainment 22100
Axfare 6,800 40
Hotel wis e
Travel Other 240738
Totsl Travel Expense ey
Torsl Expense I | L7
Net Ordinary Income 1008
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615 AM Best Choice Roofing Franchising LLC

oV Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis January through March 2023
Jan <My 23
Cther ncomeExpense
Ot Exponse
Terrhory Repurchase 15,000 00
Ash My Accountant 000
Tota Other Expense 13,000 00
Net Other Income 15 000 00
Net nceme 1600533
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BEST CHOICE ROOFING FRANCHISING, L1.C
(A Lamited Liability Company)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022
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CHPCOOPCETIan com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Member
Best Chonce Roofing Franchisang, 110

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Best Choee Roofing Franchisng, LLC (a
limited lability company) which compese the balance sheet as of December 31, 2022, and the related
statement of operatons, changes in member's equity (deficir) 2nd cash flows for the vear then ended,
and the related notes to the fimancial statements,

In our opion, the financial statements referred 1o above present fairdy, in all macenal eespects, the
financial position of Best Choice Roofing Franchasing, LLC as of December 51, 2022, and the resules
of ns operations and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepred m the Unired Stases of Amenca,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our andit in accordance with zudinng standards genenally accepred in the Unired Seates
of America, Our responsibalines wnder those standards are further descnbed i the Audirors
Responsibalities for the Audit of the Fimncial Smatements section of our report. We are requared to be
uﬂqm:&ntd&u(h:ekooﬁmlmthl)Ludmmnwod&rManwm
accordance with the relevan ethical requiremenes selaring o our audie, We believe thar the audit
cvidence we have obeained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 2 basis for our sudit opinion.

Correction of Error

As discussed in Note 3 1o the fimancial stsemems, dunng the currenr year, Best Choxe Roofing
Franchising, LLC corrected an error with regard to improperdy capualizing start-up costs, Our opinion
1s not modified with respect to this matter.
Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Mamagement &8 responsible foe the preparation and fair presenstabon of the fimancial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United Seates of America, and for the

implementation, and maintenance of intemal contral relevant 10 the peeparaton and fais
presentation of financial seaternents that are froe from matermal misseatement, whether due 1o fraud or
error.

In prepanng the financial statements, management is reguired to evaluate whether there are conditions
mmgcomukwdmdmnmtqthnmsduumnldwbtnhwtﬁmfbmkmﬁng
Franchising, LLC's abality to continue as 2 going concern within one vear after the dae thas the
financial statements are avaalable 1o bo fssued.

Ui Cooponman™ s the beand wnder which Ciana Caop & Conpaay, 113, 4 6 $ inchopandont CI'A S, aned Cinn Cooponmen
Ad-lilllmh——“m-wh-wu*-ma-—n- o
--m*dhmmﬁ-ﬂ.“—hdmfmmﬂ—d““&
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3 Citrin Coopermun & Company, LLF
CITnCcooPERMAN'

Auvditor”s Responsibilitics for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are 10 obtain reasomable assurance aboue whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material masseatement, whether due to frand or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinson, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assumnce but is not absolute assumance
and therefore i not a guzrantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepeed audining
standards will always detect a matemal misstatement when it exists, The sk of not detecting a material
musumn:mmmlmgfmfmululqlwnhmformmuhmgfmcm.nfmﬂmnvmﬂm
collusion, forgery, intennonal omissions, misrepresentanions, o the overnde of intemal coarrol
Misstatements are considered materal if there is a substanmal likclhood that, mdividually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasomble user based on the financul
Statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with genernally accepeed auditing standards, we:

. Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepocsm thronghoar the awdie,

. Tdenfy and assess the nsks of marerul massestement of the financial statements, whether due
to frad or emror, and design and perform sudit procedures responsive to those nsks. Such
procedures mehade examining, oa a tese bass, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures
in the financial seaements,

. Obtamn an undenstanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order 10 design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumseances, bur not foe the puspose of expressing an
opmion on the effectivencss of Best Choice Roofing Franchising, LLC's intermal control.
Accordingly, 00 such opinion is expressed,

. Evaluste the appropriatencss of accounting policics used and the reasonablencss of sgnificant
accounting estimates made by management, x well as evaluate the ovenall presentation of the
financial statements.

. Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregare,
that rise substantul doube about Best Chowce Roofing Franchising, LLC's abiliey to continue as
a going concern for a reasonable peniod of tme,

We are required 1o communicate with those chasged with governance regarding, among other marters,

the planned scope and timing of the awdie, significant audit findings, and cortain intemal control related

muatters that we identified dunng the audit.
' "’“P

C ACCOUNT
New York, New York
Apnl 28, 2023
Sy Comnprerrman”™ m the Teann] vonber whach Citrm Congs & Comnpunry, LIP, 2 & J wonkes ‘—Olhﬂoﬁn(‘;m
Adbvmres L1A serve hernis bumsences i Thee 2 frvem ofuerste o separste bopal ervties ot abermain G Comg

u.mmammmm-u.wmumcwwnmmau
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BEST CHOICE ROOFING FRANCHISING, LLC
(A Limited Liability Company)
BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2022

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash
Accounts recernvable, net
Franchise fees receqvable, net
Prepasd commussions, cuscent

Total current assets

Other asset:
Prepad commissions, et of current porton

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND MEMBER'S DEFICET
Current habdites:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Due to member
Deferred revenue, cusrent

Total current labilitics

Long term babihty:
Deferred revenue, net of current porion

Total lubdities
Commatments and contmgencses (Notes 8 and 9)
Member's deficnt
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND MEMBER'S DEFICIT

See accompanying notes 1o financial statements,
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BEST CHOICE ROOFING FRANCHISING, LLC
(A Limited Liability Company)
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

Revenues!
Ropalties s 154,560
Franchise fees 48,935
Service fees 49,993
Other revenuies 15287
Total revenues 266,581
Selleng, general and adminsstrative expenses 423 208
NET LOSS s asenn

See accompanying notes 1o financial statements,
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BEST CHOICE ROOFING FRANCHISING, LLC
(A Limited Liability Company)
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN MEMBER'S EQUITY (DEFICIT)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

Member's equity - January 1, 2022, & peeviously eeported ) 49384
Correction of error (Note 3) (20334
Balance - January 1, 2022, a5 restated

Net loss (156,717)
Member contnbutions — 15000
MEMBER'S DEFICIT - DECEMBER 31, 2022 §, Gl

See accompanying notes 1o financial statements,
5
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BEST CHOICE ROOFING FRANCHISING, LLC
(A Limited Liability Company)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

Cash flows from opesating sctwities:

Net boss s (15,17

Adpstments to reconcile net loss to pet cash used n operating actvities:

Provision for doubtful accounts 2405

Changes in operating assets and labilnies:
Accounts recewable, net (30,549
Franchise fees recewvable, net (306 079)
Prepaid comamsssons (459,867
Accounts payable and sccrued expenses 25262
Due to member 16,158
Deferred revenue —R712%

Net cash used in opersting activities (40,149)

Cash proveded by financing activities:

Member contnbutions —_—T5.000
Net mcrease m cash 34,851
Cash - begmning
CASH - ENDING b 5] §

See accompanying notes 1o financial statements,
6
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BEST CHOICE ROOFING FRANCHISING, LLC
(A Limited Liability Company)
NOTES TO FINANCIALSTATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2022

NOTEL  ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Best Chosce Roofing Franchising, LLC (the “Company™) was formed on February 4,
2020, as a Tenmessee-based Brnated habdaty company 1o sell franchuses umer the "Best
Chosce Roofing Faanchsing” name and systemn pussuant to a heense armngement with
an affilated entity, Best Chowce Roofing & Home Improvement, Inc. (the “Licensor”).
Pursuant to the Company’s standard franchase agreement, franchssees will operate a
business under the name “Best Chowce Roofing,” selling ressdennal and commercual
roofing and other property management related servaces to both resdential and
commercil customers.

The Company s a himited habilsty company and, therefore, the member s not luble for
the debts, obligations or other lubditwes of the Company, whether arismg i conteact,
tort of otherwise, unless the member has syed @ specific guanntee,

NOTE2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIEICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying financul statements have been prepared on the accauml basis of
accounting i accordance with sccounting prnciples genenlly accopted = the Unsted
States of Amenca ("U.S. GAAP")L

Use of cstunates

The preparation of the Company’s financul statements in contoamuty with ULS. GAAP
requiges mansgement 1o muake estmates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of asxets and labahtses and disclosure of contingent assets and labdites at the
dates of the Company's financul statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses dunng the reporting penods. Actual cesults could differ froem those estmates.

Ascounts recervable

Accounts recenvable are stated at the smount the Company expects to collect. The
Company mantuns allowances for doubtful accounts for esumated losses resulting
from the mability of some of us franchisees to make required payments. Management
considers the following factors when determening the collectibility of specific franchsee
sccounts: franchaee ereditwonthiness, past tansacton history with the fmnchasce, and
current economic inklustry trendds. I the financial condinons of the Company’s
franchisees were to detenomte, adversely atfecting thesr ability to make payments,
addtional allowsnces would be required. Based on management’s assessment, the
Company provides for estimated uncollectible amounts through a charge to eammgy
ard a credit to a valustwon allowance. Balances that remain outstanding after the
Company has made reasonable collection efforts are watten off through 2 charge to the
valuauon allowsnee and a eredit to accounts recevable, The allowances for doubaful
accounts at December 31, 2022, amounted to $2,405,

lucowe taxes

The Company 15 treated as a partnesshep for tax purposes and, &s such, 1s not luble for
federal or state income taxes. As a single-member hmuied lubility company and,
therefore, a duregarded entity for meome tax purposes, the Company’s assets and
labilines are combined with and mchided m the meome tax return of the member.
Accordingly, the accompanying financul statements do not inchude 2 provision of
lability for federal or state income taxes.

-2
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BEST CHOICE ROOFING FRANCHISING, LLC
(A Limited Liability Company)
NOTES TO FINANCIALSTATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2022

NOTE2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
U : .
The Company recognazes and measures wts unrecognized tax benefits in accordance with
Fmancal Accounting Standards Board ("FASB®) Accounting Standards Codification
("ASC") T30, Imome Taxes, Uneder that guidance, mansgement assesses the hkelihood
that tax posions will be sustained upon examination based on the facts, circumstances
and mnformstion, including the technacal ments of those positbons, avadable at the end
of each penod. The measurement of unrecogned tax benefits 15 adjusted when new
smformation s avadable or when an event occurs that cequices a change. There were no
uncertam tax positions at December 31, 2022,

R

The Company recognuzes revenue under ASC Topee 606, Revemwe frooe Comtructs aath
Custowery ("Topie 606"). The Company denves substantally all s sevenues from
franchise fee revenue, roplty revenue, renewal fees, transfer fees, seevace fees and other
revenue.

Frawchise foex and ropaltics

Contract consideration froemn franchisees consists prunanly of imtal or renewal franchise
fees, sales based royaltes, service fees, other revenue amd transfer fees payable by a
franchisee for the tramsfer of their franchise unat to another franchisee, Sakes-based
royaltes and servace fees are payable on a4 weekly basss, Renewal and transfer fees are
due from franchisees when an existing fmocheee renews the franchise sgreement for an
additional 1eom or when & transfer 1o & third party occuss, respectwvely.

The Company's peenary pecformance obligatsons under the franchise sgreement inchide
the granting of certam oghts 10 access the Company's intellectual property in addinon to
a vanety of activitics relatng to the opering of a franchsse umt. Those costs would
mclude ste selection, tnming and other such actvities commonly referred to
collectwely as "pre-openmp activitses” Pre-opengy activities consistent with those
under FASB Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") No. 2021-02, Frawdises - Revwar
Srow Contracts with Castewers (Subtopac 952.606) (TASLT 2021-027), are recogmzed as 2
single performance oblgaton. For all other pre-opermng actwvities, if any, the Company
determumes if @ certam poction of those pre-opemng actvities provided 15 not brand
specific and peovides the franchisee with relevant geneaal business information that is
scpacate from the operation of a Company-branded feanchise unit, The portson of pre-
openmg activities, of any, that is not brand specific s deemed to be distinct as it proveles
a benefit to the franchisee and 1s not highly interrelated to the use of the Company’s
mtelkectual property and therefore accounted for as a sepanite performance oblgation.
All other pre-openmg activitees are determined 10 be highly interrelated to the use of the
Company’s mtellectus] property and therefore accounted for as 2 component of a single
performance oblganon which is satisfied along wath the granting of cectamn nghts to use
the Company’s intellectual property over the tomm of esch franchese sgreement.
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BEST CHOICE ROOFING FRANCHISING, LLC
(A Limited Liability Company)
NOTES TO FINANCIALSTATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2022

NOTE2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Bevenue and cost cecognation (contmued)
Frwnchise fees amd ropalties (aomtenwed)
The Company estenates the stand-alone selling pnce of pre opening actiwvitses using an
adpusted market assessment approach, The Company first allocates the wital franchise
fees and the fixed consideration under the franchase agreement to the stand-alone selling
poce of the pee-opening activities and the resxhal of any, to the nght to access the
Company’s mtellecnul property. Consderatson allocated to pre-openung actwines, other
than those included under ASU 2021-02, whach are not brand specific are recognied
when those performance obligations are satsfied. Consklerabion allocated to pre-
openung sctivites sncloded under ASU 2021.02 15 recognmed when those performance
obligatons are sansfied,

Inal and cenewal foanchise fees allocated 10 the nght 10 access the Company’s
miclkectual property are recognized as reverue on a straight-hine basis over the wom of

the respective fmanchise sgreement.

Royalties sre carned as a percentage of franchisee gross sakes ("sakes-based royalue”)
over the term of the frunchise agreement, as defined in each respectve franchise
agreement. Franchise royalties which represent sales based royalties that asre related
entirely to the use of the Company's intellectual property are recogmzed as franchasee
sales occur and the royalty 1s deemed collectsble,

Birowed fooned

The Company mantains a brand fund which is establshed to collect and adminester
funds contnbuted for use m adversing and promotional programs for franchise unats,
Brand fund fees are colkcted from franchisces based on a percentage of franchisee
gross sales. The Company has detenmined that it acts as a pancipal in the collection and
adminsstration of the brand fund and therefore will recognme the revenues and
expenscs rehited to the brand fund on a gross basis. The Company has deteemined that
the nght to secess iy mtellectual property and admmistration of the brand fund are
highly mterrelated and thecefore will be accounted for as a single performance
obligatson, As s result, revenues from the boand fund represent sales based coyaltes
related to the nght 10 access the Company's mtellectual property, which will be
recognized as franchssee sales occur.

When brand fund fees exceed the related brand fund expenses m a reporting penod,
advertsing costs will be accrued up to the amount of advertsing fund revenues
recograzed.

Otber revemmes

The Company recogmizes revenue from other fees and other services provaded 1o the
franchisces a3 a sangle performuance oblganon, when the servaces are rendered,

Tncresevntol conts of obitarnrng & contrivct

The Company capitalizes direct and meremental costs, prancpally consnung of
commissions, sssocuted with the sale of franchises and amortizes them over the term of
the franchise agreement,
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BEST CHOICE ROOFING FRANCHISING, LLC
(A Limited Liability Company)
NOTES TO FINANCIALSTATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2022

NOTE2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leases

The Company has an operating bease for an office space that renews on 4 month-to-
month basis, The Company determanes of an arcurgement 15 & lease at the inception of
the contract. At the lease commencement date, each lease ss evaluated to detenmine
whether it will be clissified as #n operating or finance lease, For leases with a lease tenm
of 12 months or less (a "shoct-tean” kease), any fixed lease payments ate recognized on
a strmght-hine basis over such tenm, and are not recognized on the balance sheet. The
short-temm kase expense amounted to $5,625 for the year ended December 31, 2022

Lease terms inchude the noncancellable portion of the underlying leases along with any
reasorably certamn kase penods assocated with avadable renewal penods, tenmimanon
options and purchase options.

Adveuung

Advertisang costs are txpcmul a3 incurted and are inchaded 1 "Selling, general and

adminstrative expenses” i the accompanying statement of operations. Advertsing
costs amounted to $42,191 for the year ended December 31, 2022

ln june 3)!6 F\SB ssued ASU No 21)16 13 Fnumdhmtl Crodit Lasses (Topie
326); Meawroment of Craldt Losses an Francral Instruments, and subsequent smendment to
the mutial gundance: ASL No, 2018-19, Codifiention Improvensents fo Topee 326, Frmawsal
Tnstrweeents - Cradit Losses (collectively, "Topic 326%). Topx 326 introduces & new
forward-Jooking appreach, based on expected losses, 1o estenate ceedit losses on cenan
types of fmancml mstruments, including tmde recevables. The estmate of expected
credit losses will require entities to mcorporate consideratons of histoncal information,
current informanon, and reasomble and supportable forecasts and will generally result
m eacher recognaton of allowances foe losses, For non-publee companies, Topie 326 will
be effective for anmual and interen reporting penods begmmng after December 15,
2022 The gudance 1s to be applied using the modified retrospective approach. The
Company o i the process of assessang the wnpact of Topie 326 on it financul
statermnents,

U

Napable interest cntitics

In sccordance with the provisions of FASB ASU No. 2018-17, Cansabdidatnn (Topee S10):
Ta deWWm(MﬁlMJMW{'ASU 2018.
177), FASB no boagee tequares nonpublic companics to spply vanable inteeest entity

gudance to certan common control armngements, mchading leasing armangements
under common control The Company has spplied these provsoas to the

accompanying financal statements and has determmined that the entties disclosed
Note 8, meet the condmions under ASU 2018-17, und accordingly, are not required to
be included m the Company’s financal statements.

10
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BEST CHOICE ROOFING FRANCHISING, LLC
(A Limited Liability Company)
NOTES TO FINANCIALSTATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2022

NOTE2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

-

Erochued outlets
The following data presents the status of the Company's franchised outkets as of
Decomber 31, 2022:

Feanchises sold 1"
Franchizes purchased .
Feanchised outlets ;m openation 6
Franchisor-owned outlets = operanon -

Subscquentexveats

In sccordince with FASB ASC 855, Sabsgumys Erewss, the Company has evahuated
subsequent events through Apnl 28, 2023, the date on whuch these financial staterments
were avasiable to be issued. Except as disclosed m Note 7, there were no other materul
subsequent events that required recogmtion or sddionsl disclosure = the financal
staternemnts,

NOTES3.  CORRECTION OF ERROR

Dunng 2022, it was deteemmed the Company had improperly capaalized certam start-
up costs that should have been expensed m year 2020 when incurred. As & result,
member’s equity has been reduced by $49,384 at the begmning of 2022

NOTE4.  LIQUIDITY AND MEMBER'S DEFICIT

The Company has sustained a net loss and negative openting cash flows and, as 2 result,
has an accumulated member's defict of $31,717 as of December 31, 2022, Since
meeption, the Company’s operabons have been funded through capital contributions
from the member. The Company is growang and, as such, s mcurrng expendinures in
the near term o benefit the future a5 it Jooks to grow the franchsice base and expand
mto new markets. Such expenses could be reduced or chmmated in order 1o mprove
openting cash flows as needed m the future.

Subsequent to the year ended December 31, 2022, management has taken sevenal
actwons to improve opertng cash tflows mamly through the ssle of franchise
agreaments, As of the date these financial statements were available 10 be msued, the
Company continues to sell franchases, and is geoerating royalty revenues from open and
opemating, franchssees. The Company believes that the combenation of the actions taken
will epable st to meet its funding requarements foe one year from the date these financal
staternents were svailsble to be wsued, If necessary, management of the Company has
been advised that the member of the Company mtends to provide any financul
assistunce needed by the Company should its cash flows from operatons combened
with its cash balances not be sufficient 10 meet its working capial needs. Management
believes that the member of the Company has the mtent and ability to provide the funcs
needed, of any, to continue 1o fund the operations of the Company tor at least one year
from the date these fmancal statements were avadable to be ssued.
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BEST CHOICE ROOFING FRANCHISING, LLC
(A Limited Liability Company)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2022

BECENTLY ADOPTED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In February 2016, FASB issued ASU No. 2016 02, Lasses (Tapse £42) ("ASC 8427) as
amended, wheeh eequuses the recording of operating kase aght-ofuse assets and lease
fabilines and the expanded disclosure for operatmg and finance Joasing armngements,
Leases are classified as finance oc operating, with classification affecting the pattem and

classificanon of expense recognition m the moome statement. The Company adopted
ASC 842 under the modificd retrospective method on January 1, 2022,

The Company adopted the packsge of practical expedicnts available st tansiion that
retained the lesse classification under ASC 840 and intal durect costs for any leases that
exasted pnor to adoption of the standard. Contracts entered into pror to adoption were
not reassessed for keases or embedded kases. The Company made the accounting policy
clections o not recognize short-tenm Jeases on the balance sheet, The Company
performed an amalysis of contracts containing deases as of January 1, 2022 There was
no impact to the Company’s financul statements at the mitul spphcaton of ASC 842,

Lasgegied covenuey

The Company denves its revenues from franchsees located throughoat the Unsted
States. The economic nisks of the Company’s revenues are dependent on the strength of
the cconomy m the United States, and the Company'’s abiity to collect on us contracts.
The Company dsaggregates rovenue from contracts with customers by timing of
revenue recogmition by type of revenue, as it bebeves this best depicts how the nature,
amount, tming and uncertamty of fevenue and cash flows age affected by econom
factoes.

Reverwes by uming of eecognation for the year ended December 31, 2022

Pount in tene:
Royulties $ 154366
Franchise fees 28,000
Service fees 49,993
Other revenues —_— 127
Total pot in time 245 646
Over tame:
Franchise fees 20935
Total revenues b — 1 S
Concactbalanccs

Comract assets mchide acoounts recevable andd feanchise fees recewable, The balances,
net of allowance for doubtful accounts as of December 31, 2022, s $§334,223, There
were no contract assets as of Decernber 31, 2021,

12
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BEST CHOICE ROOFING FRANCHISING, LLC
(A Limited Liability Company)
NOTES TO FINANCIALSTATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2022

NOTE6  REVENUES AND RELATED CONTRACT BALANCES (CONTINUED)
P
Conteact habelitses are compnsed of unamortized matial and renceul franchise fees
receved from  franchisces, whach are presented as "Deferred  covenue™ in the

accompanying balance sheet. A summary of sigmficant changes in deferred revenue
duning the year ended December 31, 2022, i 25 follows:

Deferred revenue - beganning of year $

Revenue recognized dunig the year (48,935)
Addinons for wntial franchise fees recewed — o068
Deferred revenue - end of year S BI1233

Deferred revenue 15 expecied 1o bo recogruzed as revenue over the romasning teom of
the assocuted franchise agreements as follows:

2023 $ 114317
2024 86,417
2025 8417
2026 8417
2027 86,417
Thereatier —tlL14S
Total LN 56 FeA
Deferred revenue at December 31, 2022, consisted of the following:
Franchise units not yet opened ) 575,867
Opened franchise unats —ros 3G
Total S eidendd

The direct and mcremental costs, prinapally consisting of commusssons, are included 1n
"Prepasd comeamsssons™ i the accompanymng balance sheet. The direct and incremental
costs expected to be recogmzed over the sernasming teem of the associsted franchiae
agreements at December 31, 2022, are as follows:

Year codiogg Decamber 315 Amouat
023 $ 4727
2004 47,127
025 47,127
2026 47,127
2027 47,127
Thereatter —t 22T

Total S 2502
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BEST CHOICE ROOFING FRANCHISING, LLC
(A Limited Liability Company)
NOTES TO FINANCIALSTATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2022

NOTET.  CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

Cash

The Company places s cash, which may at tanes be i excess of Federal Deposit
Insucanee Cotporation issurance lmats, with & mapr Grancil isttuton, Management
believes that this policy wall lumit the Company’s exposure to creda risk.

In March 2023, the stutdown of cortam Gnancul matitutions mned cconomie concems
over disruption i the LS. banking system. The U.S. govermment took certain actions
1o strengthen public confidence i the U.S. banking system. However, there can be no
cectamnty that the actons taken by the U8, government will be effective in mitggatng the
effects of fimancial insttution fadures on the economy, which may include hmats on
access to short-tepm liquidity i the near tenm or have other adverse effects. Gven the
unceetaanty of the simation, the related financial wnpact cannot be reasombly estumated
at this time.

Accounts and fuochae foo ceconable

Concentration of credit rsk with respect to recervables s imited duoe to the number of
franchisees n the Company's customer base and theiwr geographic duspersion. As of
December 31, 2022, one franchasce accounted for 83% of the Company's accounts
recevable and three franchisees accounted for 95% of the Company's franchase fees
recewables. The Company, when needed, provides an allowsnce for doubtful accounts
equal to the estmated collection losses based on hastoneal expenence coupled with a
revaew of the current status of exasting recewvables,

NOTES.  RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Lacoic agrecucnt

On February 4, 2020, the Company entered into a perpenal, exchisive lhicense
agreement with the Lxensor for the use of the regustered name "Best Chosce Roofing™
(the "hcense agreement”). Pursuant to the license agreement, the Company scquered the
nght 10 sell and operate "Best Chowe Roofing” franchises and the night to cam
franchise fees, royalties, and other fees from franchisees, There are no hoense fees
payable to the Lcensor for the year ended December 31, 2022

Duc to member

In the ordinary course of busmess, the Company penodically advances funds to and
recerves funds from the member of the Company. No mterest s chasged on these
acvances. Advances to and from the member are nomntecest beanng and have no
specific date for repayment. Such smounts are expected 10 be satisfied within the next
year and, accordengly, have been classified as a current lubily, The balince due 1o
member smounted o $16,158 at December 31, 2022

14
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BEST CHOICE ROOFING FRANCHISING, LLC
(A Limited Liability Company)
NOTES TO FINANCIALSTATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2022

NOTES.  BRAND FUND

Pursuant 1o the structured form of the franchising armngement, the Company reserves
the nght to colleet brand fund fees up 10 3% of franchisces’ reported gross sales, These
funds are 1o be spent solely on advertismg and related expenses for the benefit of the
francihusees with 2 portion desigrated to offset the Company’s admimstrateve costs to
admunaster the funds, all st the discretwon of the Company. Through June 2022, the
Company collected brand fund contnbutons of 1% of franchisees’ reported gross sales,
The total beand fund contnbutions collected for the year ended December 31, 2022,
totaled $6,453 and 1s inchuded in "Other revenues™ in the sccompanyig statement of
openations, As of December 31, 2022, the Company had expended all baand fund
amounts collected on behudf of franchasees for advertising and macketing,
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Independest Anditor's Report

To the Member
Best Choice Roofing Franchising 1.L.C
Hendersoaville, Tennessee

Report on the Financlel Statements

We have audited the accompanying balance shects of Bost Choice Roofing Franchising 11.C as of Decemsber 31, 2021, and
2020 and the related statements of operations, member’s equity, and cash flows for the vear ended December 31, 2021, and
the period from February 4, 2020 (Inception) through December 31, 2020, and the notes to financial statements.

Management’s Responyibility for the Financial Statements

Management is respoasible for the preparation and fair presentation of these fimancial statements in accordance with
accounting peinciples generally accepted in the United States of Amserica: this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevast to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free froem
material misstatenent, whether due to frand or error.

Audirtor s Resporaidility

Our responsibility is to express an opinics oo these financial ststements based on our audit. We conducted our audst in
accordance with asuditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit 10 obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstaemeont,

An sudit involves performing procedures 1o obtain audit evidence about the amouses and disclosures in the fisancial
stsements. The procedures selected depend on the auditoe’s judgment, including the asscssment of the risks of material
misstaternent of the flmancial statements, whether due 1o fraud or error. In making those risk nssessments, the aoaditor
consaders internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial staements in arder o
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity”s intemal control. Accordingly, we express no such opimion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropristeness of accounting policies used and the reasonablencss of significant accounting estimates made by
management, &8 well a8 cvalusting the overall presentation of the comsolidated fimancial statements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appeopriate 10 provide a basis foe our sudit opinion.

Opinien
In our opinion, the finascial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Best Choice Roofing Franchising LLC as of December 31, 2021, and 2020 and the results of their oporations and their cash
flows foe the year ended December 31, 2021, and the period from February 4, 2020 (Inception) through December 31, 2020,
in accordance with accousting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,

R\Qm CPA L

Thomton, Colorado
May 28, 2022

1 5953 Filmore Stroet = Thomton, 0 $0602
Officr (WI5) 996485 « Fux (300) 204504 ]
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BEST CHOICE ROOFING FRANCHISING LLC
BALANCE SHEETS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND 2020

ASSETS:

CURRENT ASSETS s . s .

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS . -

NONCURRENT ASSETS
letangible xesets 49,384 29,384

TOTALASSETS S 49384 $ 49384

LIABILITIES AND MEMBER™S EQUITY:

CURRENT LIABILITIES .

TOTALCURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES

MEMBER'S EQUITY 49384 49,384

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND MEMBER'S EQUITY s 49.354 $ 49.384

The accompanying notos arc an intogral part of these financaal statements.

4
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BEST CHOICE ROOFING FRANCHISING LLC

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND THE PERIOD

FROM FEBRUARY 4 2020 (INCEPTION) THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2020

REVENUES
TOTAL REVENUES
OPERATING EXPENSES
Payroll and related expenses
Advertising and promotson
General and admanistrative
Professional foes
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES
OPERATING (LOSS)

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE)

NET (LOSS)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,

Best Choice Roofing Franchising, LLC FDD 2023
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2021 2020

930 9,384

81 10,713

a 14236

19.000 2,500
6,408 76,833
(66,408) (76,833)
{66,40%) (76,833)
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BEST CHOICE ROOFING FRANCHISING LLC
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN MEMBER'S EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND THE PERIOD
FROM FEBRUARY 4, 2020 (INCEPTION) THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2020

Total
Member Accumulated Moember's
Contributions Earnings Equity

BALANCE, FEBRUARY 4, 2020 (INCEPTION) S . s . S
Member contnbutions 126,217 - 126,217
Net (loss) - (76,833) (76,833)
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2020 126,217 (76,833) 49,384
Member contributions 66,40% . 66,408
Net (loss) - (66,40%) (66,408)
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2021 S 1920628 S ¢ Nlilll ) S 49_384

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

6

Best Choice Roofing Franchising, LLC FDD 2023 Financial Statements



BEST CHOICE ROOFING FRANCHISING LLC
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND THE PERIOD
FROM FEBRUARY 4, 2020 (INCEPTION) THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2020

2021 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net (loss) imcome S (66308 S (76,833)
Adjustments 1o reconcile ndt iscome 10 net
cash provided by operating activitios:
Nom-cash member contrabulions 66,408 126,217

Net cash provided by operating activities - 49,384

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of intangible asscts - (49,384)

Net cash used for myesting activitics - (49.3%4)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Member comtribations - .

Net cash provided by fimancing activities - -

NET INCREASE IN CASH : .
CASH, BEGINNING . ;
CASH, ENDING s . N )
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES

Cash paid for interest S . s -
Cash paid for taxes S - S -

The accompanyving notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
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BEST CHOICE ROOFING FRANCHISING LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Best Choice Roofing Franchasing LLC (“Company™) was formed on February 4, 2020, {(Inceptson) mn the
State of Temnessee 25 a limited Rability company, The Company grasts franchises for the right to operate
a umique business that will be focused ca ressdential and commercial reroofing of properties that have
sustamned damaged due 1o a wind or hailstorm. Business will be conductad using a proprctary system with
distinctive operating procedures and standards from 2 single location.

Eredecessor and Affiliate

Best Chodce Roofing & Home Improvement, Inc. ("BCREH™) was incorporated oa January §, 2010, in the
state of Tennossoe and = our Prodecessor and affiliste. BCR&H operates 41 locations.

The above predocessor and affiliate do mot sell franchises i any other line of busimess and are not otherwise
engaged m any other busmess activity.

The following table semmarzes the number of locatsons open and operating for the period from February
4. 2020 (Isception) through Decamber 31, 2020:

2021 2020
Locations in opcration, bogmnnmg 3 23
Locations opened 12 10
Locations termmated or closed (2) (2)
Locations in operation, ending 41 31
Franchised Jocaticns - .
Affiliate owned locations 4 K] |

CONID-19

In December 2019, a novel strain of coromavinus was reported in Wuhan, China.  The Woeld Health
Organization has declared the outhreak 1o constitute a “Public Health Emergency of Intemational Concern.™
The COVID-19 outhreak is disruptang supply chains and affccting production and sakes across a range of
industrics. The extent of the impact of COVID- 19 0on our operational and financial performance will depend
om cortain developments, mcluding the duration and spread of the outbecak, mmpact om our cusfomsrs,
cmployces, and vendors all of which are uncertain and cansot be predicted. At this poist, the evient to
which COVID-19 may impact our financial condition or results of operations is uncertain.

A sumsmary of significant accounting polssses follows:

Proparation of the Company’s financial statements i accordance with United States generally accepted
accounting principles reguires management o make ostmmates and assumptions that affect the reportod
amounts of assets and lisbilitics, disclosure of any contingent assets and liabilitics at the date of the financual

statements and reported amounts of revenwees and expenses during the reporting penod. Actual results could
differ from those estimates,

Best Choice Roofing Franchising, LLC FDD 2023 Financial Statements



BEST CHOICE ROOFING FRANCHISING LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 = NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Cooch gy Cash Eguavalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less at the time of
purchass 10 be cash equavalents. The Company had no cash or cash aquivalents as of December 31, 2021,
and 2020,

dscounts Recervable

Timing of revenue recognition may be differcat from the taming of invoicing 10 customers. The Company
records an accounts receivable when revenue s recognized prior to invoscing, or uscamed revenue when
revenue s recognized subsoguent to mmvoscing.  Masagement evaluatos indivadual customar’s reccivables
considering their fimancial condition, credit history and cusrent cconomic conditions, Accounts receivable
are written of if deemed uncollectible and recovenes of accounts receivable previously written off are
recorded as income when reccivad. The Company did not have any accounts recsavable or allowance for
doubtfial accounts as of Docember 31, 2021, and 2020 and did not charge-off any accounts receivable during
the year ended December 31, 2021, and panod from Fobruary 4, 2020 {Incsption) through December 31,
2020,

The Company has adopted ASC 360 - Property, Plant and Equipment. Property and oquipment are stated
at historical cost. Depreciation is provided using straight-line method hased on the estimated useful lives
of the related assats (generally three to seven years). The Company had no property. plant & cquipment at
December 31, 2021, and 2020,

[ntangitle dxeets

The Company has adopted ASC 350, Intangibles — Goodwill and Other that requires that goodwill and
mtangible assets with mdefinite lives no longer be amortized 10 camings but be tested for mmpaimacet at
Jeast annually, Intangible asscts with finste lives are amortized over their estimated wsefial lives. The useful
life of an mtangsble asset 1s the panod over which it is expected to contnibate directly or indirectly to future
cash flows. Intangible asscts with infimite lives are reviewed for impairment if cvents or changes
carcumstances indicate that the camying value might not be recovarable. The Company has recorded an
mlangible asset for franchmse devolopment costs of SA9384 as of December 31, 2021, and 2020
Amortization of these costs will begin at the point of the Company s first franchise sake.

e Tiasgs

The nsember of the Company has clected %o be taxed as a Disregarded Entity under the provisions of the
Intermal Revenoe Code. Under thase provisions, taxable income and losses of the Company are reportad
om the income tax retum of its member and no provisions for federal or state taxes have been recorded on
the accompanying balance sheat.

The Company adopted ASC 740« 10-25-6 “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes™, that requires the
Company to disclose uncertan tax positions. Under the standard an entity may caly recognize or contisme
10 recognize tax positions that meet a “more hkely than not™ threshold upon exammation by taxing
authoritics.
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BEST CHOICE ROOFING FRANCHISING LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 = NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Locome Tasps (Contimued)

Based on its evaluation, the Company has concluded that there are mo sigmificant uncertam tax positions
requaring recognition in its fimancial statcrments or that woukd affect the Company’s member,

Revemie Becogmition

The Company's revenue mainly consists of franchise foes and rovaltics and is recognized s revenue under
the gusdance of ASC 606 “Contracts with Customers™,

Each franchise agreement is comprsed of several performance obligations. The Company identifics thase
performance obligations, detarmines the contract price for cach obligation, allocates the transaction price
to cach pearformance obligation and recognizes revenue when the Company has satisficd the performance
obligation by trassfeming control of the good o service 1o the franchisee. The remainder of performance
obligations reprosent a single performance obligation and are recogmized ovar the term of the respective
franchise agreement from the date the agroement is exocuted. Uncarned mnitial foe revenuss from framchisce
acquasition and acceptance will be recorded as deferred revenue and recognized as revenue over the term
of the comtract which is currently five years, The Company bas no revenis from mitial foos duanng the year
ended December 31, 2021, and the period from February 4, 2010 (Inception) through December 31, 2020

When a franchasos purchases a franchase, the Company grants the franchsee the night 10 use the propndtary
mcthods, techniques, trade dress, trademarks, and logos (“the licemse™), The license is symbolic itellectual
property. Reovenwes related to the license are continemg royalties are 4.75% of gross revenues per woek,
subgect to manimsum rovaltics as defined in the franchise comtract. Those revenses will be wsed 1o contimue
the development of the Company’s beand, the franchise system and provide on-going suppoet for the
Company s franchisces. The royaltaes are balled weekly and arc recognazed as revenue when camed. The
Company has mo revenue from royaltics duning the vear endod December 31, 2021, and the period from
February 4, 20X) (Inception) through December 31, 2020

Natiomal Marketing Fiond Fee
The Company bas the nght 10 colkect a natsonal marketing fund foe of up to 3% of the gross revenues of

cach franchise location, The Company bad no contributsons to the fund for the peniod from February 4,
2020 (Inception ) throagh December 21, 2020

devertésing Conts

The Company cxpenses advatisang costs as maurred. Advatning expense for the year ended Docember
31, 2021, and the pennod from February 4, 2020 (Inception) through December 31, 2020, was S81 and
S3a4

Becently Issued Accounting Prononcements

The Company has adopted all recently issued Accounting Standards Updates (“ASU™). The adopton of
the recently ssoad ASUs, including those not yet effective, is not anticipated to have a matenial effect on
the financial position or results of operations of the Company.

10
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BEST CHOICE ROOFING FRANCHISING LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2 = COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Lunigation

The Company may be party to various clans, legal actions and complaints arising in the ordinary course
of basiness. In the opinion of management, all matters are of such kind, or mvohe such amounts, that
wnfavorable disposition, if any, woald mot bave a material effect on the financial position of the Company.
NOTE 3 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Date of Manggement’s Evahuation

Management has cvalusted subsequent events throsgh Nay 28, 2022, the date on whach the financial
statements were available 1o be issued
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Member
Best Chaice Roofing Franchising LLC
Hendersonville, Tennessee

Report on tive Fimanciol Stasements

We bave audited the sccompanying balance sheet of Best Choico Roofing Franchising LLC as of December 31, 2020 and
e related staterments of cperations, member’s equity, and cash flows for the period from February 4, 2020 (Inception)
through December 31, 2020, and the notes 10 financial statements.

Management’s Responsibilivy for the Fimancial Statements

Management is respossible for the prepamtion and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generallly accepted in the United Siates of America: this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
matcrial misstaternent, whether due 10 fraad or emor.

Awdiror's Responsibiliry

O responsibility is 10 express an opinion on these financial ststemsents based on our audit. We conducted our sadit in
sccordance with auditing standards penerally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we
plae and perform the audit o obtain reasonable assumnce abou whether the financial statoments are free from material

An audit involves performing procedures 10 obtain sudit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the fisancial
stmemments. The procedures selected depend on the auditoe’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the finacial staemsents, whether due to frasd or eror. In making those risk msessments, the sadisor
considers (mernal control relevant 10 the entity"s preparation and fair presentation of the financlal statements in order o
design audit procodures that are appropriate in the ciroumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accondingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropristencss of accounting policies wed and the ressceabloness of sipnificant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated fimancial statements.

We belicve that the sudit evidence we have obuained is sufficient and approprizse to provide a basis foe our audit opinion.
Oplasiom

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the fimancial position of
Best Choice Roofing Franchising L1.C as of December 31, 2020 and the results of their operations and their cash flows for

the period from Febeuary 4, 2020 (Inception) @eough December 31, 2020 in accordance with accounting principles
penemlly accepted in the United States of America.

QM (4

Thomton, Colorado
March 10, 2021

15553 Fillmere Sooct » Dhamaen, OO K602
Offce (D07) VO5aans « Fux (00) 2845041
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BEST CHOICE ROOFING FRANCHISING LLC
BALANCE SHEET
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2020

ASSETS:
CURRENT ASSETS < .
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS .

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Imtangible asscts 49,384
TOTAL ASSETS S 49,384

LIABILITIES AND MEMBER'S EQUITY:
CURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES .

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES .

TOTAL LIABILITIES -
MEMBER'S EQUITY 49,384
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND MEMBER'S EQUITY S 49,384

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
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BEST CHOICE ROOFING FRANCHISING LLC
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE PERIOD FROM FEBRUARY 4, 2020 (INCEPTION) THROUGH

DECEMBER 31, 2020
REVENUES S .
TOTAL REVENUES ¥
OPERATING EXPENSES
Payroll and related expenseos 49384
Advertising and promoticn 10,713
General and admimistrative 14,236
Professional fees 2.500
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 76,833
OPERATING (LOSS) INCOME (76.833)
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE) .
NET (LOSS) INCOME S (76,833)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
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BEST CHOICE ROOFING FRANCHISING LLC
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN MEMBER'S EQUITY
FOR THE PERIOD FROM FEBRUARY 4, 2020 (INCEPTION) THROUGH
DECEMBER 31, 2020

Total
Member Accumulated Member's
Contributions Earnings Equity

BALANCE, FEBRUARY 4, 2020 (INCEPTION) s . s . s .
Member contributions 126,217 - 126,217
Nel imcome S (76,833) (76,%33)

BALANCE, DECEMBER 51,2020 S 126217 S (76833%) S 49 384

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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BEST CHOICE ROOFING FRANCHISING LLC
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE PERIOD FROM FEBRUARY 4, 2020 (INCEPTION) THROUGH
DECEMBER 31, 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net (loss ) income S (76,833)
Adjustments to reconcile net income 10 nct
cash provided by operating activities:
Non<ash member contribations 126,217
Net cash provided by operating activities 49,384

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of intangible asscts (49.384)

Net cash used for investing sctivitics (49.384)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Member contnibations -

Net cash provided by financing activities -

NET INCREASE IN CASH .
CASH, BEGINNING .
CASH, ENDING s S
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES
Cash paid for mierost S .
Cash pand for taves S v

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
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BEST CHOICE ROOFING FRANCHISING LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Bost Chaice Roofing Franchsing LLC ("Company ™) was formed on February 4, 2020, (Inception) i the
State of Tenmessee s a limited liabdlity company. The Company grants franchises for the night 10 opsrate 3
wnigue business that will be focused on residential and commercial reroofing of properties that have
sustamned damaged due 1o 3 wind or hailstorm. Business will be condusctad using 3 proprictary system with
distinctive operating procedures and standards from 2 single location,

Ervdecossor and Afiliate

Best Choice Roofing & Home Improvement, Inc. (“BCR&H™) was incarporated on Janwary §, 2010 in the
statc of Tennossoe and 15 our Prodecessor and affiliate. BCR&H operates 31 locations in [4 statos.

The #bove predecessor and affiliate does not sell franchises in any other line of business and are not
otherwise engaged m any othor businoss activaty.

The following table summanzes the number of locations open and operating for the period from Fobnaary
4, 2020 {Imception) through Decamber 31, 2020

2020
Locations in operatson, begmnmg 23
Locations opened 10
Locations termimated or closed (2)
Locations in operation, endang 31
Franchised bocations .
Aflfiliate owned locations 3l

A summary of significant accounting polscies follows:
COND-19

In December 2019, a novel stram of coronavus was reported i Wuhan, China. The World Health
Ovganization has declared the cutbeeak to constitute a “Public Health Emergency of Istemational Concem.™
The COVID-19 outbreak is disrupting supply chains and affecting production and sales across a range of
industrics. The sxtent of the impact of COVID-19 on owr operational and fmancia] parformancs will depend
on certain developments, including the duration and spread of the outbecak, impact on our customers,
employees, and vendors all of which are uncertain and cannot be predacted. At this pont, the extont to
which COVID-19 may impact our financial condition or results of opsrations & uncertain,

Preparation of the Company s financial statements in accordance with United States generally accepted
accounting principhes roquires management (o make ostrmates and assumptions that affoct the reported
amounts of asscts and lisbilitics, disclosure of any contingent asscts and liabalitics at the date of the fisancial

statements and reported amounts of revenues and expanses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates,
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BEST CHOICE ROOFING FRANCHISING LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE I « NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Caeh gnd Caach Eguuvalents

The Company considers all highly Iiquid investments with a matunty of three months or less at the time of
purchase to be cash equivalents. The Company had no cash equivalents as of Decomber 31, 2020,
decaunts Recevable

Timing of revenue recognation may be difforent from the timeng of myoscmg to customers. The Company
records an accounts reccivable when revenue s recognized prior %0 inveesing, or umcamed revenue when
revenue is recognized subsequent to invoicing. Management evaluates individual customer’s receivables
comsidering thewr financial condition, crodit history and current ccomomas conditions. Accounts receivable
are written off if deemad uncollectible and recoveries of accounts reccivable previously written off are
rocorded as income when recaived. The Company did not have any accounts recevable or allowance for

doubtfial accounts as of December 31, 2020 and did mot charge-off any accounts reccivable during the period
from Febeuary 4, 2020 (Inceptson) through December 31, 2020,

Eroperty, Plant & Equipenet

The Company has adopted ASC 360 - Property, Plant and Equipment. Property and equipmsent are stated
at hastorical cost. Depreciation is provaded wsing straight-lme method based on the estimated uselul ives
of the relsted assets (gencrally theee 10 seven vears). The Company had no property, plant & oquipment at
Decamber 31, 2020,

[ntangible Assers

The Company has adopted ASC 320, Intangibles — Goodwill and Other that requires that goodwill and
intangible assets with mdefinite lives no losger be amaortized 1o cammps but be tested for impaimment at
lcast annually. Intangable assets with fimte lives are amortized over ther estimated useful hives. The uscfil
life of an mtangsble assct s the period over which it is expected to contribute dircctly or mdirectly to future
cash flows, Intangible asscts with infindte lives are reviewed for impairment if cvents or changes i
circumstances mdicate that the carrying value might not be recoverable.

{ncome Taws

The member of the Company has clected 10 be taxed as a Disregarded Entity under the provissons of the
Intemal Revenue Code. Under those provisions, taxable income and losses of the Company are reported on
the income tax return of its member and no provissons for fodoral or state taxes have bean recorded on the
accompanying balance sheet,
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BEST CHOICE ROOFING FRANCHISING LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE I « NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Locome Tass (Contimued)

The Company adopted ASC 740-10-25-6 “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes™, that requires the
Company 1o discloss umeertain tax positsons. Under the standard an entity may onlly recogmize of continue
10 recognize tax positions that meet a “more likely than mot™ threshokd upon examination by taxing

Based on its evaluation, the Company has concluded that there are no significant uncertain tax positions
roquaning recogmiton m s financial statements or that would affect the Company’s member. The
Company s evaluation was performed for the period froem Februaey 4, 2020 (Inceptson ) through December
31, 2000 for 1S, Federal Income Tax and for the State of Tennessee Income Tax.

Revenue Recopnition

The Company s revenue mainly consasts of franchise foes and royalties and is recognized as revenes undar
the guadance of ASC 606 “Contracts with Custonven™,

Each franchisc agrocment 1s comprisad of several performance obligations, The Company identifios thaose
performance obligations, determines the costract price for cach obligation, allocates the transaction price
to cach performance obligation and recognizes revenue when the Company has satisfied the performance
obligation by transfarring comtrol of the good of service W the franchises, The remainder of performance
obligations represent a2 single performance obligation and arc recognized over the tom of the respective
framchise agreement from the date the agreoment s executed. Uncamed imitsal foe revenues from franchasco
acquisition and acceptance will be recordod ay deferred revenne and recognized as revenue over the term
of the comtract which is camently five years. The Company has 50 revense from initial foes during the
perod from February 4, 2010 (Incsption) through Dosember 31, 2020,

When a franchasee purchases a franchase, the Company grants the franchisce the rnight 1o use the proprictary
mcthods, echniques, trade dross, trademarks, and logos ("the licanse™). The homse s symbolic miclioctual
property. Revenues redatad 1o the license are continuing royalties are 4% of gross reveniscs, or a minimum
of S600 per week. These revenues will be used to continue the development of the Company s brand, the
franchise system and provade on-gomg support for the Company’s franchisees. The royaltios are billed
weekly and are recogmized as revense when camned. The Company has mo revenue from rovalties during
the peniod from Febeuary 4. 2020 (Inception) through December 31, 2020,

National Marketing Fund Fee

The Company has the right to collect a national marketing fund fec of 1.5% of the gross revenses of cach
framchise location, The Company had no contributions 1o the fund for the paniod from February 4, 2000
(Inception) through December 31, 2020,

ddvertising Costy

The Company expenses advertising costs s incured. Advertising expense the period from Febwuary 4,
2020 (Inception ) throagh December 31, 2020 was $3,444.

10
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BEST CHOICE ROOFING FRANCHISING LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE I « NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Fatr Valug of E '

For the Company’s financial mstruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, the camying amounts
approximate fair value duc 1o their short matiartics.

Becently [ssued dccountmg Pronaecencnts

The Company has adoptad all recently isswcd Accounting Standards Updates (“ASU™). The adoption of the
recently issued ASUs, incloding those not yet effective, 1s not anticipated 1o have a matonal effect on the
finamcial position or results of operations of the Company.

NOTE 2 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Lusgation

The Company may be party 1o vanous clams, legal actions and complaints arising in the ordinary counse
of busimess. [n the opinson of mamagement, all matters are of such kind, or mvolve such amounts, that
unlavorable disposttion. if any, would mot have a matenial effect on the financial position of the Company.
NOTE 3 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Dote of Management s Evahustion

Management has cvalustad subscquent events throsgh March 10, 2021 the date on which the financial
statements were available to be issued.

1)
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EXHIBIT F

CURRENT AND FORMER FRANCHISEES

Franchisees Opened as of December 31, 2022

Names of all current franchisees (as of the end of our last fiscal year) and the address and telephone
number of each of their outlets:

Franchisee Address Phone Number of
Number Territories
BCR Contractors of 1119 Avilla East 870-838-3077 |3
Arkansas LLC Alexander, AR 72002
Swohn Ventures LL.C 18 Sonnet Dr. 781-312-8659 |2
Newark, DE 19702
Renegade Sales LLC 109 West Central Ave. 863-241-5258 | 1

Valdosta, GA 31601
Best Choice Roofing North | 2445 Directors Row, Ste. A 502-645-5755 |1

LLC Indianapolis, IN 46421

Best Choice Roofing 11736 New Castle Ave. Bldg 1 | 804-551-0325 | 1
Louisiana LLC* Baton Rouge, LA 70816

Best Choice Roofing 367-B N Parkway Ste. 3 931-305-8283 |1
Jackson LLC Jackson, TN 37040

*We (through our affiliate) are in the process of reacquiring this franchise as of the issuance date
of this Disclosure Document.

Franchisees Signed but not yet Opened as of December 31, 2022

Franchisee Address Phone Number of
Number Territories

Felipe Alfanso Egoavil & 933 Calumet St., Apt. 1 561-358-2440 |1

Erica Johanna Parodi Detroit, MI 48201

Kangarooms Rentals LLC | 8207 Callaghan Rd. Ste. 410 913-396-3173 |3
San Antonio, TX 78230

Robert Wolf* 2150 S Central Expy. # 200 714-450-5265 | 4
McKinney, TX 75070

Douglas Anthony & 383 S 1075 E. 435-232-3885 |5

Tyler Crosbie* Smithfield, UT 84335

*These franchisees have opened for business as of the issuance date of this Disclosure Document.

Former Franchisees

Name, city and state, and current business telephone number, or if unknown, the last known home
telephone number of every franchisee who had an outlet terminated, canceled, not renewed, or
otherwise voluntarily or involuntarily ceased to do business under the franchise agreement during
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the most recently completed fiscal year or who have not communicated with us within 10 weeks
of the disclosure document issuance date:

Louisiana LLC*

Baton Rouge, LA 70816

Franchisee Address Phone Number of
Number Territories
Best Choice Roofing 11736 New Castle Ave. Bldg 1 | 804-551-0325 | 1
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EXHIBIT G

STATE ADDENDA TO DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
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CALIFORNIA ADDENDUM TO DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

California Corporations Code, Section 31125 requires the franchisor to give the franchisee a
disclosure document, approved by the Department of Financial Protection and Innovation, prior to
a solicitation of a proposed material modification of an existing franchise.

The registration of this franchise offering by the California Department of Financial Protection and
Innovation does not constitute approval, recommendation, or endorsement by the commissioner.

THE CALIFORNIA FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW REQUIRES THAT A COPY
OF ALL PROPOSED AGREEMENTS RELATING TO THE SALE OF THE FRANCHISE BE
DELIVERED TOGETHER WITH THE OFFERING CIRCULAR.

OUR WEBSITE, www.bestchoiceroofing.com, HAS NOT BEEN REVIEWED OR
APPROVED BY THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL PROTECTION AND
INNOVATION. ANY COMPLAINTS CONCERNING THE CONTENT OF THIS WEBSITE
MAY BE DIRECTED TO THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL
PROTECTION AND INNOVATION AT www.dfpi.ca.gov.

THESE FRANCHISES HAVE BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE FRANCHISE
INVESTMENT LAW OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA. SUCH REGISTRATION DOES
NOT CONSTITUTE APPROVAL, RECOMMENDATION OR ENDORSEMENT BY THE
COMMISSIONER OF FINANCIAL PROTECTION AND INNOVATION NOR A FINDING
BY THE COMMISSIONER THAT THE INFORMATION PROVIDED HEREIN IS TRUE,
COMPLETE AND NOT MISLEADING.

ALL THE OWNERS OF THE FRANCHISE WILL BE REQUIRED TO EXECUTE
PERSONAL GUARANTEES. THIS REQUIREMENT PLACES THE MARITAL ASSETS OF THE
SPOUSES DOMICILED IN COMMUNITY PROPERTY STATES — ARIZONA, CALIFORNIA,
IDAHO, LOUISIANA, NEVADA, NEW MEXICO, TEXAS, WASHINGTON AND WISCONSIN
AT RISK IF YOUR FRANCHISE FAILS.

1. The following paragraph is added to the end of Item 3 of the Disclosure Document:

Neither franchisor nor any person or franchise broker in Item 2 of this disclosure document
is subject to any currently effective order of any national securities association or national
securities exchange, as defined in the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, 15 U.S.C.A. 78a
et seq., suspending or expelling such persons from membership in that association or
exchange.

2. The following is added to Item 5 of the Disclosure Document:

The franchisor has posted a surety bond in the amount of the initial franchise fee. The
Department of Financial Protection and Innovation has required this financial assurance
obligation based on the franchisor’s financial position.

3. The following paragraph is added to the end of Item 6 of the Disclosure Document:
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With respect to the Late Fee described in Item 6, this Item is amended to disclose that the
maximum rate of interest permitted under California law is 10%.

4. The following paragraphs are added at the end of Item 17 of the Disclosure Document:

The Franchise Agreement requires franchisee to sign a general release of claims upon
renewal or transfer of the Franchise Agreement. California Corporations Code Section
31512 provides that any condition, stipulation or provision purporting to bind any person
acquiring a franchise to waive compliance with any provision of that law or any rule or
order thereunder is void.

California Business and Professions Code Sections 20000 through 20043 provide rights to
the franchisee concerning termination, transfer, or non-renewal of a franchise. If the
Franchise Agreement contains a provision that is inconsistent with the law, the law will
control.

The Franchise Agreement provides for termination upon bankruptcy. This provision may
not be enforceable under federal bankruptcy law (11 U.S.C.A. Sec. 101 et seq.).

The Franchise Agreement contains a covenant not to compete which extends beyond the
termination of the franchise. This provision may not be enforceable under California law.

The Franchise Agreement requires binding arbitration. The arbitration will occur in
Hendersonville, Tennessee, with the costs being borne equally by Franchisor and
Franchisee. Prospective franchisees are encouraged to consult private legal counsel to
determine the applicability of California and federal laws (such as Business and
Professions Code Section 20040.5, Code of Civil Procedure Section 1281, and the Federal
Arbitration Act) to any provisions of a franchise agreement restricting venue to a forum
outside the State of California.

The Franchise Agreement requires application of the laws of Tennessee. This provision
may not be enforceable under California law.
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HAWAII ADDENDUM TO DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
In the State of Hawaii only, this Disclosure Document is amended as follows:

THESE FRANCHISES WILL BE/HAVE BEEN FILED UNDER THE FRANCHISE
INVESTMENT LAW OF THE STATE OF HAWAII. FILING DOES NOT CONSTITUTE
APPROVAL, RECOMMENDATION OR ENDORSEMENT BY THE DIRECTOR OF
COMMERCE AND CONSUMER AFFAIRS OR A FINDING BY THE DIRECTOR OF
COMMERCE AND CONSUMER AFFAIRS THAT THE INFORMATION PROVIDED
HEREIN IS TRUE, COMPLETE AND NOT MISLEADING.

THE FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW MAKES IT UNLAWFUL TO OFFER OR
SELL ANY FRANCHISE IN THIS STATE WITHOUT FIRST PROVIDING TO THE
PROSPECTIVE FRANCHISEE, OR SUBFRANCHISOR, AT LEAST SEVEN DAYS PRIOR
TO THE EXECUTION BY THE PROSPECTIVE FRANCHISEE, OF ANY BINDING
FRANCHISE OR OTHER AGREEMENT, OR AT LEAST SEVEN DAYS PRIOR TO THE
PAYMENT OF ANY CONSIDERATION BY THE FRANCHISEE, OR SUBFRANCHISOR,
WHICHEVER OCCURS FIRST, A COPY OF THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT, TOGETHER
WITH A COPY OF ALL PROPOSED AGREEMENTS RELATING TO THE SALE OF THE
FRANCHISE.

THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT CONTAINS A SUMMARY ONLY OF CERTAIN
MATERIAL PROVISIONS OF THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT. THE CONTRACT OR
AGREEMENT SHOULD BE REFERRED TO FOR A STATEMENT OF ALL RIGHTS,
CONDITIONS, RESTRICTIONS AND OBLIGATIONS OF BOTH THE FRANCHISOR AND
THE FRANCHISEE.

Registered agent in the state authorized to receive service of process:

Commissioner of Securities
335 Merchant Street
Honolulu, Hawaii 96813

Registration of franchises or filings of offering circulars in other states. As of the date of
filing of this Addendum in the State of Hawaii:

1. A franchise registration is effective or an offering circular is on file in the following
states:

2. A proposed registration or filing is or will be shortly on file in the following states:

3. No states have refused, by order or otherwise to register these franchises.

4. No states have revoked or suspended the right to offer these franchises.

5. The proposed registration of these franchises has not been withdrawn in any state.
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ILLINOIS ADDENDUM TO DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
In the State of Illinois only, this Disclosure Document is amended as follows:

Item 5 of the Franchise Disclosure Document is amended to state that, “The franchisor has
posted a surety bond in the amount of $600,000. The Illinois Attorney General’s Office has
required this financial assurance obligation due to the franchisor’s financial condition.”

Illinois law governs the agreements between the parties to this franchise.

Section 4 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act provides that any provision in a franchise
agreement that designates jurisdiction of venue outside the State of Illinois is void.
However, a franchise agreement may provide for arbitration outside of Illinois.

Section 41 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act provides that any condition, stipulation,
or provision purporting to bind any person acquiring any franchise to waive compliance
with the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act or any other law of Illinois is void.

Your rights upon termination and non-renewal of a franchise agreement are set forth in
sections 19 and 20 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act.

No statement, questionnaire or acknowledgement signed or agreed to by a franchisee in
connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of:
(1) waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the
inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on behalf of the Franchisor. This provision
supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.
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MARYLAND ADDENDUM TO DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
In the State of Maryland only, this Disclosure Document is amended as follows:
The following is added to Item 5:

Based upon the franchisor’s financial condition, the Maryland Securities Commissioner
has required a financial assurance. Therefore, the franchisor has posted a surety bond in
the amount of $300,000.

The following is added to Item 17:

The general release required as a condition of renewal, sale, and/or assignment/transfer
shall not apply to any liability under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure
Law.

You may bring an action under such law within three years after the grant of the franchise.

You have the right to file a lawsuit alleging a cause of action arising under the Maryland
Franchise Law in any court of competent jurisdiction in the State of Maryland.

The Franchise Agreement provides for termination upon bankruptcy of the franchisee. This
provision may not be enforceable under federal bankruptcy law.

This Franchise Agreement provides that disputes are resolved through arbitration. A
Maryland franchise regulation states that it is unfair or deceptive practice to require a
franchisee to waive its right to file a lawsuit in Maryland claiming a violation of the
Maryland Franchise Law. In light of the Federal Arbitration Act, there is some dispute as
to whether this forum selection requirement is legally enforceable.
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MINNESOTA ADDENDUM TO DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

In the State of Minnesota only, this Disclosure Document is amended as follows:

Item 5 and 7 are amended as follows: The franchisor has posted a surety bond in the amount
of the initial franchise fee. The State of Minnesota has required this financial assurance
obligation due to the franchisor’s financial condition.

Minnesota Statutes, Section 80C.21 and Minnesota Rules 2860.4400(J) prohibit the
franchisor from requiring litigation to be conducted outside Minnesota, requiring waiver
of a jury trial, or requiring the franchisee to consent to liquidated damages, termination
penalties or judgment notes. In addition, nothing in the Franchise Disclosure Document or
agreement(s) can abrogate or reduce (1) any of the franchisee’s rights as provided for in
Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 80C or (2) franchisee’s rights to any procedure, forum, or
remedies provided for by the laws of the jurisdiction.

With respect to franchises governed by Minnesota law, the franchisor will comply with
Minnesota Statutes, Section 80C.14, Subd. 3-5, which require (except in certain specified
cases) (1) that a franchisee be given 90 days’ notice of termination (with 60 days to cure)
and 180 days’ notice for non-renewal of the franchise agreement and (2) that consent to the
transfer of the franchise will not be unreasonably withheld.

The franchisor will protect the franchisee’s rights to use the trademarks, service marks,
trade names, logotypes or other commercial symbols or indemnify the franchisee from any
loss, costs or expenses arising out of any claim, suit or demand regarding the use of the
name.

Minnesota considers it unfair to not protect the franchisee’s right to use the trademarks.
Refer to Minnesota Statues, Section 80C.12, Subd. 1(g).

Minnesota Rules 2860.4400(D) prohibits a franchisor from requiring a franchisee to assent
to a general release.

The franchisee cannot consent to the franchisor obtaining injunctive relief. The franchisor
may seek injunctive relief. See Minn. Rules 2860.4400J. Also, a court will determine if a
bond is required.

The Limitations of Claims section must comply with Minnesota Statutes, Section 80C.17,
Subd. 5, which states “No action may be commenced pursuant to this Section more than
three years after the cause of action accrues.”

THESE FRANCHISES HAVE BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE MINNESOTA
FRANCHISE ACT. REGISTRATION DOES NOT CONSTITUTE APPROVAL,
RECOMMENDATION OR ENDORSEMENT BY THE COMMISSIONER OF
COMMERCE OF MINNESOTA OR A FINDING BY THE COMMISSIONER THAT THE
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INFORMATION PROVIDED HEREIN IS TRUE, COMPLETE AND NOT
MISLEADING.

THE MINNESOTA FRANCHISE ACT MAKES IT UNLAWFUL TO OFFER OR SELL
ANY FRANCHISE IN THIS STATE WHICH IS SUBJECT TO REGISTRATION
WITHOUT FIRST PROVIDING TO THE PROSPECTIVE FRANCHISEE, AT LEAST 7
DAYS PRIOR TO THE EXECUTION BY THE PROSPECTIVE FRANCHISEE OF ANY
BINDING FRANCHISE OR OTHER AGREEMENT, OR AT LEAST 7 DAYS PRIOR TO
THE PAYMENT OF ANY CONSIDERATION, BY THE FRANCHISEE, WHICHEVER
OCCURS FIRST, A COPY OF THIS PUBLIC OFFERING STATEMENT, TOGETHER
WITH A COPY OF ALL PROPOSED AGREEMENTS RELATING TO THE
FRANCHISE. THIS PUBLIC OFFERING STATEMENT CONTAINS A SUMMARY
ONLY OF CERTAIN MATERIAL PROVISIONS OF THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT.
THE CONTRACT OR AGREEMENT SHOULD BE REFERRED TO FOR AN
UNDERSTANDING OF ALL RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF BOTH THE
FRANCHISOR AND THE FRANCHISEE.
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NEW YORK ADDENDUM TO DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
In the State of New York only, this Disclosure Document is amended as follows:

1. The following information is added to the cover page of the Franchise Disclosure
Document:

INFORMATION COMPARING FRANCHISORS IS AVAILABLE. CALL THE
STATE ADMINISTRATORS LISTED IN EXHIBIT A OR YOUR PUBLIC
LIBRARY FOR SOURCES OF INFORMATION. REGISTRATION OF THIS
FRANCHISE BY NEW YORK STATE DOES NOT MEAN THAT NEW YORK
STATE RECOMMENDS IT OR HAS VERIFIED THE INFORMATION IN THIS
FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT. IF YOU LEARN THAT ANYTHING
IN THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT IS UNTRUE, CONTACT THE
FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION AND THE APPROPRIATE STATE OR
PROVINCIAL AUTHORITY. THE FRANCHISOR MAY, IF IT CHOOSES,
NEGOTIATE WITH YOU ABOUT ITEMS COVERED IN THE FRANCHISE
DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT. HOWEVER, THE FRANCHISOR CANNOT USE
THE NEGOTIATING PROCESS TO PREVAIL UPON A PROSPECTIVE
FRANCHISEE TO ACCEPT TERMS WHICH ARE LESS FAVORABLE THAN
THOSE SET FORTH IN THIS FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT.

2. The following is added at the end of Item 3:

Except as provided above, with regard to the franchisor, its predecessor, a person identified
in [tem 2, or an affiliate offering franchises under the franchisor’s principal trademark:

A. No such party has an administrative, criminal or civil action pending against that person
alleging: a felony, a violation of a franchise, antitrust, or securities law, fraud,
embezzlement, fraudulent conversion, misappropriation of property, unfair or deceptive
practices, or comparable civil or misdemeanor allegations.

B. No such party has pending actions, other than routine litigation incidental to the
business, which are significant in the context of the number of franchisees and the size,
nature or financial condition of the franchise system or its business operations.

C. No such party has been convicted of a felony or pleaded nolo contendere to a felony
charge or, within the 10 year period immediately preceding the application for registration,
has been convicted of or pleaded nolo contendere to a misdemeanor charge or has been the
subject of a civil action alleging: violation of a franchise, antifraud, or securities law; fraud;
embezzlement; fraudulent conversion or misappropriation of property; or unfair or
deceptive practices or comparable allegations.

D. No such party is subject to a currently effective injunctive or restrictive order or decree
relating to the franchise, or under a Federal, State, or Canadian franchise, securities,
antitrust, trade regulation or trade practice law, resulting from a concluded or pending
action or proceeding brought by a public agency; or is subject to any currently effective
order of any national securities association or national securities exchange, as defined in

9
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5.

the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, suspending or expelling such person from
membership in such association or exchange; or is subject to a currently effective injunctive
or restrictive order relating to any other business activity as a result of an action brought
by a public agency or department, including, without limitation, actions affecting a license
as a real estate broker or sales agent.

The following is added to the end of the “Summary” sections of Item 17(c), titled

“Requirements for franchisee to renew or extend,” and Item 17(m), entitled “Conditions for
franchisor approval of transfer”:

6.

However, to the extent required by applicable law, all rights you enjoy and any causes of
action arising in your favor from the provisions of Article 33 of the General Business Law
of the State of New York and the regulations issued thereunder shall remain in force; it
being the intent of this proviso that the non-waiver provisions of General Business Law
Sections 687.4 and 687.5 be satisfied.

The following language replaces the “Summary” section of Item 17(d), titled

“Termination by franchisee’:

8.

You may terminate the agreement on any grounds available by law.

The following is added to the end of the “Summary” sections of Item 17(v), titled “Choice

of forum”, and Item 17(w), titled “Choice of law”:

The foregoing choice of law should not be considered a waiver of any right conferred upon
the franchisor or upon the franchisee by Article 33 of the General Business Law of the
State of New York.

10
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NORTH DAKOTA ADDENDUM TO DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

In the State of North Dakota only, this Disclosure Document is amended as follows:

The franchisor will defer collecting the initial franchise fee until the franchisor has
performed all pre-opening obligations owed to the franchisee and the franchisee has
commenced doing business.

THE SECURITIES COMMISSIONER HAS HELD THE FOLLOWING TO BE

UNFAIR, UNJUST OR INEQUITABLE TO NORTH DAKOTA FRANCHISEES (NDCC
SECTION 51-19-09):

1.

10.

Restrictive Covenants: Franchise disclosure documents that disclose the existence of
covenants restricting competition contrary to NDCC Section 9-08-06, without further
disclosing that such covenants will be subject to the statute.

Situs of Arbitration Proceedings: Franchise agreements providing that the parties must
agree to the arbitration of disputes at a location that is remote from the site of the
franchisee's business.

Restrictions on Forum: Requiring North Dakota franchisees to consent to the jurisdiction
of courts outside of North Dakota.

Liquidated Damages and Termination Penalties: Requiring North Dakota franchisees to
consent to liquidated damages or termination penalties.

Applicable Laws: Franchise agreements that specify that they are to be governed by the
laws of a state other than North Dakota.

Waiver of Trial by Jury: Requiring North Dakota Franchises to consent to the waiver of a
trial by jury.

Waiver of Exemplary and Punitive Damages: Requiring North Dakota Franchisees to
consent to a waiver of exemplary and punitive damage.

General Release: Franchise Agreements that require the franchisee to sign a general release
upon renewal of the franchise agreement.

Limitation of Claims: Franchise Agreements that require the franchisee to consent to a
limitation of claims. The statute of limitations under North Dakota law applies.

Enforcement of Agreement: Franchise Agreements that require the franchisee to pay all
costs and expenses incurred by the franchisor in enforcing the agreement. The prevailing
party in any enforcement action is entitled to recover all costs and expenses including
attorney’s fees.

11
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RHODE ISLAND ADDENDUM TO DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
In the State of Rhode Island only, this Disclosure Document is amended as follows:
Item 17, summary columns for (v) and (w) are amended to add the following:
Any provision in the franchise agreement restricting jurisdiction or venue to a
forum outside Rhode Island or requiring the application of the laws of a state other

than Rhode Island is void as to a claim otherwise enforceable under the Rhode
Island Franchise Investment Act.

12
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VIRGINIA ADDENDUM TO DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
In the Commonwealth of Virginia only, this Disclosure Document is amended as follows:
The following is added to the Special Risks page:

“Estimated Initial Investment. The franchisee will be required to make an estimated
initial investment ranging from $110,200 to $193,000. This amount exceeds the
franchisor's stockholder’s equity as of December 31, 2021, which is $49,384."

The following statements are added to Item 17(h):

Under Section 13.1-564 of the Virginia Retail Franchising Act, it is unlawful for a
franchisor to cancel a franchise without reasonable cause. If any grounds for default
or termination stated in the Franchise Agreement do not constitute “reasonable
cause,” as that term may be defined in the Virginia Retail Franchising Act or the
laws of Virginia, that provision may not be enforceable.

Under Section 13.1-564 of the Virginia Retail Franchising Act, it is unlawful for a
franchisor to use undue influence to induce a franchisee to surrender any right given
to him under the franchise. If any provision of the Franchise Agreement involves
the use of undue influence by the franchisor to induce a franchisee to surrender any
rights given to the franchisee under the franchise, that provision may not be
enforceable.

Item 17(t) is amended to read as follows:

Only the terms of the Franchise Agreement and other related written agreements
are binding (subject to applicable state law). Any representations or promises
outside of the Disclosure Document and Franchise Agreement may not be
enforceable.

13
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WASHINGTON ADDENDUM TO DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

(See Exhibit H for Washington Addendum to the Franchise Disclosure Document, Franchise
Agreement, and Related Agreements)

14
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EXHIBIT H

STATE ADDENDA TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
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ILLINOIS RIDER TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

This Rider amends the Franchise Agreement dated (the
“Agreement”), between Best Choice Roofing Franchising, LLC, A Tennessee limited liability
company (“Franchisor”) and , a

(“Franchisee™).

1. Definitions. Capitalized terms used but not defined in this Rider have the meanings
given in the Agreement. The “Illinois Act” means the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act of 1987.

2. Surety Bond. The franchisor has posted a surety bond in the amount of $600,000.
The Illinois Attorney General’s Office has required this financial assurance obligation due to the
franchisor’s financial condition.

3. Governing Law_and Jurisdiction. Notwithstanding any provision of the
Agreement to the contrary, the Agreement is governed by Illinois law. The parties irrevocably
submit to the jurisdiction and venue of the federal and state courts in Illinois, except for matters
which the Agreement provides will be resolved by arbitration.

4. Limitation of Claims. No action can be maintained to enforce any liability created
by the Illinois Act unless brought before the expiration of 3 years from the act or transaction
constituting the violation upon which it is based, the expiration of 1 year after Franchisee become
aware of facts or circumstances reasonably indicating that Franchisee may have a claim for relief
in respect to conduct governed by the Illinois Act, or 90 days after delivery to the Franchisee of a
written notice disclosing the violation, whichever shall first expire.

5. Waivers Void. Notwithstanding any provision of the Agreement to the contrary,
any condition, stipulation, or provision purporting to bind Franchisee to waive compliance with
any provision of the Illinois Act or any other law of the State of Illinois is void. This Section shall
not prevent Franchisee from entering into a settlement agreement or executing a general release
regarding a potential or actual lawsuit filed under any of the provisions of this Act, nor shall it
prevent the arbitration of any claim pursuant to the provisions of Title 9 of the United States Code.

5. Effective Date. This Rider is effective as of the Effective Date.
Agreed to by:
FRANCHISEE: FRANCHISOR:

BEST CHOICE ROOFING FRANCHISING,

LLC
By:
Name: By:
Title: Name:
Date: Title:
Date:
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INDIANA RIDER TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

This Rider amends the Franchise Agreement dated (the
“Agreement”), between Best Choice Roofing Franchising, LLC, A Tennessee limited liability

company (“Franchisor”) and , a
(“Franchisee™).
1. Definitions. Capitalized terms used but not defined in this Rider have the meanings

given in the Agreement. The “Indiana Acts” means the Indiana Franchise Act and the Indiana
Deceptive Franchise Practices Act.

2. Certain Provisions Modified. Any provision of the Agreement which would have
any of the following effects is hereby modified to the extent required for the Agreement to be in
compliance with the Indiana Acts:

(1) Requiring goods, supplies, inventories, or services to be purchased exclusively from the
franchisor or sources designated by the franchisor where such goods, supplies, inventories, or
services of comparable quality are available from sources other than those designated by the
franchisor. However, the publication by the franchisor of a list of approved suppliers of goods,
supplies, inventories, or services or the requirement that such goods, supplies, inventories, or
services comply with specifications and standards prescribed by the franchisor does not constitute
designation of a source nor does a reasonable right of the franchisor to disapprove a supplier
constitute a designation. This subdivision does not apply to the principal goods, supplies,
inventories, or services manufactured or trademarked by the franchisor.

2) Allowing the franchisor to establish a franchisor-owned outlet engaged in a substantially
identical business to that of the franchisee within the protected territory granted the franchisee by
the franchise agreement; or, if no protected territory is designated, permitting the franchisor to
compete unfairly with the franchisee within a reasonable area.

3) Allowing substantial modification of the franchise agreement by the franchisor without the
consent in writing of the franchisee.

4 Allowing the franchisor to obtain money, goods, services, or any other benefit from any
other person with whom the franchisee does business, on account of, or in relation to, the
transaction between the franchisee and the other person, other than for compensation for services
rendered by the franchisor, unless the benefit is promptly accounted for, and transmitted to the
franchisee.

®)) Requiring the franchisee to prospectively assent to a release, assignment, novation, waiver,
or estoppel which purports to relieve any person from liability to be imposed by the Indiana
Deceptive Franchise Practices Act or requiring any controversy between the franchisee and the
franchisor to be referred to any person, if referral would be binding on the franchisee. This
subsection (5) does not apply to arbitration before an independent arbitrator.
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(6) Allowing for an increase in prices of goods provided by the franchisor which the franchisee
had ordered for private retail consumers prior to the franchisee's receipt of an official price increase
notification. A sales contract signed by a private retail consumer shall constitute evidence of each
order. Price changes applicable to new models of a product at the time of introduction of such new
models shall not be considered a price increase. Price increases caused by conformity to a state or
federal law, or the revaluation of the United States dollar in the case of foreign-made goods, are
not subject to this subsection (6).

(7) Permitting unilateral termination of the franchise if such termination is without good cause
or in bad faith. Good cause within the meaning of this subsection (7) includes any material
violation of the franchise agreement.

(8) Permitting the franchisor to fail to renew a franchise without good cause or in bad faith.
This chapter shall not prohibit a franchise agreement from providing that the agreement is not
renewable upon expiration or that the agreement is renewable if the franchisee meets certain
conditions specified in the agreement.

)] Requiring a franchisee to covenant not to compete with the franchisor for a period longer
than three years or in an area greater than the protected area granted by the franchise agreement
or, in absence of such a provision in the agreement, an area of reasonable size, upon termination
of or failure to renew the franchise.

(10)  Limiting litigation brought for breach of the agreement in any manner whatsoever.

(11)  Requiring the franchisee to participate in any (A) advertising campaign or contest; (B)
promotional campaign; (C) promotional materials; or (D) display decorations or materials; at an
expense to the franchisee that is indeterminate, determined by a third party, or determined by a
formula, unless the franchise agreement specifies the maximum percentage of gross monthly sales
or the maximum absolute sum that the franchisee may be required to pay.

3. Effective Date. This Rider is effective as of the Effective Date.
Agreed to by:
FRANCHISEE: FRANCHISOR:

BEST CHOICE ROOFING FRANCHISING,

LLC
By:
Name: By:
Title: Name:
Date: Title:
Date:
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MARYLAND RIDER TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

This Rider amends the Franchise Agreement dated (the
“Agreement”), between Best Choice Roofing Franchising, LLC, A Tennessee limited liability
company (“Franchisor”) and , a

(“Franchisee™).

1. Definitions. Capitalized terms used but not defined in this Rider have the meanings
given in the Agreement. The “Maryland Franchise Law” means the Maryland Franchise
Registration and Disclosure Law, Business Regulation Article, §14-206, Annotated Code of
Maryland.

2. Surety Bond. Based upon the franchisor’s financial condition, the Maryland
Securities Commissioner has required a financial assurance. Therefore, the franchisor has posted
a surety bond in the amount of $300,000.

3. No Release of Liability. Pursuant to COMAR 02-02-08-16L, the general release
required as a condition of renewal, sale, and/or assignment/transfer shall not apply to any liability
under the Maryland Franchise Law.

4. Statute of Limitations. Any provision of the Agreement which provides for a
period of limitations for causes of action shall not apply to causes of action under the Maryland
Franchise Law, Business Regulation Article, §14-227, Annotated Code of Maryland. Franchisee
must bring an action under such law within three years after the grant of the franchise.

5. Jurisdiction. Notwithstanding any provision of the Agreement to the contrary,
Franchisee does not waive its right to file a lawsuit alleging a cause of action arising under the
Maryland Franchise Law in any court of competent jurisdiction in the State of Maryland.

6. No Waiver of State Law. All representations requiring prospective franchisees to
assent to a release, estoppel or waiver of liability are not intended to nor shall they act as a release,
estoppel or waiver of any liability incurred under the Maryland Franchise Registration and
Disclosure Law.

7. Arbitration. This Franchise Agreement provides that disputes are resolved through
arbitration. A Maryland franchise regulation states that it is an unfair or deceptive trade practice
to require a franchisee to waive its right to file a lawsuit in Maryland claiming a violation of the
Maryland Franchise Law. In light of the Federal Arbitration Act, there is some dispute as to
whether this forum selection requirement is legally enforceable.

[Signatures on the following page]
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Agreed to by:
FRANCHISEE: FRANCHISOR:

BEST CHOICE ROOFING FRANCHISING,

LLC
By:
Name: By:
Title: Name:
Date: Title:
Date:
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MINNESOTA RIDER TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

This Rider amends the Franchise Agreement dated (the
“Agreement”), between Best Choice Roofing Franchising, LLC, A Tennessee limited liability
company (“Franchisor”) and , a

(“Franchisee™).

1. Definitions. Capitalized terms used but not defined in this Rider have the meanings
given in the Agreement. The “Minnesota Act” means Minnesota Statutes, Sections 80C.01 to
80C.22.

2. Amendments. The Agreement is amended to comply with the following:

e The franchisor has posted a surety bond in the amount of $600,000. The State of Minnesota
has required this financial assurance obligation due to the franchisor’s financial condition.

e Minnesota Statutes, Section 80C.21 and Minnesota Rules 2860.4400(J) prohibit the
franchisor from requiring litigation to be conducted outside Minnesota, requiring waiver
of a jury trial, or requiring the franchisee to consent to liquidated damages, termination
penalties or judgment notes. In addition, nothing in the Franchise Disclosure Document or
agreement(s) can abrogate or reduce (1) any of the franchisee’s rights as provided for in
Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 80C or (2) franchisee’s rights to any procedure, forum, or
remedies provided for by the laws of the jurisdiction.

e With respect to franchises governed by Minnesota law, the franchisor will comply with
Minnesota Statutes, Section 80C.14, Subd. 3-5, which require (except in certain specified
cases) (1) that a franchisee be given 90 days’ notice of termination (with 60 days to cure)
and 180 days’ notice for non- renewal of the franchise agreement and (2) that consent to
the transfer of the franchise will not be unreasonably withheld.

e The franchisor will protect the franchisee’s rights to use the trademarks, service marks,
trade names, logotypes or other commercial symbols or indemnify the franchisee from any
loss, costs or expenses arising out of any claim, suit or demand regarding the use of the
name. Minnesota considers it unfair to not protect the franchisee’s right to use the
trademarks. Refer to Minnesota Statues, Section 80C.12, Subd. 1(g).

e Minnesota Rules 2860.4400(D) prohibits a franchisor from requiring a franchisee to assent
to a general release.

e The franchisee cannot consent to the franchisor obtaining injunctive relief. The franchisor
may seek injunctive relief. See Minn. Rules 2860.4400J. Also, a court will determine if a

bond is required.

e The Limitations of Claims section must comply with Minnesota Statutes, Section 80C.17,
Subd. 5, and therefore the applicable provision of the Agreement is amended to state “No
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action may be commenced pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Section 80C.17 more than three
years after the cause of action accrues.”

3. Effective Date. This Rider is effective as of the Effective Date.

Agreed to by:

FRANCHISEE: FRANCHISOR:
BEST CHOICE ROOFING FRANCHISING,
LLC

By:

Name: By:

Title: Name:

Date: Title:
Date:
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NEW YORK RIDER TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

This Rider amends the Franchise Agreement dated (the
“Agreement”), between Best Choice Roofing Franchising, LLC, A Tennessee limited liability
company (“Franchisor”) and , a
(“Franchisee™).

1. Definitions. Capitalized terms used but not defined in this Rider have the meanings
given in the Agreement.

2. Waivers Not Required. Notwithstanding any provision of the Agreement to the
contrary, Franchisee is not required to assent to a release, assignment, novation, waiver or estoppel
which would relieve Franchisor or any other person from any duty or liability imposed by New
York General Business Law, Article 33.

3 Waivers of New York Law Deleted. Any condition, stipulation, or provision in
the Agreement purporting to bind Franchisee to waive compliance by Franchisor with any
provision of New York General Business Law, or any rule promulgated thereunder, is hereby
deleted.

4. Governing Law. Notwithstanding any provision of the Agreement to the contrary,
the New York Franchises Law shall govern any claim arising under that law.

5. Effective Date. This Rider is effective as of the Effective Date.
Agreed to by:
FRANCHISEE: FRANCHISOR:

BEST CHOICE ROOFING FRANCHISING,

LLC
By:
Name: By:
Title: Name:
Date: Title:
Date:
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NORTH DAKOTA RIDER TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

This Rider amends the Franchise Agreement dated (the
“Agreement”), between Best Choice Roofing Franchising, LLC, A Tennesee limited liability

company (“Franchisor”) and , a

(“Franchisee™).

1.

Definitions. Capitalized terms used but not defined in this Rider have the meanings

given in the Agreement.

2.

Amendments. The Agreement (and any Guaranty Agreement) is amended to

comply with the following:

(1

2

3)

“4)

)

(6)
(7

®)

©)

(10)

Restrictive Covenants: Every contract by which Franchisee, any Guarantor, or any
other person is restrained from exercising a lawful profession, trade, or business of
any kind is subject to NDCC Section 9-08-06.

Situs of Arbitration Proceedings: Franchisee and any Guarantor are not required to
agree to the arbitration of disputes at a location that is remote from the site of
Franchisee’s business.

Restrictions on Forum: Franchisee and any Guarantor are not required to consent
to the jurisdiction of courts outside of North Dakota.

Liquidated Damages and Termination Penalties: Franchisee is not required to
consent to liquidated damages or termination penalties.

Applicable Laws: The Agreement (and any Guaranty Agreement) is governed by
the laws of the State of North Dakota.

Waiver of Trial by Jury: Franchisee and any Guarantor do not waive a trial by jury.

Waiver of Exemplary and Punitive Damages: The parties do not waive exemplary
and punitive damages.

General Release: Franchisee and any Guarantor are not required to sign a general
release upon renewal of the Agreement.

Limitation of Claims: Franchisee is not required to consent to a limitation of claims.
The statute of limitations under North Dakota law applies.

Enforcement of Agreement: The prevailing party in any enforcement action is
entitled to recover all costs and expenses including attorney’s fees.
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(11)  Deferral: Franchisor will defer collecting the initial franchise fee until Franchisor
has performed all pre-opening obligations owed to Franchisee and Franchisee has
commenced doing business.

4. Effective Date. This Rider is effective as of the Effective Date.

Agreed to by:

FRANCHISEE: FRANCHISOR:
BEST CHOICE ROOFING FRANCHISING,
LLC

By:

Name: By:

Title: Name:

Date: Title:
Date:

Best Choice Roofing Franchising, LLC FDD 2023



RHODE ISLAND RIDER TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

This Rider amends the Franchise Agreement dated (the
“Agreement”), between Best Choice Roofing Franchising, LLC, A Tennessee limited liability
company (“Franchisor”) and , a
(“Franchisee™).

1. Definitions. Capitalized terms used but not defined in this Rider have the meanings
given in the Agreement.

2. Jurisdiction and Venue. Any provision of the Agreement restricting jurisdiction
or venue to a forum outside the State of Rhode Island or requiring the application of the laws of
another state is void with respect to a claim otherwise enforceable under Rhode Island Franchise
Investment Act.

3. Effective Date. This Rider is effective as of the Effective Date.
Agreed to by:
FRANCHISEE: FRANCHISOR:

BEST CHOICE ROOFING FRANCHISING,

LLC
By:
Name: By:
Title: Name:
Date: Title:
Date:
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WASHINGTON ADDENDUM TO THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT,
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT, AND RELATED AGREEMENTS

In the event of a conflict of laws, the provisions of the Washington Franchise Investment
Protection Act, Chapter 19.100 RCW will prevail.

RCW 19.100.180 may supersede the franchise agreement in your relationship with the franchisor
including the areas of termination and renewal of your franchise. There may also be court decisions
which may supersede the franchise agreement in your relationship with the franchisor including
the areas of termination and renewal of your franchise.

In any arbitration or mediation involving a franchise purchased in Washington, the arbitration or
mediation site will be either in the state of Washington, or in a place mutually agreed upon at the
time of the arbitration or mediation, or as determined by the arbitrator or mediator at the time of
arbitration or mediation. In addition, if litigation is not precluded by the franchise agreement, a
franchisee may bring an action or proceeding arising out of or in connection with the sale of
franchises, or a violation of the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act, in Washington.

A release or waiver of rights executed by a franchisee may not include rights under the Washington
Franchise Investment Protection Act or any rule or order thereunder except when executed
pursuant to a negotiated settlement after the agreement is in effect and where the parties are
represented by independent counsel. Provisions such as those which unreasonably restrict or limit
the statute of limitations period for claims under the Act, or rights or remedies under the Act such
as a right to a jury trial, may not be enforceable.

Transfer fees are collectable to the extent that they reflect the franchisor’s reasonable estimated or
actual costs in effecting a transfer.

Pursuant to RCW 49.62.020, a noncompetition covenant is void and unenforceable against an
employee, including an employee of a franchisee, unless the employee’s earnings from the party
seeking enforcement, when annualized, exceed $100,000 per year (an amount that will be adjusted
annually for inflation). In addition, a noncompetition covenant is void and unenforceable against
an independent contractor of a franchisee under RCW 49.62.030 unless the independent
contractor’s earnings from the party seeking enforcement, when annualized, exceed $250,000 per
year (an amount that will be adjusted annually for inflation). As a result, any provisions contained
in the franchise agreement or elsewhere that conflict with these limitations are void and
unenforceable in Washington. RCW 49.62.060 prohibits a franchisor from restricting, restraining,
or prohibiting a franchisee from (i) soliciting or hiring any employee of a franchisee of the same
franchisor or (ii) soliciting or hiring any employee of the franchisor. As a result, any such
provisions contained in the franchise agreement or elsewhere are void and unenforceable in
Washington.

Use of Franchise Brokers. The franchisor uses the services of franchise brokers to assist it in
selling franchises. A franchise broker represents the franchisor and is paid a fee for referring
prospects to the franchisor and/or selling the franchise. Do not rely only on the information
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provided by a franchise broker about a franchise. Do your own investigation by contacting the
franchisor’s current and former franchisees to ask them about their experience with the franchisor.

The undersigned does hereby acknowledge receipt of this addendum.

Agreed to by:

FRANCHISEE:

Name:

Title:

Date:
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FRANCHISOR:

BEST CHOICE ROOFING FRANCHISING,
LLC

By:
Name:
Title:
Date:




STATE EFFECTIVE DATES

The following States require that the Franchise Disclosure Document be registered
or filed with the State, or be exempt from registration: California, Hawaii, Illinois, Indiana,
Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota, New York, North Dakota, Rhode Island, South Dakota,
Virginia, Washington and Wisconsin.

This document is effective and may be used in the following states, where the
document is filed, registered or exempt from registration, as of the Effective Date stated
below:

State Effective Date
California Pending
Hawaii Pending
[linois Pending
Indiana Pending
Maryland Pending
Michigan June 13, 2022
Minnesota Pending
New York Pending

North Dakota | Pending

Rhode Island Pending

South Dakota | Pending

Virginia Pending

Washington Pending

Wisconsin Pending

Other states may require registration, filing, or exemption of a franchise under other
laws, such as those that regulate the offer and sale of business opportunities or seller-
assisted marketing plans.
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RECEIPT

This disclosure document summarizes certain provisions of the franchise agreement and other
information in plain language. Read this disclosure document and all agreements carefully.

If Best Choice Roofing Franchising, LLC offers you a franchise, it must provide this disclosure
document to you 14 calendar-days before you sign a binding agreement with, or make a payment
to, the franchisor or an affiliate in connection with the proposed franchise sale. New York requires
that you be given this disclosure document at the earlier of the first personal meeting or 10 business
days before the execution of any franchise or other agreement, or payment of any consideration
that relates to the franchise relationship.

If Best Choice Roofing Franchising, LLC does not deliver this disclosure document on time or if
it contains a false or misleading statement, or a material omission, a violation of federal law and
state law may have occurred and should be reported to the Federal Trade Commission,
Washington, D.C. 20580 and any applicable state agency (which are listed in Exhibit A).

The name, principal business address, and telephone number of each franchise seller offering the
franchise is:

Name Principal Business Address Telephone Number
Wayne Holloway 105 Hazel Path, Hendersonville, Tennessee | 615-637-3341
37075
Franchise FastLane 14301 First National Parkway, Suite 312 531-333-3278
Omaha, NE 68154

Issuance Date: April 28, 2023
I received a disclosure document dated April 28, 2023 that included the following Exhibits:

State Administrators and Agents for Service of Process

Franchise Agreement (with Guaranty, and Non-Compete Agreement)
Form of General Release

Financial Statements

Manual Table of Contents

Current and Former Franchisees

State Addenda to Disclosure Document

State Addenda to Franchise Agreement

TOQmmoawy>

Signature:
Print Name:
Date Received:

Keep This Copy For Your Records
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RECEIPT

This disclosure document summarizes certain provisions of the franchise agreement and other
information in plain language. Read this disclosure document and all agreements carefully.

If Best Choice Roofing Franchising, LLC offers you a franchise, it must provide this disclosure
document to you 14 calendar-days before you sign a binding agreement with, or make a payment
to, the franchisor or an affiliate in connection with the proposed franchise sale. New York requires
that you be given this disclosure document at the earlier of the first personal meeting or 10 business
days before the execution of any franchise or other agreement, or payment of any consideration
that relates to the franchise relationship.

If Best Choice Roofing Franchising, LLC does not deliver this disclosure document on time or if
it contains a false or misleading statement, or a material omission, a violation of federal law and
state law may have occurred and should be reported to the Federal Trade Commission,
Washington, D.C. 20580 and any applicable state agency (which are listed in Exhibit A).

The name, principal business address, and telephone number of each franchise seller offering the
franchise is:

Name Principal Business Address Telephone Number
Wayne Holloway 105 Hazel Path, Hendersonville, Tennessee | 615-637-3341
37075
Franchise FastLane 14301 First National Parkway, Suite 312 531-333-3278
Omaha, NE 68154

Issuance Date: April 28, 2023
I received a disclosure document dated April 28, 2023 that included the following Exhibits:

State Administrators and Agents for Service of Process

Franchise Agreement (with Guaranty, and Non-Compete Agreement)
Form of General Release

Financial Statements

Operating Manual Table of Contents

Current and Former Franchisees

State Addenda to Disclosure Document

State Addenda to Franchise Agreement

TOQmmoawy>

Signature:
Print Name:
Date Received:

Return this copy to us.
Best Choice Roofing Franchising, LLC
105 Hazel Path, Hendersonville, Tennessee 37075
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